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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2           THE COURT:  MR. BOIES.

         3                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

         4  BY MR. BOIES:

         5  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. MUGLIA.  I'M DAVID BOIES, AND I

         6  REPRESENT THE UNITED STATES.

         7  A.   GOOD AFTERNOON.

         8  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO BEGIN BY GETTING YOUR TESTIMONY AS TO

         9  WHETHER OR NOT YOU BELIEVED IN 1995 AND 1996 THAT JAVA

        10  REPRESENTED A SERIOUS THREAT TO MICROSOFT'S OPERATING

        11  SYSTEMS BUSINESS.

        12           DID YOU?

        13  A.   YES, I DID.  I REALLY FIRST BECAME AWARE OF JAVA,

        14  HOWEVER, AS A MAJOR THREAT IN THE LATTER PART OF 1995.  I

        15  WOULD SAY THE EARLY FALL OF 1995.

        16  Q.   OKAY.  AND DID YOU PARTICIPATE IN ANY PROGRAM WITHIN

        17  MICROSOFT TO RESPOND TO THAT THREAT?

        18  A.   YES.

        19  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 466,

        20  WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE AND I BELIEVE IS A DOCUMENT

        21  THAT YOU AUTHORED.

        22           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        23  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        24  Q.   AND THIS IS DATED AUGUST 16, 1996?

        25  A.   YES.
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         1  Q.   AND I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE

         2  FIRST FULL PARAGRAPH ON THE SECOND PAGE.

         3           AND FIRST, AT THE VERY END OF THAT PARAGRAPH YOU

         4  SAY THAT "COLLECTIVELY JAVA AND NETSCAPE ONE REPRESENT THE

         5  MOST SERIOUS THREAT TO OUR CORE WINDOWS BUSINESS WHICH

         6  MICROSOFT HAS SEEN IN YEARS."

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   YES, I DO.

         9  Q.   AND WAS THAT YOUR VIEW IN AUGUST OF 1996?

        10  A.   YES, IT WAS MY VIEW THAT THE TWO DIFFERENT

        11  COMPETITORS, SUN WITH JAVA AND NETSCAPE, WERE

        12  INDEPENDENTLY TWO BIG THREATS TO OUR WINDOWS BUSINESS.

        13  Q.   AND I THINK THAT'S A GOOD CLARIFICATION.

        14           YOU WERE SAYING THAT JAVA AND NETSCAPE WERE EACH

        15  TWO INDEPENDENT THREATS TO THE OS BUSINESS AND

        16  COLLECTIVELY THEY REPRESENTED, THAT IS, COMBINED, THEY

        17  REPRESENTED THE MOST SERIOUS THREAT THAT MICROSOFT HAD

        18  SEEN IN YEARS.

        19  A.   SORT OF.  LET ME TRY TO CLARIFY THAT.

        20           THEY WERE BOTH INDEPENDENT THREATS THAT WERE

        21  RUNNING--THAT HAD INDEPENDENT ISSUES ASSOCIATED WITH THEM,

        22  BUT WE WERE AND STILL ARE IN AN INCREDIBLY COMPETITIVE

        23  LANDSCAPE, AND WHEN YOU TAKE DIFFERENT COMPETITORS

        24  COMPETING AGAINST MICROSOFT LIKE THAT, THE COMPETITIVE

        25  ENVIRONMENT WAS AS STRONG AS WE HAD SEEN FOR SOME TIME.
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         1  Q.   LET ME TRY TO BREAK THAT UP.

         2           I ACCEPT YOUR POINT THAT JAVA AND NETSCAPE WERE

         3  TWO INDEPENDENT COMPETITIVE THREATS, OKAY?

         4  A.   OKAY.

         5  Q.   NOW, HERE, YOU TALK ABOUT THOSE TWO THREATS TOGETHER;

         6  CORRECT?

         7  A.   NO, I DON'T BELIEVE THAT'S THE WAY I WROTE OR

         8  INTENDED THIS SENTENCE.  WHAT I MEANT IS THAT WE ARE

         9  LIVING IN AN ENVIRONMENT WHERE WE HAVE TWO SIGNIFICANT

        10  COMPETITIVE THREATS, AND IN AN ENVIRONMENT WHERE BOTH OF

        11  THESE WERE TRYING TO COMPETE AGAINST OUR CORE BUSINESS,

        12  THAT WAS ONE OF THE MOST SERIOUS BUSINESS SITUATIONS THAT

        13  WE HAD SEEN IN YEARS.

        14  Q.   WHEN YOU REFER IN THE LAST SENTENCE TO THESE TWO

        15  INITIATIVES, ONE INITIATIVE IS NETSCAPE AND THE OTHER

        16  INITIATIVE IS JAVA; IS THAT CORRECT?

        17  A.   LET ME JUST CHECK TO MAKE SURE.

        18           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        19  A.   YES, BUT LET ME CLARIFY THAT.

        20           YES, ONE OF THEM WAS NETSCAPE WITH ALL OF THE

        21  PLATFORM OFFERINGS THEY WERE PROVIDING AROUND THEIR

        22  BROWSER, NAVIGATOR OR COMMUNICATOR.  AND THE OTHER WAS

        23  JAVA AND THE SUN JAVA PLATFORM.

        24           I DO WANT TO CLARIFY THAT WHEN I SAY JAVA IN HERE

        25  IN REFERENCE TO SUN, I MEANT THE PLATFORM THAT SUN WAS

                                                           7

         1  CREATING AS AN ALTERNATIVE TO WINDOWS.

         2  Q.   AND I THINK THE RECORD IS ALREADY CLEAR, BUT JUST TO

         3  GET YOUR TESTIMONY, WHEN YOU REFER TO THE JAVA PLATFORM,

         4  WHAT ARE YOU REFERRING TO?

         5  A.   GENERALLY, I WOULD BE REFERRING TO THE CROSS-PLATFORM

         6  PLATFORM THAT SUN WAS CREATING IN COMPETITION WITH

         7  WINDOWS.

         8  Q.   AND WHAT DID THAT CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA PLATFORM

         9  CONSIST OF?

        10  A.   IT CONSISTED OF A VIRTUAL MACHINE WHICH INTERPRETS

        11  BYTECODES.  THAT'S THE TRANSLATION OF SOMETHING A HUMAN

        12  CAN WRITE INTO SOMETHING A COMPUTER CAN UNDERSTAND, AND

        13  SUN BUILT THAT IN A CROSS-PLATFORM WAY.

        14           AND IT ALSO CONSISTED OF A SET OF API'S OR CLASS

        15  LIBRARIES WHICH RUN INDEPENDENT OF THE PLATFORM THAT IT'S

        16  ON.

        17           THOSE ARE THE TWO MOST SIGNIFICANT THINGS,

        18  ALTHOUGH THERE IS ALSO, AS A PART OF THAT, A COMPILER THAT

        19  DOES THE TRANSLATION INTO COMPUTER-READABLE FORM.

        20  Q.   AND WHEN YOU SAID COLLECTIVELY THESE TWO INITIATIVES

        21  REPRESENT THE MOST SERIOUS THREAT TO OUR CORE WINDOWS

        22  BUSINESS WHICH MICROSOFT HAS SEEN IN YEARS, YOU WERE

        23  REFERRING TO THE NETSCAPE INITIATIVE AS YOU HAVE DESCRIBED

        24  IT, AND THE SUN INITIATIVE AS YOU HAVE DESCRIBED; CORRECT,

        25  SIR?
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         1  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         2  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK YOU TO GO DOWN TO THE NEXT PARAGRAPH.

         3  YOU BEGIN BY SAYING THE WINDOWS FRANCHISE IS FUELED BY

         4  APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT WHICH IS FOCUSED ON OUR CORE

         5  API'S.

         6           AND THEN YOU SAY, "WHEN A DEVELOPER WRITES AN

         7  APPLICATION TO AWT, EVEN IF THEY ARE USING WINDOWS AND

         8  VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS, THEY ARE NOT SUPPORTING OUR PLATFORM.

         9  INSTEAD, THEY ARE FURTHERING SUN'S MOMENTUM, POTENTIALLY

        10  OPENING UP THE OPPORTUNITY FOR OUR COMPETITOR TO SLIDE IN

        11  ITS OWN OPERATING SYSTEM OFFERING."

        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        13  A.   YES, I DO.

        14  Q.   AND I TAKE IT THAT YOU AGREED WITH THAT WHEN YOU

        15  WROTE IT IN 1996?

        16  A.   YES, I DO.  AND DID.

        17  Q.   AND DO YOU AGREE WITH IT TODAY?

        18  A.   I STILL DO.

        19  Q.   OKAY.

        20           THE COURT:  WHAT IS AWT?

        21           THE WITNESS:  AWT IS ONE OF THE MORE IMPORTANT

        22  CLASS LIBRARIES THAT SUN HAS AS A PART OF THEIR

        23  CROSS-PLATFORM PROGRAM--PLATFORM.

        24           IT'S ACTUALLY THE THING THAT DRAWS THINGS ON THE

        25  SCREEN FOR THE DEVELOPER.
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         1           THE COURT:  OKAY.

         2  BY MR. BOIES:

         3  Q.   AND WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT APPLICATION WRITERS WHO WRITE

         4  TO AWT ARE POTENTIALLY OPENING UP THE OPPORTUNITY FOR YOUR

         5  COMPETITOR TO SLIDE IN ITS OWN OPERATING SYSTEM OFFERING,

         6  CAN YOU EXPLAIN WHAT YOU MEAN BY THAT.

         7  A.   CERTAINLY.  WHAT I MEANT BY THAT WAS THAT SUN'S

         8  STRATEGY, THE STRATEGY THAT THEY HAD BEEN PURSUING SINCE

         9  1995, AS I UNDERSTOOD IT, AND WERE STILL PURSUING AT THIS

        10  TIME WAS TO OFFER DEVELOPERS A CROSS-PLATFORM SET OF CLASS

        11  LIBRARIES AND A CROSS-PLATFORM PLATFORM, IN ESSENCE.

        12           AND WHAT THEY WERE TRYING TO DO WAS GET

        13  DEVELOPERS TO WRITE TO THAT ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM.

        14           SO, EVEN IF--EVEN IF A DEVELOPER WROTE A JAVA

        15  PROGRAM AND THAT PROGRAM RUNS ON WINDOWS, EVEN IN THE CASE

        16  WHERE IT RUNS ON WINDOWS, IT'S NOT WRITTEN TO MICROSOFT'S

        17  PROGRAMMING INTERFACES.

        18           SO, WHEN I SAID SLIDE IN THEIR PLATFORM, WHAT I

        19  MEANT IS THAT THEY COULD, IN ESSENCE, MAKE WHAT EVERYTHING

        20  ELSE THAT OUR PLATFORM DID IRRELEVANT, THUS ENABLING TO

        21  REPLACE WINDOWS AND MAKE IT OBSOLETE, SO TO SPEAK.

        22  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT THE LAST PAGE OF THIS

        23  DOCUMENT AND THE FIRST FULL PARAGRAPH ON THAT PAGE.

        24  A.   YES, I SEE IT.

        25  Q.   AND THE THIRD SENTENCE.
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         1  A.   LET ME TAKE A SECOND TO READ IT, IF YOU DON'T MIND.

         2  Q.   CERTAINLY.

         3           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

         4  A.   OKAY.

         5  Q.   YOU WRITE, "WHEN A JAVA DEVELOPER WRITES TO AWT, THEY

         6  ARE WRITING TO SUN API'S, AND THEIR APPLICATION CAN BE

         7  EASILY RUN ON COMPETITIVE PLATFORMS."

         8           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         9  A.   NO, I DON'T.  I'M SORRY, I HAVE LOST YOU.

        10  Q.   IF YOU LOOK--

        11  A.   OKAY.  YES, I SEE IT NOW.

        12  Q.   DID YOU, I TAKE IT, AGREE WITH THAT WHEN YOU WROTE

        13  IT?

        14  A.   YES.

        15  Q.   AND YOU AGREE WITH IT TODAY?

        16  A.   YES.

        17           IN ESSENCE, ALTHOUGH SINCE THIS TIME I'VE LEARNED

        18  ABOUT A NUMBER OF PROBLEMS THAT EXIST IN TRYING TO BUILD

        19  CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS, THAT WAS NOT EVIDENT IN THIS

        20  TIME FRAME IN 1996.

        21  Q.   WITH RESPECT TO THE GOAL OF HAVING APPLICATIONS THAT

        22  ARE WRITTEN TO AWT BE EASILY RUN ON COMPETITIVE PLATFORMS,

        23  YOU UNDERSTOOD IN 1996, AND YOU UNDERSTAND TODAY, THAT

        24  THAT IS A GOAL OF SUN'S JAVA; CORRECT?

        25  A.   YES, IT IS.
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         1  Q.   AND IS IT THAT GOAL THAT YOU BELIEVE TO BE A THREAT

         2  TO MICROSOFT'S OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS IN 1996?

         3  A.   NOT DIRECTLY.  IT'S--THE MERE GOAL OF BUILDING

         4  CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS IS NOT A THREAT TO MICROSOFT.

         5  THERE ARE MANY DEVELOPERS IN THE INDUSTRY, ISP'S IN THE

         6  INDUSTRY THAT CREATE APPLICATIONS AND TARGET MULTIPLE

         7  OPERATING SYSTEM ENVIRONMENTS.

         8           IT'S THE FACT THAT SUN HAD BUILT A COMPETITIVE

         9  PLATFORM TO MICROSOFT'S WINDOWS, AND WITH THAT PLATFORM

        10  THEY WERE USING THAT AS A MECHANISM TO ENTICE DEVELOPERS

        11  TO NOT WRITE SPECIFICALLY TO MICROSOFT'S API'S.

        12           SO, IT'S THE FACT THAT SUN WAS TRYING TO PULL

        13  DEVELOPER AWAY FROM MICROSOFT THAT WAS THE THREAT.  AND

        14  THE THREAT WAS, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, AND CORRECT ME IF I'M

        15  WRONG, THE THREAT WAS THAT SUN, BY OFFERING THIS

        16  ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM, WOULD GET DEVELOPERS TO WRITE TO

        17  THAT PLATFORM AND NOT TO WINDOWS AND, THEREFORE, THE

        18  APPLICATIONS THAT THEY WROTE WOULD NOT BE FOCUSED ON

        19  WINDOWS.  THEY COULD BE EASILY RUN ON COMPETITIVE

        20  PLATFORMS.

        21           YES, ESSENTIALLY THAT'S CORRECT.  PARTICULARLY

        22  EASILY RUN POTENTIALLY ON SUN'S PLATFORMS.

        23  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU WERE PREPARING THIS MEMORANDUM, THIS

        24  WAS GOING TO THE DEVELOPER'S TOOLS DIVISION; CORRECT, SIR?

        25  A.   YES, IT WENT DIRECTLY TO THE DEVELOPER TOOLS
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         1  DIVISION.

         2           IT WAS ALSO COPIED TO EVERYONE IN A BROADER

         3  ORGANIZATION THAT WAS BRAD SILVERBERG'S OVERALL

         4  ORGANIZATION.  THAT'S THE REFERENCE OF IPTD FULL-TIME

         5  EMPLOYEES, AND IT WENT TO MEMBERS OF MICROSOFT'S EXECUTIVE

         6  STAFF, AND PEOPLE WHO REPORTED DIRECTLY TO THEM.

         7  Q.   DID MICROSOFT PLAN TO USE ITS TOOLS DIVISION AS AN

         8  ELEMENT OF ITS RESPONSE TO WHAT IT PERCEIVED TO BE THE

         9  JAVA THREAT?

        10  A.   WELL, YES, IN ONE SENSE.  ABSOLUTELY, MICROSOFT WAS

        11  USING ITS TOOLS THEN, AND STILL IS TODAY, TO HELP

        12  DEVELOPERS WRITE GREAT APPLICATIONS FOR WINDOWS.

        13           SO, IN THE SENSE THAT OUR TOOLS ENABLE DEVELOPERS

        14  TO BUILD APPLICATIONS AND IN PARTICULAR OUR TOOLS DO A

        15  REALLY GOOD JOB OF HELPING DEVELOPERS BUILD WINDOWS

        16  APPLICATIONS, YES, IT WAS PART OF THE COMPETITIVE--IT WAS

        17  PART OF OUR OVERALL COMPETITION WITH SUN AND THEIR

        18  ALTERNATIVE JAVA PLATFORM.

        19  Q.   WAS IT ALSO PART OF WHAT YOU WERE DOING WAS

        20  ATTEMPTING TO USE YOUR TOOLS TO GET DEVELOPERS TO WRITE

        21  PROGRAMS THAT WOULD NOT BE CROSS-PLATFORMED?

        22  A.   WELL, YES, IN THE SENSE THAT OUR TOOLS PROVIDE--AT

        23  THIS TIME, OUR TOOLS WERE PRIMARILY TARGETED AT BUILDING

        24  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA PROGRAMS, ALTHOUGH THERE WERE

        25  ATTRIBUTES OF THE TOOLS THAT LET DEVELOPERS CREATE
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         1  PROGRAMS THAT WERE SPECIFICALLY FOR WINDOWS.

         2           BUT CERTAINLY YES, OUR TOOLS MAKE IT EASY, ONCE

         3  AGAIN, TO HAVE DEVELOPERS CREATE WINDOWS APPLICATIONS,

         4  THAT IS, APPLICATIONS THAT ONLY RUN IN THE WINDOWS

         5  ENVIRONMENT.

         6  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK TO YOU LOOK NEXT AT GOVERNMENT

         7  EXHIBIT 259, WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         8           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         9  Q.   IS THIS A DOCUMENT THAT YOU ARE FAMILIAR WITH, SIR?

        10  A.   I'M FAMILIAR WITH IT, AS I REVIEWED IT AS A PART OF

        11  PREPARATION FOR TESTIMONY.

        12  Q.   AND THIS IS ONE OF THE DOCUMENTS THAT YOU REFER TO IN

        13  YOUR TESTIMONY, DO YOU NOT, SIR?

        14  A.   YES, I DO.

        15  Q.   AND WHEN WAS THIS DOCUMENT PREPARED?

        16  A.   WELL, IT DOES NOT HAVE A DATE ON IT, TO THE BEST OF

        17  MY KNOWLEDGE, BUT I'M AWARE THAT IT WAS PREPARED DURING

        18  OCTOBER OF 1997.

        19  Q.   AND WHO PREPARED IT?

        20  A.   IT WAS PREPARED BY A LADY NAMED FARANA AHMED.

        21  Q.   AND WHERE OR IN WHAT PART OF MICROSOFT DID SHE WORK?

        22  A.   SHE WORKS IN OUR VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS MARKETING

        23  ORGANIZATION.

        24  Q.   AND TO WHOM WAS THIS DISTRIBUTED?

        25  A.   IT WAS ONLY DISTRIBUTED TO HER DIRECT MANAGER AND
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         1  PEOPLE WHO ARE CLOSELY INVOLVED IN THE VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS

         2  PRODUCT.

         3  Q.   NOW, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT THIS DOCUMENT RELATES TO

         4  THE VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS PRODUCT?

         5  A.   YES, IT DOES.

         6  Q.   NOW, THERE IS SOMETHING AT THE TOP THAT SAYS VJ98.

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   AND WHAT DOES THAT REFER TO?

        10  A.   WELL, I BELIEVE AT THIS TIME VJ98 WAS A CODE NAME FOR

        11  THE PRODUCT WHICH EVENTUALLY BECAME KNOWN AS VISUAL

        12  J-PLUS-PLUS 6.0.

        13  Q.   AND THIS STATES THAT THE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE FOR

        14  J-PLUS-PLUS 6.0 IS TO KILL CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA BY GROWING

        15  THE POLLUTED JAVA MARKET; CORRECT, SIR?

        16  A.   YES, THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.

        17  Q.   NOW, IN TERMS OF THE USE OF THE WORD "POLLUTED" HERE,

        18  IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT WHAT YOUR INTERPRETATION OF THAT IS

        19  IS THAT IT IS NOT NECESSARILY SOMETHING BAD BUT SIMPLY

        20  SOMETHING DIFFERENT?

        21  A.   YES.

        22           LET ME TRY TO BE CLEAR ABOUT THIS.  WHEN WE SAY

        23  "POLLUTED," IT IS A SORT OF SARCASTIC RESPONSE TO ONE OF

        24  SUN'S MARKETING PROGRAMS FOR CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA.

        25           SUN OFTEN REFERRED TO PROGRAMS THAT WERE WRITTEN
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         1  TO RUN PURELY CROSS-PLATFORM AS PURE, AND THEY WOULD--THEY

         2  MADE STATEMENTS THAT IF YOU HAD EVEN A SMALL AMOUNT OF

         3  NONCROSS-PLATFORM CODE--IN OTHER WORDS, A SMALL AMOUNT OF

         4  NATIVE CODE IN IT--THAT THEY WERE NO LONGER PURE.

         5           SO, SOMETIMES INTERNALLY WITHIN MICROSOFT, WE

         6  REFERRED TO PROGRAMS THAT WERE WRITTEN WITH NATIVE CODE,

         7  PARTICULARLY AND GENERALLY PROGRAMS THAT WERE WRITTEN FOR

         8  THE WINDOWS PLATFORM USING THE SARCASTIC PHRASE

         9  "POLLUTED," AGAIN IN REFERENCE TO SUN'S MARKETING PROGRAM

        10  "PURE."

        11  Q.   NOW, THE AUTHOR OF THIS DOCUMENT DID NOT PUT POLLUTED

        12  IN QUOTATION MARKS OR ANYTHING ELSE TO INDICATE THAT SHE

        13  WAS USING IT IN SOME PARTICULAR SENSE; CORRECT?

        14  A.   NO, BUT ALSO SHE--THIS DOCUMENT WAS NEVER

        15  DISTRIBUTED.  IT'S A DRAFT DOCUMENT WHICH WAS NEVER

        16  DISTRIBUTED OUTSIDE OF HER ORGANIZATION, EITHER.

        17  Q.   WELL, YOU SAY IT IS A DRAFT DOCUMENT.

        18           DIDN'T YOU TELL ME JUST A FEW MINUTES AGO THAT IT

        19  HAD BEEN DISTRIBUTED TO HER DIRECT REPORTS AND ALL OF THE

        20  OTHER PEOPLE THAT WERE DIRECTLY INVOLVED IN WORKING ON THE

        21  J-PLUS-PLUS PROJECT?

        22  A.   NO, I DID NOT.  FARANA DID NOT HAVE ANY DIRECT

        23  REPORTS.  SHE WAS A JUNIOR EMPLOYEE IN THE COMPANY AT

        24  MICROSOFT FOR LESS THAN ONE YEAR.

        25           SHE DISTRIBUTED THIS DOCUMENT TO HER MANAGER,

                                                           16

         1  JONATHAN ROSKILL, WHO CORRECTED IT, AND IT NEVER WENT IN

         2  ANY FURTHER.

         3  Q.   WELL, NOW LET ME MAKE SURE I'VE GOT YOUR TESTIMONY.

         4           YOU'RE SAYING THAT THIS DOCUMENT WAS CHANGED BY

         5  HER MANAGER?  CORRECTED?

         6  A.   NO, I'M NOT SAYING THAT.  I'M SAYING THAT AFTER

         7  REVIEW, THERE WERE SUFFICIENT PROBLEMS WITH THIS DOCUMENT

         8  THAT JOHN, WHEN HE PRESENTED BUSINESS PROPOSALS UP THE

         9  MANAGEMENT CHAIN, USED AN ENTIRELY DIFFERENT FORM OF

        10  PRESENTATION TO DO IT.  HE DID NOT TAKE THIS DOCUMENT ANY

        11  FURTHER.

        12  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, WHEN YOU SAID THAT THIS WAS CORRECTED,

        13  DID YOU MEAN THAT IT WAS CHANGED?

        14  A.   NO, IT WAS NOT.  I MEANT--WHAT I MEANT IS IT WAS NOT

        15  DISTRIBUTED IN THIS FORM, AND THAT IT WAS--THAT IN ALL

        16  SUBSEQUENT COMMUNICATIONS, WHENEVER OTHERS WITHIN THE

        17  COMPANY LOOKED AT VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS PROPOSALS, INCLUDING

        18  MYSELF, I NEVER SAW A DOCUMENT LIKE THIS.

        19           IN FACT, I DIDN'T EVEN SEE A DOCUMENT EVEN IN

        20  THIS FORM AT ALL.

        21  Q.   I TAKE IT FROM WHAT YOU SAID BEFORE, YOU DID SEE

        22  DOCUMENTS THAT TALKED ABOUT POLLUTED JAVA BECAUSE YOU SAID

        23  THAT WAS A TERM THAT WAS USED MORE THAN ONCE WITHIN

        24  MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

        25  A.   WELL, WHAT I WOULD SAY IS YES AND NO.  I HAVE SEEN
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         1  E-MAILS THAT USED THE TERM.  I HAVE NOT SEEN THE TERM, TO

         2  MY KNOWLEDGE, USED IN OFFICIAL BUSINESS DOCUMENTS.

         3  Q.   BY "OFFICIAL BUSINESS DOCUMENTS," WHAT DO YOU MEAN,

         4  SIR?

         5  A.   WELL, AN EXAMPLE OF THAT MIGHT BE A PRESENTATION MADE

         6  AS A PART OF A THREE-YEAR PLAN.

         7           IN THE END, THIS--IN THE END, THERE HAD BEEN

         8  PLANS THAT HAD BEEN DONE ON ALL OF OUR PRODUCTS, INCLUDING

         9  OUR DEVELOPER TOOLS PRODUCTS, AND TO MY KNOWLEDGE, I HAVE

        10  NOT SEEN THAT TERM USED IN A DOCUMENT OF THAT TYPE.

        11           TYPICALLY THOSE DOCUMENTS ARE AT MICROSOFT

        12  POWERPOINT PRESENTATIONS.

        13  Q.   LET ME BE SURE I'VE GOT YOUR PRESENT TESTIMONY, SIR.

        14           TO HOW MANY PEOPLE WAS THIS DISTRIBUTED?

        15  A.   I DON'T KNOW THE EXACT NUMBER, BUT IT WAS ONLY--TO MY

        16  KNOWLEDGE, IT WAS DISTRIBUTED TO JONATHAN ROSKILL, WHO IS

        17  THE MANAGER OF FARANA, AND PERHAPS ONE TO SEVERAL PEOPLE

        18  THAT ARE IN JONATHAN'S GROUP, BUT IT WAS NOT DISTRIBUTED

        19  BEYOND THAT.

        20  Q.   WHEN YOU SAY IT WAS DISTRIBUTED TO THE MANAGER AND

        21  THEN IT WAS DISTRIBUTED TO ONE TO SEVERAL PEOPLE IN THE

        22  MANAGER'S GROUP, DID YOU TRY TO FIND OUT TO WHOM IT WAS

        23  DISTRIBUTED?

        24  A.   NOT DIRECTLY, NO.

        25           AND I DIDN'T SAY THEN.  JUST TO BE CRYSTAL CLEAR,
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         1  I SAID IT WAS DISTRIBUTED TO JOHN AND POTENTIALLY UP TO

         2  SEVERAL PEOPLE WITHIN JOHN'S GROUP.

         3           I DID TALK TO JOHN ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT PRECISELY,

         4  AND I KNOW THAT HE TOOK ACTION ON IT WHEN HE SAW IT.

         5  Q.   FROM WHOM DID YOU GET THE INFORMATION THAT IT WAS

         6  DISTRIBUTED TO ONE TO SEVERAL PEOPLE OTHER THAN JOHN?

         7  A.   JONATHAN ROSKILL.

         8  Q.   HE TOLD YOU THAT.

         9  A.   YES, HE DID.

        10  Q.   DID YOU ASK HIM TO WHOM IT HAD BEEN DISTRIBUTED?

        11  A.   NO, I DID NOT.

        12  Q.   DID YOU ASK HIM WHETHER IT HAD BEEN DISTRIBUTED BY

        13  HIM OR BY THE AUTHOR?

        14  A.   NO, I DID NOT, ALTHOUGH BASED ON JOHN'S COMMENTS

        15  ABOUT THE DOCUMENT, WHICH, LIKE I SAID, INDICATED THAT HE

        16  HAD MULTIPLE PROBLEMS WITH IT, HE--I WOULD HAVE SUSPECTED

        17  IT WAS THE AUTHOR, BUT I DON'T KNOW THAT FOR SURE.

        18  Q.   WHEN DID YOU FIRST TALK TO SOMEBODY ABOUT THIS

        19  DOCUMENT?

        20  A.   FIRST TALK TO SOMEBODY ABOUT IT.

        21           WELL, I THINK I TALKED TO--OUTSIDE OF COUNSEL YOU

        22  MEAN, IN PREPARATION FOR MY TESTIMONY.

        23  Q.   THAT WAS THE FIRST TIME YOU TALKED TO ANYBODY ABOUT

        24  THE DOCUMENT?

        25  A.   THE FIRST TIME I TALKED TO ANYONE ABOUT THE DOCUMENT
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         1  WAS WITH MY COUNSEL IN PREPARATION FOR MY TESTIMONY.

         2  Q.   AND WHEN WAS THAT, SIR?

         3  A.   I BELIEVE IT WAS EARLY JANUARY OF THIS YEAR.

         4  Q.   AND THEREAFTER YOU HAD THIS DISCUSSION WITH JONATHAN?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND WAS ANYONE PRESENT WITH YOU WHEN YOU HAD THE

         7  CONVERSATION WITH JONATHAN?

         8  A.   NO, IT WAS A PHONE CALL.  THERE WERE OTHER PEOPLE IN

         9  THE ROOM, BUT I WAS ON THE PHONE PRIVATELY.

        10  Q.   WHO ELSE WAS IN THE ROOM WITH YOU?

        11  A.   MY COUNSEL, BUT THEY DIDN'T--MY COUNSEL COULDN'T HEAR

        12  WHAT JOHN WAS SAYING.

        13  Q.   WHERE WERE YOU WHEN YOU MADE THIS TELEPHONE CALL?

        14  A.   I WAS AT--IN THE SULLIVAN & CROMWELL OFFICES HERE IN

        15  WASHINGTON, D.C.

        16  Q.   HOW DID YOU KNOW TO CALL JONATHAN?

        17  A.   WELL, I TALKED TO--I MADE A PREVIOUS CALL BEFORE THAT

        18  WHERE I TALKED TO JOHN'S MANAGER, TOM BUTTON, TO

        19  UNDERSTAND THE LINEAGE HISTORY OF THE DOCUMENT, AND JOHN

        20  TOLD ME--EXCUSE ME.  TOM TOLD ME, TOM BUTTON WAS THE

        21  PREVIOUS MANAGER--WAS THE MANAGER FOR WHOM JONATHAN

        22  REPORTS TO.

        23           TOM TOLD ME THAT JOHN HAD MORE INFORMATION, SO I

        24  CALLED JOHN.

        25  Q.   HOW DID YOU KNOW TO CALL TOM BUTTON?
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         1  A.   TOM IS A MARKETING MANAGER IN THE DEVELOPER TOOLS

         2  ORGANIZATION WHO REPORTS IN TO ME.

         3  Q.   DO I UNDERSTAND IT THAT THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED

         4  WITHIN YOUR ORGANIZATION, SIR?

         5  A.   AT THE TIME THAT THIS DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED, IT WAS

         6  NOT MY ORGANIZATION.  IT WAS PREPARED IN OCTOBER OF 1997.

         7           AND ALTHOUGH PRIOR TO THAT TIME THE VISUAL

         8  J-PLUS-PLUS ORGANIZATION REPORTED IN TO ME, DURING THE

         9  1996 PERIOD, AND CURRENTLY THROUGH 1998--STARTING FROM

        10  FEBRUARY OF 1998 THROUGH TODAY, VISUAL J-PLUS-PLUS DOES

        11  REPORT IN TO ME.

        12           AT THE TIME THE DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED, IN OCTOBER

        13  OF 1997, IT DID NOT.

        14  Q.   DID MR. BUTTON TELL YOU HOW HE KNEW ABOUT THIS

        15  DOCUMENT?

        16  A.   HE MENTIONED--YES, HE DID.  HE MENTIONED THAT IT CAME

        17  UP AT HIS DEPOSITION.

        18  Q.   IN THIS CASE.

        19  A.   IN THIS CASE.  AND HE HAD INDICATED TO ME AT THE

        20  TIME, HE SAID TO ME THAT THAT WAS THE FIRST TIME HE HAD

        21  SEEN THE DOCUMENT AS WELL.

        22  Q.   DID YOU HAVE ANY DISCUSSIONS EITHER WITH TOM OR WITH

        23  JONATHAN AS TO HOW THE AUTHOR OF THIS DOCUMENT CAME TO

        24  VIEW THE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE OF J-PLUS-PLUS 6.0 AS TO KILL

        25  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA BY GROWING WHAT IS REFERRED TO HERE AS
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         1  THE POLLUTED JAVA MARKET?

         2  A.   NO, I DID NOT.

         3  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK NEXT AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 58

         4  AND ALSO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 470.  I'M GOING TO ASK YOU

         5  FIRST ABOUT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 58, WHICH IS THE ONE-PAGE

         6  DOCUMENT.

         7           (DOCUMENTS HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         8  Q.   BOTH OF THESE DOCUMENTS, I BELIEVE, ARE ALREADY IN

         9  EVIDENCE.

        10           FIRST, WITH RESPECT TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 58,

        11  THIS IS AN APRIL 14, 1997, E-MAIL FROM MR. SLIVKA TO

        12  MR. GATES ON THE SUBJECT OF JAVA REVIEW WITH YOU.

        13           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        14  A.   YES, I DO.

        15  Q.   FIRST, WERE YOU INVOLVED IN THAT JAVA REVIEW?

        16  A.   I BELIEVE I WAS, YES.

        17  Q.   WHO ELSE PARTICIPATED IN THAT JAVA REVIEW?

        18  A.   WELL, THERE WERE A FAIR NUMBER OF PEOPLE IN THE

        19  AUDIENCE.  BEN, I REMEMBER.  BEN MADE A PRESENTATION.

        20           CERTAINLY BILL GATES WAS THERE.

        21           I BELIEVE THAT PAUL MARITZ WAS THERE.

        22           I WOULD SUSPECT THAT JIM ALLCHIN WAS THERE.

        23           PROBABLY BRAD SILVERBERG, BUT I'M NOT CERTAIN.

        24           THERE WERE OVERALL ON THE ORDER OF ABOUT 20 OR SO

        25  PEOPLE IN THE MEETING.
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         1  Q.   NOW, MR. SLIVKA PURPORTS TO SET OUT TO MR. GATES

         2  MR. GATES'S ISSUES AND CONCERNS, THE SECOND ONE OF WHICH

         3  IS HOW DO WE WREST CONTROL OF JAVA AWAY FROM SUN.

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   I DO SEE THAT.

         6  Q.   AND IS THE GOAL OF WRESTING CONTROL OF JAVA AWAY FROM

         7  SUN RELATED, IN YOUR MIND, TO THE OBJECTIVE OF KILLING

         8  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA BY GROWING WHAT IS REFERRED TO BY

         9  MICROSOFT AS THE POLLUTED JAVA MARKET?

        10  A.   NO, NO.  I MEAN, LET ME BE CLEAR HERE.

        11           I NEVER TESTIFIED THAT KILLING CROSS-PLATFORM

        12  JAVA BY GROWING THE POLLUTED JAVA MARKET WAS AN OBJECTIVE

        13  OF MICROSOFT, FIRST OF ALL.  I TESTIFIED THAT A JUNIOR

        14  EMPLOYEE WROTE THIS DOCUMENT.

        15           IN TERMS OF THE OBJECTIVE THAT MR. SLIVKA WRITES

        16  HERE, WHICH, BY THE WAY ARE MR. SLIVKA'S WORDS, ARE I

        17  TALKED TO BEN ABOUT THIS, BEN SLIVKA, ABOUT THIS

        18  PARTICULAR E-MAIL AND, IN FACT, THIS PARTICULAR PHRASE, IN

        19  PREPARATION FOR MY TESTIMONY, THAT IS, AND BEN SAID TO ME

        20  THAT WHAT HE MEANT WHEN HE WROTE THOSE WORDS WAS, HOW CAN

        21  WE DO THINGS FOR OUR DEVELOPER CUSTOMERS TO GET THEM TO

        22  USE OUR IMPLEMENTATIONS OF JAVA INSTEAD OF OUR

        23  COMPETITOR'S, THAT IS, SUN.

        24  Q.   NOW LET ME TURN TO A DOCUMENT THAT YOU WROTE, WHICH

        25  IS EXHIBIT 460--OR 470, I'M SORRY.
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         1  A.   NO, THIS IS NOT A DOCUMENT THAT I WROTE, FIRST OF

         2  ALL.  I WANT TO BE CLEAR ABOUT THAT.

         3  Q.   IT'S NOT?

         4  A.   NO, IT'S NOT.

         5  Q.   WHO WROTE THIS DOCUMENT, SIR?

         6  A.   I DON'T RECALL.  IT IS A PRESENTATION THAT I BELIEVE

         7  I WAS PRESENT FOR, PERHAPS, SOME OF IT.  I DON'T RECALL

         8  WHETHER I HAVE BEEN--I WAS PRESENT FOR THE WHOLE

         9  PRESENTATION OR NOT.

        10           IT DOES HAVE MY NAME ON THE FOLDER, AND THAT'S

        11  ONE OF THE THINGS THAT LEADS ME TO BELIEVE THAT IT WAS A

        12  PRESENTATION PREPARED FOR ME.  IT'S FAIRLY COMMON--AS A

        13  SENIOR MANAGER AT MICROSOFT, IT'S FAIRLY COMMON FOR PEOPLE

        14  TO DO PRESENTATIONS ON MY BEHALF, AND I SUSPECT THAT THIS

        15  PRESENTATION WAS PREPARED IN THAT SENSE, ALTHOUGH, AS I

        16  SAY, I DON'T RECALL WHETHER I ACTUALLY SAW THE WHOLE

        17  PRESENTATION.  I DO RECALL SOME OF THE SLIDES.

        18  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET'S SEE IF I CAN UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE

        19  SAYING.

        20           FIRST, THIS IS A PRESENTATION, THAT YOU RECALL

        21  SEEING SOME OF THE SLIDES, AND YOU MAY OR MAY NOT HAVE

        22  SEEN THE OTHER SLIDES; CORRECT?

        23  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        24  Q.   AND THIS IS A PRESENTATION PRODUCED TO US FROM

        25  MICROSOFT'S FILES WITH YOUR NAME ON IT; CORRECT?
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         1  A.   YES.  IT HAS MY E-MAIL ADDRESS ON IT, YES.

         2  Q.   AND IT IS YOUR TESTIMONY, HOWEVER, THAT YOU DID NOT

         3  PREPARE THIS PRESENTATION, AND YOUR BEST JUDGMENT IS IT

         4  WAS SOMEBODY WHO PREPARED IT ON YOUR BEHALF.

         5  A.   NO, NO.  JUST TO BE CRYSTAL CLEAR, NOT ON MY BEHALF.

         6  SOMEBODY PREPARED IT TO GIVE TO ME, PERHAPS, AND OTHERS AS

         7  WELL, BUT CLEARLY I WOULD HAVE BEEN--I WOULD HAVE EXPECTED

         8  I WOULD HAVE BEEN IN THE ROOM.

         9  Q.   AND DO YOU REMEMBER WHETHER YOU WERE IN A ROOM WHEN

        10  THIS WAS PRESENTED?

        11  A.   WELL, I WAS CERTAINLY IN A ROOM WHEN IT WAS

        12  PRESENTED, AND I DO, AS I RECALL--AS I SAID, I DO RECALL

        13  THAT I HAD SEEN SOME OF THESE SLIDES, ALTHOUGH I CAN'T SAY

        14  FOR SURE THAT ALL OF THEM WERE PRESENTED TO ME.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO ONE SLIDE

        16  WHICH BEARS THE DOCUMENT PRODUCTION NUMBER ENDING IN 852

        17  IN THE RIGHT-HAND CORNER, AND IT'S HEADED "APPROACH."

        18  A.   YES, I SEE IT.

        19  Q.   AND THE SECOND ITEM SAYS, "DEFINE SERVICES WHICH ARE

        20  COMPELLING TO DEVELOPERS AND ARE ONLY AVAILABLE ON

        21  WINDOWS."

        22           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        23  A.   YES, I DO.

        24  Q.   WAS THAT AN APPROACH OF MICROSOFT?

        25  A.   YES, ABSOLUTELY.
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         1           AND IN THE PROCESS OF BUILDING OUR WINDOWS

         2  OPERATING SYSTEM, IT IS VERY FREQUENTLY OUR GOAL TO BUILD

         3  SERVICES THAT DEVELOPERS CARE ABOUT, AND BY AND LARGE, WE

         4  BUILD THOSE SERVICES FOR WINDOWS ONLY.

         5  Q.   AND THIS IS PART OF A PRESENTATION THAT IS HEADED

         6  "MICROSOFT API STRATEGY"; CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   WHILE WE ARE ON THIS DOCUMENT, LET ME ALSO ASK YOU TO

         9  LOOK AT TWO PAGES BACK, WHICH IS THE PAGE THAT ENDS 850.

        10  AND THE HEADING HERE IS "WHERE WE ARE TODAY."

        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        12  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.

        13  Q.   AND THE FIRST--THERE ARE THREE ITEMS ON THIS PAGE.

        14  THE FIRST ONE SAYS, "MICROSOFT HAS TAKEN THE LEAD IN

        15  HTML."

        16           THE SECOND ONE SAYS, "JAVA ENVIRONMENT DEEPLY

        17  ENTRENCHED"; CORRECT?

        18  A.   YES, IT DOES.

        19  Q.   AND THE THIRD ONE SAYS, "WINDOWS API INACCESSIBLE

        20  FROM JAVA."

        21           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        22  A.   YES, I DO.

        23  Q.   AND THEN UNDER THAT IT SAYS MICROSOFT HAS EXTENDED

        24  JAVA IN IE 3 WITH COM AND AWT EXTENSIONS AND DIRECTX, BUT

        25  WE NEED TO DO MORE.
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         2  A.   YES, I DO.

         3  Q.   FIRST, DO YOU AGREE WITH THE STATEMENT IN THIS

         4  DOCUMENT THAT WINDOWS API'S WERE INACCESSIBLE FROM JAVA AS

         5  OF THE TIME OF THIS DOCUMENT?

         6  A.   WELL, YES, YES, I DO, BUT I WOULD LIKE TO--OVERALL I

         7  DO AGREE WITH THAT.  I WOULD LIKE TO CLARIFY ONE THING.

         8           THE DOCUMENT HAS ON THE FRONT OF IT A DATE

         9  CREATED OF 6/2/95, WHICH--AS I UNDERSTAND WHAT'S IN THIS

        10  DOCUMENT SIMPLY CANNOT BE THE DATE THE DOCUMENT WAS

        11  WRITTEN.

        12           MANY THINGS REFERENCED IN THIS DOCUMENT DID NOT

        13  EXIST DURING 1995.

        14           HAVING REVIEWED THIS DOCUMENT IN PREPARATION FOR

        15  MY TESTIMONY, I WOULD PLACE IT SOMEWHERE IN THE FALL OF

        16  1996, AND I DON'T KNOW EXACTLY THE MONTH, BUT SOMETIME IN

        17  THE EARLY FALL OF 1996.

        18           SO, IF IN THAT CONTEXT, YES, IT WOULD BE CORRECT

        19  THAT, IN FACT, OVERALL THE WINDOWS API IS INACCESSIBLE TO

        20  JAVA--WAS INACCESSIBLE TO JAVA PROGRAMMERS WITH THE

        21  EXCEPTIONS OF THE THINGS THAT ARE NOTED BELOW HERE THAT

        22  ARE IN INTERNET EXPLORER 3, INCLUDING COM, WHICH IS A WAY

        23  FOR PROGRAMS ON WINDOWS TO TALK TO EACH OTHER AND WORK

        24  TOGETHER, AND THEN THE REMAINDER, DIRECTX, ET CETERA.

        25  Q.   AND WHEN YOU REFER TO AWT EXTENSIONS, WHAT ARE YOU
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         1  REFERRING TO?

         2  A.   I'M NOT CERTAIN.  THERE WERE, AS A PART OF OUR

         3  VARIOUS RELEASES OF JAVA, CLASS LIBRARIES THAT MICROSOFT

         4  ADDED, SPECIFICALLY FOR--TO ALLOW PROGRAMMERS TO TAKE

         5  ADVANTAGE OF WINDOWS FACILITIES, BUT I'M NOT SURE WHAT

         6  THAT SPECIFICALLY REFERRED TO PARTICULARLY IN THIS TIME

         7  FRAME.

         8  Q.   IT IS THE CASE THAT PART OF MICROSOFT'S APPROACH WAS

         9  TO ADD CLASS LIBRARIES TO JAVA; CORRECT, SIR?

        10  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        11  Q.   AND WHEN MICROSOFT ADDED CLASS LIBRARIES TO JAVA, DID

        12  THE RESULT CONSTITUTE WHAT MICROSOFT INTERNALLY REFERRED

        13  TO AS POLLUTED JAVA?

        14  A.   YES.  SOMETIMES IN THE SENSE--USING THE WORD

        15  "POLLUTED" IN THE SENSE OF GIVING THE DEVELOPERS THE

        16  CHANCE TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF NATIVE API'S, NATIVE WINDOWS

        17  API'S FROM JAVA, YES, SOMETIMES.  ONE OF THE APPROACHES

        18  THAT WE TOOK TO ALLOW DEVELOPERS TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF

        19  WINDOWS FACILITIES WAS TO ADD CLASS LIBRARIES TO JAVA.

        20  Q.   WAS ANOTHER APPROACH THAT MICROSOFT TOOK TO DEAL WITH

        21  JAVA WAS TO TRY FRAGMENT JAVA?

        22  A.   NOT GENERALLY.

        23           LET ME BE CRYSTAL CLEAR ABOUT THIS.  WE ARE--WE

        24  OFFER DEVELOPERS A CHOICE TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF FACILITIES

        25  OF WINDOWS, AND IN THE CONTEXT OF BUILDING WINDOWS
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         1  APPLICATIONS, AND IN AN ENVIRONMENT WHERE SUN, BECAUSE OF

         2  THEIR OVERALL CROSS-PLATFORM STRATEGY HAD TO HAVE

         3  DEVELOPERS ONLY WRITE CROSS-PLATFORM APPLICATIONS, ANY

         4  EXTENSIONS MADE TO JAVA, ANY CHOICES PROVIDED TO

         5  DEVELOPERS COULD BE REFERRED TO AS--AS FRAGMENTATION.

         6  Q.   MY QUESTION, AND I THINK YOU PARTIALLY ANSWERED IT,

         7  BUT NOT COMPLETELY, WAS WHETHER MICROSOFT AFFIRMATIVELY

         8  SOUGHT FRAGMENTATION WITH RESPECT TO JAVA.

         9  A.   WELL, CERTAINLY THERE ARE DOCUMENTS THAT DESCRIBE

        10  FRAGMENTATION IN A VARIETY OF FORMS.  THERE ARE CERTAINLY

        11  E-MAIL MESSAGES.

        12           PERSONALLY, AS THE PERSON WHO WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR

        13  OUR JAVA RELATIONSHIP WITH SUN, I SOUGHT TO TRY AND WORK

        14  TOGETHER WITH SUN ON MULTIPLE OCCASIONS TO DEFINE NEW

        15  FEATURES OF JAVA IN A WAY WHICH IS CONSISTENT WITH WHAT

        16  THEY WERE DOING AND OTHERS IN THE INDUSTRY.

        17           SO, PERSONALLY, I TRIED ON A NUMBER OF OCCASIONS

        18  TO WORK DIRECTLY WITH SUN IN THAT WAY.

        19           BUT AGAIN, IN THE CONTEXT THAT ANY KIND OF

        20  CHOICES PROVIDED TO A JAVA DEVELOPER IN THIS CONTEXT WHERE

        21  SUN WAS TRYING TO CREATE THIS UNFULFILLED REALITY THAT

        22  THEY CALLED "WRITE ONCE, RUN ANYWHERE," THE TERM

        23  "FRAGMENTATION" COULD BE APPLIED, AND WHAT IT REALLY MEANS

        24  IS DEVELOPER CHOICE.

        25  Q.   WELL, NOW, YOU SAY THAT FRAGMENTATION MEANS
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         1  DEVELOPMENT CHOICE.

         2           LET ME TRY TO PURSUE THAT A LITTLE BIT.

         3           FIRST, ARE YOU AWARE OF E-MAILS THAT YOU RECEIVED

         4  THAT ADVOCATED FRAGMENTATION AS A STRATEGY FOR MICROSOFT?

         5  A.   I'M NOT SURE WHETHER I RECEIVED E-MAILS THAT

         6  ADVOCATED FRAGMENTATION AS A STRATEGY FOR MICROSOFT.  I

         7  HAVE, IN THE PROCESS OF PREPARING MY TESTIMONY, SEEN

         8  E-MAILS THAT TALKED ABOUT HOW OUR COMPETITORS WERE OUT

         9  THERE FRAGMENTING THE JAVA MARKETPLACE, IN PARTICULAR

        10  NETSCAPE WITH THEIR INCOMPATIBLE JAVA IMPLEMENTATIONS, HOW

        11  THOSE INCOMPATIBILITIES WERE FRAGMENTING THE MARKETPLACE,

        12  AND HOW IN A SENSE THAT WAS GOOD FOR MICROSOFT.  I HAVE

        13  SEEN THAT.

        14           I'M NOT SURE IF I HAVE SEEN E-MAILS THAT SAY

        15  MICROSOFT SHOULD FRAGMENT THE JAVA MARKETPLACE.

        16  Q.   WELL, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

        17  EXHIBIT 1334, WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        18           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        19  Q.   AND I'M GOING TO DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE SECOND

        20  PAGE OF THE E-MAIL FROM MR. ALLCHIN, TO YOU AND

        21  MR. SLIVKA, MR. SILVERBERG AND OTHERS.

        22           DID YOU RECEIVE THIS E-MAIL, SIR?

        23  A.   YES, I DID.

        24  Q.   AND THIS IS DEALING WITH JAVA; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

        25  A.   IN PART, YES.
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         1  Q.   LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE NUMBERED

         2  PARAGRAPH, NUMBER FOUR, WHERE MR. ALLCHIN TALKS ABOUT AFC

         3  CONCERNS.

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   YES, I DO.

         6  Q.   AND CAN YOU EXPLAIN FOR THE RECORD WHAT THAT IS?

         7  A.   AFC MEANS APPLICATION FOUNDATION CLASSES.  IN THE

         8  LATE 1996 THROUGH THE MIDDLE OF 1997 PERIOD, MICROSOFT, A

         9  GROUP AT MICROSOFT HEADED BY BEN SLIVKA, CREATED A SET OF

        10  CROSS-PLATFORM CLASS LIBRARIES THAT WE WERE--THAT OUR

        11  FOCUS WAS TO BUILD A GREAT SET OF CROSS-PLATFORM CLASS

        12  LIBRARIES THAT RAN ON WINDOWS AS WELL AS OTHER PLATFORMS.

        13           AFC WAS A PROJECT THAT HAD A SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT

        14  OF RESOURCE ON IT, HOWEVER EVEN THOUGH BEN'S TEAM WAS VERY

        15  GOOD, THEY WERE NOT ABLE TO BUILD WHAT WE BELIEVE WAS A

        16  COMPETITIVE--A COMPETITIVE ANSWER.  IN OTHER WORDS, THE

        17  CLASSES THAT THEY CREATED WERE NOT COMPETITIVE WITH THOSE

        18  THAT WE FOUND WRITING TO NATIVE WINDOWS, SO EVENTUALLY

        19  BECAUSE WINDOWS--WE FOUND IT TO BE A BETTER TECHNICAL

        20  STRATEGY TO WRITE WINDOWS--TO HAVE CLASSES WHICH CALLED

        21  DIRECTLY INTO WINDOWS, AFC WAS EVENTUALLY ABANDONED.

        22  Q.   WELL, SIR, WHAT MR. ALLCHIN HERE WRITES IS "THE

        23  COMMENT ABOUT AFC CONCERNS ME, SINCE I THINK YOU ARE

        24  SAYING THAT WHATEVER FUNCTIONALITY IS ADDED BY SUN, YOU

        25  WILL ADD IN IN A COMPATIBLE WAY."
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         2  A.   I SEE WHAT HE'S WRITING, YES.

         3  Q.   AND YOU READ THIS BACK IN APRIL OF 1997; CORRECT,

         4  SIR, WHEN HE SENT IT TO YOU?

         5  A.   I DID.

         6  Q.   AND WHEN HE SENT IT TO YOU, DID YOU UNDERSTAND THAT

         7  HE WAS TALKING ABOUT THE FUNCTIONALITY ADDED BY SUN IN

         8  CONNECTION WITH JAVA?

         9  A.   NO, NOT NECESSARILY.  I DIDN'T--JIM'S PARAGRAPH HERE

        10  IS ACTUALLY FAIRLY CONFUSED, AND THAT'S NOT SURPRISING

        11  SINCE HE WASN'T DIRECTLY INVOLVED IN THIS EFFORT.  I THINK

        12  HE'S ADDING--HE'S TALKING ABOUT HOW WE EXTEND--HOW WE

        13  ADDED NEW THINGS TO AFC, AND I THINK HE'S SAYING THAT

        14  WE'RE GOING TO JUST--THAT HE IS, IN FACT--HE IS, IN FACT,

        15  QUESTIONING BEN'S STRATEGY OF EXTENDING AFC IN WAYS THAT

        16  ARE COMPATIBLE WITH WHAT SUN WAS DOING WITH THEIR

        17  CROSS-PLATFORM CLASS LIBRARIES.

        18  Q.   AND SUN'S CLASS PLATFORM LIBRARIES WERE JAVA; RIGHT?

        19  A.   THEY WERE--THE SUN'S CROSS-PLATFORM CLASS LIBRARIES

        20  ARE THE MECHANISM WITHIN JAVA THAT SUN PROVIDES FOR

        21  DEVELOPERS TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THEIR PLATFORM.

        22  Q.   RIGHT.

        23           AND SO, WHEN MR. ALLCHIN WRITES THIS, WHETHER

        24  HE'S CONFUSED OR NOT, ABOUT MR. SLIVKA'S OBJECTIVE BEING

        25  TO ADD FUNCTIONALITY IN A COMPATIBLE WAY TO SUN, HE'S
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         1  TALKING ABOUT ADDING FUNCTIONALITY IN A WAY THAT'S

         2  COMPATIBLE WITH SUN'S JAVA IMPLEMENTATION; CORRECT?

         3  A.   NO, LET ME CLARIFY THAT.

         4           WHAT HE'S SAYING, I BELIEVE, AS I UNDERSTAND THIS

         5  WHEN I READ IT, WAS THAT HE'S SAYING THAT WE ARE BUILDING

         6  OUR OWN SET OF CLASS LIBRARIES CALLED AFC.  THESE ARE

         7  MICROSOFT CLASS LIBRARIES.  WHY SHOULD WE INNOVATE IN

         8  THOSE IN THE SAME WAY THAT SUN IS INNOVATING.

         9           I READ THIS TO UNDERSTAND LET'S INNOVATE

        10  DIFFERENTLY.  LET'S GO AND PROVIDE DEVELOPERS WITH THE

        11  THINGS THAT WE UNDERSTAND DEVELOPERS NEED, NOT WHAT SUN

        12  THINKS DEVELOPERS NEED.

        13           WE HAVE A SEPARATE, AN ENTIRELY SEPARATE SET OF

        14  CLASSES THAT SUN SUPPLIES US, THE JAVA DOT STAR CLASSES AS

        15  WELL AS WHAT'S KNOWN IN OUR CONTRACT AS THE SUPPLEMENTAL

        16  CLASSES, AND WE HAVE A SET OF LEGAL OBLIGATIONS ASSOCIATED

        17  WITH OUR CONTRACT TO PRIDE COMPATIBILITY WITH THOSE.

        18           I DON'T SEE JIM IN THIS DOCUMENT REFERRING TO THE

        19  THINGS THAT WE HAVE AN OBLIGATION TO BE COMPATIBLE WITH

        20  SUN ON.

        21           I SEE HEM REFERRING TO MICROSOFT'S INNOVATION,

        22  AND JIM IS SAYING, "HEY, LET'S DO WHAT WE THINK OUR

        23  CUSTOMERS NEED.  LET'S INNOVATE IN AFC."

        24  Q.   HAVE YOU FINISHED?

        25  A.   YES.
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         1  Q.   TO THE EXTENT THAT YOU CAN, I WOULD LIKE YOU TO

         2  LISTEN TO MY QUESTION AND RESPOND AS DIRECTLY AS YOU CAN.

         3  IF YOU'VE GOT SOMETHING THAT YOU NEED TO SAY TO KEEP AN

         4  ANSWER FROM BEING MISLEADING, I WANT YOU TO SAY IT, BUT IF

         5  YOU CAN RESTRICT YOUR QUESTION--YOUR ANSWER TO MY QUESTION

         6  AS MUCH AS YOU CAN, IT WILL FACILITATE ME GETTING OUT OF

         7  HERE.

         8  A.   THAT'S OUR INTENT.

         9  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, WITH RESPECT TO WHAT MR. ALLCHIN WRITES

        10  HERE, WHEN HE SAYS, "I THINK YOU ARE SAYING THAT WHATEVER

        11  FUNCTIONALITY IS ADDED BY SUN, YOU WILL ADD IN A

        12  COMPATIBLE WAY."

        13           IT IS CLEAR THAT MR. ALLCHIN IS REFERRING TO

        14  FUNCTIONALITY ADDED BY SUN IN CONNECTION WITH THEIR JAVA

        15  FOUNDATION CLASSES; CORRECT?

        16  A.   YES, BUT TO CLARIFY, HE'S REFERRING--IN THE EARLIER

        17  PART OF THAT SENTENCE, HE'S REFERRING TO HOW WE ADD THAT

        18  IN ADDITION IN AFC.

        19  Q.   WHAT HE'S SAYING IS THAT EVERY TIME SUN ADDS MORE

        20  FUNCTIONALITY TO THEIR JAVA FOUNDATION CLASSES, MR. SLIVKA

        21  IS TRYING TO ADD THAT SAME FUNCTIONALITY TO MICROSOFT'S

        22  AFC IN A COMPATIBLE WAY; CORRECT?

        23  A.   YES, ESSENTIALLY.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, MR. ALLCHIN GOES ON TO SAY WITH RESPECT

        25  TO THAT, "THEY HAVE YOU ON A TREADMILL.  I DON'T
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         1  UNDERSTAND HOW THIS IS A WINNING COURSE.  I WOULD

         2  EXPLICITLY BE DIFFERENT JUST TO BE DIFFERENT."

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         4  A.   YES, I DO.

         5  Q.   AND DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT WHAT HE IS SAYING IS THAT

         6  HE IS RECOMMENDING TO MR. SLIVKA THAT HE NOT TRY TO

         7  PROCEED BY ADDING FUNCTIONALITY IN A COMPATIBLE WAY, THAT

         8  HE SHOULD BE DIFFERENT JUST TO BE DIFFERENT?

         9  A.   NO, NOT EXACTLY.

        10           AGAIN, YOU HAVE TO UNDERSTAND THE CONTEXT OF WHAT

        11  THIS PARAGRAPH HAS IN IT.  IT SAYS AFC.  THIS WAS

        12  TECHNOLOGY MICROSOFT WAS BUILDING FOR OUR CUSTOMERS, AND

        13  I--AS I INTERPRET THIS, JIM IS SAYING, "DON'T FOCUS ON

        14  JUST THE THINGS THAT SUN IS DOING.  IF YOU DO THAT, THEY

        15  HAVE US ON A TREADMILL.  WE NEED TO DO THINGS THAT ARE

        16  DIFFERENT."  AND HE USES THE EMPHASIS PHRASE "JUST TO BE

        17  DIFFERENT."  AND AS I INTERPRETED THAT WHEN I READ IT, IT

        18  MEANT SO THAT WE CAN HAVE DIFFERENTIATION VERSUS OUR

        19  COMPETITOR, SUN.

        20           IN OTHER WORDS, NOT JUST PROVIDING THE SAME OLD

        21  THING THAT OUR COMPETITOR IS PROVIDING.  WE NEED TO BE

        22  DIFFERENT.

        23           THE COURT:  WHY IS THAT DIFFERENT THAN WHAT

        24  MR. BOIES JUST SAID?

        25           THE WITNESS:  WELL, MR. BOIES WASN'T REFERRING--I
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         1  WANT TO BE CLEAR, YOUR HONOR, THAT WHAT MR. ALLCHIN WAS

         2  SAYING WHEN HE SAID THIS WAS IN REFERENCE TO ONE OF

         3  MICROSOFT'S TECHNOLOGIES KNOWN AS AFC.

         4           THE COURT:  OH, OKAY.  ALL RIGHT.  THAT'S WHAT I

         5  UNDERSTOOD IT TO BE.

         6           MR. BOIES:  RIGHT, EXACTLY.

         7  BY MR. BOIES:

         8  Q.   THAT AFC WAS MICROSOFT'S TECHNOLOGY, THE JAVA

         9  FOUNDATION CLASSES WAS SUN'S TECHNOLOGY; CORRECT?

        10  A.   YES, BUT NOT IN THIS TIME FRAME.

        11  Q.   WELL--

        12  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE.

        13  Q.   I JUST ASKED YOU A QUESTION A MINUTE AGO IN WHICH I

        14  SAID DID YOU INTERPRET THIS BY MR. ALLCHIN AS SAYING THAT

        15  EVERY TIME SUN ADDED FUNCTIONALITY TO THEIR JAVA

        16  FOUNDATION CLASSES, MR. SLIVKA WAS TRYING TO ADD THE SAME

        17  FUNCTIONALITY IN A COMPATIBLE WAY TO MICROSOFT'S AFC

        18  TECHNOLOGIES, AND YOU SAID THAT'S ESSENTIALLY RIGHT.

        19           DO YOU REMEMBER THAT?

        20  A.   NO, I'M SORRY, I'M NOT SURE IF THAT'S WHAT I RECALL.

        21           AND I JUST WANT--AND THIS MIGHT BE A SMALL POINT,

        22  BUT IN THIS TIME FRAME I BELIEVE SUN'S TECHNOLOGY--THEIR

        23  CLASS LIBRARY TECHNOLOGY WAS PRIMARILY KNOWN AS THE AWT

        24  CLASSES.

        25           SINCE THIS TIME FRAME, THEY HAVE ADOPTED
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         1  NEW--THEY CONTINUE TO INNOVATE AND COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT,

         2  AND THEY HAVE ADOPTED NEW CLASSES KNOWN AS JFC.

         3           AND I--YOU MAY HAVE SAID JFC BACK EARLIER, BUT I

         4  DON'T RECALL THAT.

         5  Q.   LET ME PUT IT IN YOUR WORDS AND SEE IF WE HAVE GOT AN

         6  AGREEMENT.

         7           YOU UNDERSTOOD MR. ALLCHIN TO BE SAYING TO

         8  MR. SLIVKA EVERY TIME SUN ADDED NEW FUNCTIONALITY TO SUN'S

         9  AWT CLASSES THAT MR. SLIVKA WAS TRYING TO ADD THE SAME

        10  FUNCTIONALITY TO MICROSOFT'S AFC CLASSES IN A COMPATIBLE

        11  WAY; CORRECT?

        12  A.   YES.

        13  Q.   OKAY.  AND THEN HE GOES ON TO SAY, "I WOULD BE

        14  EXPLICITLY DIFFERENT JUST TO BE DIFFERENT," AND HE'S

        15  TALKING ABOUT BEING DIFFERENT FROM THE AWT CLASSES;

        16  CORRECT?

        17  A.   YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        18  Q.   NOW, LET ME RETURN TO A COMMENT THAT YOU MADE ABOUT

        19  AN E-MAIL THAT YOU HAD SEEN ABOUT FRAGMENTATION BEING

        20  CAUSED BY OTHER COMPANIES, AND MICROSOFT BELIEVING THAT

        21  THAT WAS DESIRABLE FROM MICROSOFT'S STANDPOINT.

        22           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   NOW, MY QUESTION IS REGARDLESS OF WHERE THE

        25  FRAGMENTATION OF THE JAVA PLATFORM CAME FROM, DID
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         1  MICROSOFT BELIEVE THAT IT WAS IN MICROSOFT'S INTEREST TO

         2  HAVE THAT FRAGMENTATION OCCUR?

         3  A.   YES.  IN ESSENCE, THAT'S TRUE.

         4           IN THIS CASE, REMEMBER I WAS SAYING FRAGMENTATION

         5  IS REALLY A WORD, AND PARTICULARLY WITH JAVA, MEANING

         6  CHOICE, DIFFERENT CHOICES FOR DEVELOPERS.

         7           AND IT IS IN OUR INTEREST TO HAVE MORE CHOICES

         8  FOR DEVELOPERS, YES.

         9  Q.   WELL, SIR, ARE YOU SAYING THAT THE REASON THAT YOU

        10  WANTED FRAGMENTATION WAS TO JUST GIVE DEVELOPERS MORE

        11  CHOICE?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

        12  A.   NO, NOT ENTIRELY.

        13  Q.   OKAY.  PART OF THE REASON THAT YOU WANTED TO HAVE

        14  FRAGMENTATION OF THE JAVA PLATFORM IS BECAUSE THAT WOULD

        15  DISCOURAGE DEVELOPERS WRITING TO THE CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA

        16  TECHNOLOGY; CORRECT, SIR?

        17  A.   POTENTIALLY, YES.  PARTICULARLY IF, IN FACT, THE

        18  FRAGMENTATION IS COMING FROM OUR COMPETITORS, SAY, SUN AND

        19  NETSCAPE, EACH PROMOTING A DIFFERENT VARIATION OF JAVA.

        20  IF THERE WERE DIFFERENT IMPLEMENTATIONS OUT THERE, YES,

        21  THAT MIGHT DISCOURAGE DEVELOPERS FROM CHOOSING OUR

        22  COMPETITOR'S PLATFORM.

        23           INSTEAD THEY MIGHT PREFER TO CHOOSE OUR PLATFORM,

        24  WINDOWS.

        25  Q.   WELL, SIR, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT MR. SLIVKA'S
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         1  TESTIMONY AT THE--I BELIEVE HIS DEPOSITION IN THE SUN

         2  CASE.  IT IS DATED AUGUST 13, 1998.

         3           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         4  Q.   PAGE 203, LINES 2 THROUGH 11.

         5           AND MR. SLIVKA IS BEING ASKED ABOUT A QUOTATION

         6  IN AN E-MAIL THAT SAYS, QUOTE, "IF SUN AND WE DISAGREE ON

         7  THIS, AND DIVERGE IN THESE AREAS, AS LONG AS NETSCAPE

         8  DOESN'T BUDDY UP WITH SUN, THAT IS A SUPER OUTCOME FOR US

         9  (MORE FRAGMENTATION)."

        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        11  A.   I DO.

        12  Q.   AND MR. SLIVKA IS ASKED WHY WOULD THAT BE A SUPER

        13  OUTCOME, AND HE ANSWERS, "BECAUSE IT WOULD JUST CONFUSE

        14  JAVA DEVELOPERS ABOUT WHICH JAVA PLATFORM THEY SHOULD

        15  WRITE FOR."

        16                "QUESTION:  THAT WAS A GOOD THING FROM

        17           MICROSOFT'S PERSPECTIVE?

        18                ANSWER:  CORRECT."

        19           DO YOU AGREE WITH THE VIEW EXPRESSED BY

        20  MR. SLIVKA HERE?

        21  A.   YES, ESSENTIALLY I DO, AND IT'S CONSISTENT WITH MY

        22  PRIOR TESTIMONY.  IN THIS CASE BEN IS SAYING THIS IN THE

        23  NEGATIVE SENSE.  IN OTHER WORDS, JAVA DEVELOPERS WOULD BE

        24  CONFUSED IF SUN AND NETSCAPE COMPETE AGAINST EACH OTHER

        25  AND FRAGMENT THE JAVA PLATFORM OR PROVIDE--YOU COULD USE
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         1  THE WORD "PROVIDE" ALTERNATIVE CHOICES FOR THE JAVA

         2  PLATFORM.

         3           THAT'S THE NEGATIVE SENSE.

         4           THE WAY I WOULD PUT IT IS THAT IF SUN AND

         5  NETSCAPE ARE COMPETING WITH EACH OTHER AND IN THE PROCESS

         6  THEY ARE LESS EFFECTIVE IN DOING THE RIGHT THING FOR

         7  DEVELOPERS, AND YOU COMBINE THAT WITH THE FACT THAT

         8  MICROSOFT DOES A GOOD JOB ON DOING THE THINGS OUR

         9  DEVELOPERS WANT, DEVELOPERS WILL CHOOSE OUR PLATFORM.

        10  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, YOU SAY THIS IS CONSISTENT WITH WHAT YOU

        11  SAID.

        12           WHAT YOU HAD SAID WAS THE FRAGMENTATION WAS

        13  CAUSED BY NETSCAPE AND SUN DISAGREEING; CORRECT?  THAT'S

        14  WHAT YOU TOLD US EARLIER.

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   THIS IS TALKING ABOUT FRAGMENTATION CAUSED BY SUN AND

        17  MICROSOFT DISAGREEING; CORRECT, SIR?

        18  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT, ACTUALLY.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  SO, WHAT WE HAVE HERE IS SUN AND MICROSOFT

        20  DISAGREEING AND DIVERGING; CORRECT?

        21  A.   YES, IN THIS CASE.

        22  Q.   AND THAT IS VIEWED AS A SUPER OUTCOME FOR MICROSOFT

        23  BECAUSE IT WILL LEAD TO MORE FRAGMENTATION; CORRECT, SIR?

        24  A.   YES, IT WILL LEAD TO MORE CHOICES FOR DEVELOPERS.

        25           AND AGAIN, IF OUR--IF WE DO A BETTER JOB
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         1  SERVICING OUR CUSTOMERS THAN SUN DOES, DEVELOPERS WILL

         2  CHOOSE OUR PLATFORM INSTEAD OF SUN'S.

         3  Q.   YES, BUT THAT'S NOT WHAT MR. SLIVKA SAYS, IS IT, SIR?

         4  HE DOESN'T TALK ABOUT IT BEING A SUPER OUTCOME IF WE DO A

         5  BETTER JOB.  HE'S TALKING ABOUT DIVERGENCE AND

         6  FRAGMENTATION AS A SUPER OUTCOME BECAUSE IT CONFUSES JAVA

         7  DEVELOPERS ABOUT WHICH JAVA PLATFORM THEY SHOULD WRITE

         8  FOR; CORRECT?  THAT'S WHAT HE SAYS.

         9  A.   I SEE THAT THAT'S WHAT HE SAYS HERE.

        10           I, PERSONALLY--I PERSONALLY MAY DISAGREE WITH BEN

        11  ON THIS POINT, AND IN FACT WE SAW IN A PREVIOUS E-MAIL

        12  WHERE BEN WAS PROPOSING TO WORK TOGETHER WITH--OR TO DO

        13  THE SAME THING THAT SUN WAS, IN OTHER WORDS, NOT

        14  FRAGMENTING JAVA IN SOME AREAS.

        15           CERTAINLY I HAVE, IN DIRECTING MICROSOFT'S

        16  STRATEGY WITH JAVA, FOCUSED ON PROVIDING GREAT

        17  CROSS-PLATFORM SUPPORT CONSISTENT WITH SUN'S JAVA PLATFORM

        18  AS WELL AS GIVING DEVELOPERS CHOICES TO WRITE TO WINDOWS,

        19  AND IN MANY OCCASIONS PARTICULARLY DURING THE 1996 TIME

        20  FRAME, I SENT LETTERS AND E-MAILS TO ALAN BARATZ, THE

        21  PRESIDENT OF JAVASOFT, TRYING TO FIND WAYS THAT WE COULD

        22  WORK TOGETHER.

        23  Q.   WELL, YOU SAID IN THAT ANSWER SOMEWHERE THAT AT ONE

        24  POINT YOU HAD SEEN AN E-MAIL WHERE MR. SLIVKA HAD BEEN

        25  TALKING ABOUT TRYING TO BE COMPATIBLE WITH SUN.  THAT WAS
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         1  BACK IN 1997, OVER A YEAR BEFORE MR. SLIVKA'S DEPOSITION,

         2  AND IT WAS SOMETHING THAT MR. SLIVKA HAD BEEN TOLD BY

         3  MR. ALLCHIN WAS NOT A GOOD IDEA; CORRECT, SIR?

         4  A.   NO, THAT WAS NOT MY TESTIMONY.  REMEMBER--IF YOU

         5  RECALL, MR. ALLCHIN WAS REFERRING TO AFC, AND KEEPING

         6  MICROSOFT'S PRODUCT DOING THE SAME THINGS FOR--THAT SUN

         7  WAS DOING.

         8           WHAT MR. ALLCHIN WAS REFERRING TO, TO OUR

         9  PRODUCT.

        10  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, WHAT E-MAIL WERE YOU REFERRING TO?

        11  A.   THE ONE WE JUST REVIEWED, THE ONE THAT WAS DATED

        12  APRIL 22ND, AND I WAS SIMPLY MAKING A--

        13  Q.   WAIT A MINUTE.  APRIL 22ND, 1997?

        14  A.   LET ME JUST MAKE SURE I GOT THE DATE RIGHT.

        15           YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        16  Q.   AND THAT'S MR. ALLCHIN'S E-MAIL; RIGHT?

        17  A.   YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        18  Q.   AND THAT'S THE ONE THAT YOU JUST TOLD ME YOU WEREN'T

        19  REFERRING TO.

        20  A.   NO, NO.  I'M SORRY IF THAT WAS MISUNDERSTOOD.  THAT

        21  WAS THE ONE I MEANT THAT I WAS REFERRING TO.

        22  Q.   OKAY.  SO, WHEN YOU WERE SAYING IN RESPONSE TO MY

        23  QUESTION ABOUT MR. SLIVKA'S DEPOSITION TESTIMONY, ON

        24  AUGUST 13, 1998, THAT YOU HAD SEEN AN E-MAIL WHERE

        25  MR. SLIVKA HAD TAKEN A DIFFERENT POSITION--
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         1  A.   YES.

         2  Q.   --YOU WERE REFERRING TO THIS APRIL 22, 1997, E-MAIL

         3  FROM MR. ALLCHIN TO MR. SLIVKA AND YOU; CORRECT?

         4  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         5  Q.   AND IN THAT E-MAIL, MR. ALLCHIN TELLS MR. SLIVKA THAT

         6  HE DOESN'T THINK IT'S A GOOD IDEA FOR MR. SLIVKA TO

         7  CONTINUE TO TRY TO BE COMPATIBLE; CORRECT?

         8  A.   MR. ALLCHIN IS SAYING, TO REPEAT WHAT I SAID

         9  PREVIOUSLY, THAT WITH REGARDS TO MICROSOFT'S PRODUCT AWT,

        10  JIM DIDN'T THINK IT WAS GOOD FOR US TO FOCUS AND DO THE

        11  SAME THINGS THAT SUN WAS DOING.  HE THOUGHT THAT WE SHOULD

        12  BE DOING THINGS THAT WE THOUGHT WERE RIGHT FOR OUR

        13  CUSTOMERS.

        14  Q.   OR IN HIS WORDS, YOU SHOULD BE DIFFERENT JUST TO BE

        15  DIFFERENT.

        16  A.   YES, THOSE ARE HIS WORDS.

        17  Q.   NOW LET ME GO BACK TO MR. SLIVKA'S TESTIMONY.

        18           HAVE YOU HEARD OTHER PEOPLE THAN MR. SLIVKA SAY

        19  THAT IT WAS A DESIRABLE OUTCOME FOR MICROSOFT IF THERE WAS

        20  FRAGMENTATION OF THE JAVA PLATFORM?

        21  A.   I DON'T RECALL SPECIFICS, BUT AS I SAID, THERE'S A

        22  NUMBER OF DIFFERENT E-MAILS, MANY OF WHICH REFER TO OUR

        23  COMPETITORS FRAGMENTING JAVA.

        24  Q.   AND JUST TO BE CLEAR, MR. SLIVKA IS HERE TALKING

        25  ABOUT MICROSOFT FRAGMENTING JAVA; CORRECT, SIR?
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         1  A.   YES, MR. SLIVKA HERE.  AND AGAIN, I WOULD INTERPRET

         2  THIS AS MR. SLIVKA SAYING THAT WE SHOULD PROVIDE

         3  DEVELOPERS WITH ALTERNATIVE CHOICES.

         4  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.

         5           NOW, ONE OF THE, QUOTE, ALTERNATIVE CHOICES THAT

         6  MICROSOFT TRIED TO PROVIDE DEVELOPERS WITH RESPECT TO JAVA

         7  WAS TO NOT SUPPORT JDK 1.2; CORRECT, SIR?

         8  A.   I'M SORRY?  COULD YOU ASK THE QUESTION AGAIN?

         9  Q.   YES.

        10           DO YOU KNOW WHAT JDK 1.2 IS?

        11  A.   YES, I DO.

        12  Q.   AND THAT WAS A JAVA RELEASE BY SUN; CORRECT?

        13  A.   YES, IN DECEMBER OF 1998.

        14  Q.   AND MICROSOFT DID NOT SUPPORT THAT; CORRECT?

        15  A.   MICROSOFT HAS NO CHOICE TO SUPPORT THAT.

        16           SUN--WE HAVE A CONTRACT WITH SUN, A CONTRACT WE

        17  PAID THEM $3.5 MILLION A YEAR, AND ONE OF THE WAYS THAT

        18  SUN IS VIOLATING THAT CONTRACT IS THEY'VE NEVER DELIVERED

        19  US A SINGLE RELEASE OF JDK 1.2.  THEY HAVEN'T DELIVERED US

        20  ANY OF THE BETAS, AND THEY NEVER DELIVERED US THE FINAL,

        21  SO WE'VE HAD NO CHOICE AT ALL TO PROVIDE JDK 1.2

        22  CAPABILITIES TO OUR CUSTOMERS.

        23  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT YOU WANTED TO

        24  SUPPORT JDK 1.2, AND YOU WOULD HAVE SUPPORTED IT IF SUN

        25  HAD JUST GIVEN IT TO YOU?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?
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         1  A.   YES, ESSENTIALLY.

         2           NOW, LET ME QUALIFY THAT.  WE HAVE A CONTRACT

         3  WITH SUN.  AND IN THAT CONTRACT WE HAVE A SET OF--THERE IS

         4  A SET OF REQUIREMENTS SUN NEEDS TO MEET IN TERMS OF

         5  DELIVERY OF TECHNOLOGY TO US, AND THERE ARE A SET OF

         6  OBLIGATIONS THAT WE HAVE ASSOCIATED WITH THE DELIVERING

         7  THAT BACK TO THE MARKETPLACE.

         8           AND AS A PART OF THAT CONTRACT, YES, WE WOULD

         9  DELIVER IF SUN MEETS THEIR OBLIGATIONS; YES, WE WOULD

        10  DELIVER JDK 1.2, WHICH IS NOW KNOWN AS JAVA 2

        11  FUNCTIONALITY, INTO THE MARKET.

        12           HOWEVER, AS I SAID, SUN HAS NOT DELIVERED THAT,

        13  IN VIOLATION OF THEIR CONTRACT.

        14  Q.   WELL, SIR, THIS WAS LITIGATED OUT IN CALIFORNIA;

        15  CORRECT?

        16  A.   IT'S IN THE PROCESS OF LITIGATION IN CALIFORNIA.

        17  Q.   AND THE JUDGE HAS NOT AGREED WITH YOUR POSITION, SO

        18  FAR AT LEAST; CORRECT?

        19  A.   THERE HAVE BEEN SOME RULINGS THAT THE JUDGE HAS

        20  AGREED WITH US AND SOME RULINGS THE JUDGE HAS NOT AGREED

        21  WITH US ON.

        22  Q.   ON THIS ISSUE THAT WE ARE TALKING ABOUT HERE.

        23  A.   NO, SIR, THIS HAS NOT BEEN RULED ON BY THE JUDGE.

        24  Q.   ARE YOU TELLING ME, SIR, THAT--AND I'M JUST ASKING

        25  YOU BECAUSE THIS ISN'T CENTRAL TO THIS CASE, BUT ARE YOU
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         1  TELLING ME THAT THE JUDGE HAS NOT RULED AS TO WHETHER OR

         2  NOT YOU HAD AN OBLIGATION TO DISTRIBUTE JDK 1.2?

         3  A.   YES, THAT'S WHAT I'M TELLING YOU.

         4           HE ALSO HAS NOT RULED--THERE IS CURRENTLY A

         5  SUMMARY JUDGMENT MOTION IN FRONT OF HIM REQUESTING SUN TO

         6  MEET THEIR COMMITMENTS TO DELIVER JDK 1.2, AND THAT

         7  DOESN'T GO TO HEARING UNTIL MARCH, I BELIEVE.

         8  Q.   IN ORDER TO MOVE THIS ALONG, WE WILL MARK THE

         9  DECISIONS BY THE JUDGE, AND THE RECORD CAN SHOW WHAT THE

        10  JUDGE HAS RULED.

        11           LET ME RETURN, THOUGH, TO YOUR ASSERTION THAT

        12  MICROSOFT REALLY WANTED TO SUPPORT JDK 1.2 BUT WAS

        13  PREVENTED FROM DOING SO BY WHAT YOU HAVE CLAIMED TO BE

        14  SUN'S INEXPLICABLE REFUSAL TO GIVE IT TO YOU, AND IN THAT

        15  CONNECTION, LET ME ASK TO YOU LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

        16  253.

        17           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        18  Q.   THE EXHIBIT IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.  I WANT TO DIRECT

        19  YOUR ATTENTION TO THE E-MAIL AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE

        20  FROM MR. GATES, DATED MAY 14, 1997, IN PARTICULAR TO THE

        21  NEXT-TO-THE-LAST LINE WHERE HE SAYS, "I AM HARDCORE ABOUT

        22  NOT"--NOT IS ALL CAPITALIZED--"SUPPORTING JDK 1.2."

        23  NEXT-TO-LAST-LINE FROM THE BOTTOM.

        24  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.

        25  Q.   NOW, WHEN SOMEBODY IN MICROSOFT SAYS THEY ARE
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         1  HARDCORE ABOUT SOMETHING, THAT MEANS THEY REALLY, REALLY

         2  MEAN IT; RIGHT, SIR?

         3  A.   PERHAPS.  HOWEVER, IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE, IT'S

         4  INTERESTING--NO, IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE, IF YOU LOOK AT

         5  THE NEXT SENTENCE IN THE NEXT PARAGRAPH IT SAYS, "IF YOU

         6  THINK WE SHOULD SUPPORT JDK 1.2, IT'S OKAY."  SO THAT

         7  DOESN'T SEEM--

         8  Q.   JUST FINISH THE REST OF THE SENTENCE, MR. MUGLIA, IF

         9  YOU ARE GOING TO READ THE DOCUMENT.  WHAT DOES THE REST OF

        10  THE SENTENCE SAY?

        11  A.   I REALLY--

        12  Q.   BUT YOU?

        13  A.   "BUT YOU WILL REALLY HAVE TO EXPLAIN WHY AND WHERE IT

        14  STOPS."

        15  Q.   RIGHT.  NOW, WHEN MR. GATES SAYS TO SOMEBODY IN YOUR

        16  COMPANY THAT HE IS HARDCORE ABOUT NOT SUPPORTING

        17  SOMETHING, THAT'S GENERALLY TAKEN PRETTY SERIOUSLY; WOULD

        18  YOU AGREE WITH THAT?

        19  A.   WE TAKE BILL VERY SERIOUSLY IN GENERAL.

        20  Q.   YEAH, I BET YOU DO.

        21  A.   BUT IN THIS CASE--

        22  Q.   BUT PARTICULARLY WHEN HE SAYS HE'S HARDCORE ABOUT

        23  SOMETHING, YOU TAKE HIM PARTICULARLY SERIOUSLY, DO YOU

        24  NOT, SIR?

        25  A.   WELL, I CERTAINLY TAKE HIM LESS SERIOUSLY WHEN A

                                                           47

         1  SENTENCE LATER HE SAYS IT'S OKAY IF WE DON'T DO SOMETHING.

         2  Q.   WELL, WHEN YOU SAY HE SAYS IT'S OKAY, SIR--AND THE

         3  DOCUMENT, I GUESS, SPEAKS FOR ITSELF.

         4           LET ME JUST TRY TO PUT IT THIS WAY, MR. MUGLIA.

         5           HAVE YOU SEEN ANY DOCUMENTS FROM MR. GATES IN

         6  WHICH MR. GATES SAYS OR SUGGESTS IN ANY WAY THAT HE WOULD

         7  REALLY LIKE TO SUPPORT JDK 1.2 BUT HE CAN'T BECAUSE SUN

         8  WON'T GIVE IT TO HIM?

         9  A.   I HAVE HAD CONVERSATIONS WITH BILL THAT HE'S UNHAPPY

        10  THAT SUN HASN'T GIVEN US JDK 1.2.  NO, I'VE NEVER SEEN HIM

        11  SAY HE WOULD LIKE TO SUPPORT IT, BUT YES, I HAVE SEEN HIM

        12  SAY HE WOULD LIKE TO GET IT FROM SUN.

        13           AND FRANKLY, REALLY THE REASON IS BECAUSE WE

        14  WOULD LIKE TO BE ABLE TO MOVE FORWARD WITH OUR CONTRACT

        15  THAT WE HAVE WITH THEM AND DELIVER THIS TECHNOLOGY TO THE

        16  MARKETPLACE.

        17           IN THIS PARTICULAR CASE--FIRST OF ALL, I NEVER

        18  RECEIVED THIS E-MAIL TO BEGIN WITH, BUT IN THIS PARTICULAR

        19  CASE, EXACTLY WHAT BILL MEANT BY THE WORD "SUPPORT" ISN'T

        20  REALLY CLEAR, AND WE HAVE, AS A PART OF OUR CONTRACT WITH

        21  SUN, A SET OF OBLIGATIONS TO DELIVER THIS TECHNOLOGY TO

        22  THE MARKETPLACE IF WE CHOOSE TO INCLUDE IT IN OUR

        23  PRODUCTS, SO I'M NOT CERTAIN EXACTLY WHAT BILL WAS

        24  REFERRING TO WHEN HE SAID "SUPPORT."  LET ME GIVE YOU AN

        25  EXAMPLE OF HOW HE COULD HAVE BEEN MEANING THAT.
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         1           THE COURT:  MR. MUGLIA, THERE IS NO QUESTION

         2  PENDING.  I READ IT AS SAYING HE DOESN'T LIKE THE IDEA OF

         3  SUPPORTING IT.

         4           THE WITNESS:  OKAY.

         5           THE COURT:  I DON'T THINK IT COULD BE READ ANY

         6  OTHER WAY.

         7           THE WITNESS:  I UNDERSTAND THAT, YOUR HONOR.

         8           THE COURT:  MAYBE HE CHANGED HIS MIND, BUT THAT'S

         9  WHAT HE IS SAYING HERE.

        10           THE WITNESS:  I UNDERSTAND THAT, YOUR HONOR.

        11           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        12           THE WITNESS:  IF I COULD CLARIFY ONE THING,

        13  PLEASE, THOUGH, WHICH IS THAT OUR CONTRACT WITH SUN ALLOWS

        14  US TO DELIVER THE JAVA TECHNOLOGY AS A PART OF PRODUCTS

        15  LIKE WINDOWS, AND ALSO IT LETS US PUT IT ON THINGS LIKE

        16  OUR WEB SITE.

        17           NOW, WHEN BILL SAYS "SUPPORT," WHAT HE MEANS IS

        18  BUILD IT INTO WINDOWS.  UP TO THIS POINT, IN JDK 1.1, WE

        19  ACTUALLY TOOK THE TECHNOLOGY FROM SUN.  WE TOOK OUR

        20  COMPETITOR'S API'S AND PUT IT IN WINDOWS.  WE HAVE THE

        21  ABILITY AS A PART OF OUR CONTRACT--

        22           THE COURT:  NO, NO.  STOP.  THERE IS NO QUESTION

        23  PENDING.  WHEN THE TIME COMES FOR YOUR COUNSEL TO TAKE YOU

        24  ON REDIRECT EXAMINATION, YOU MAY THEN OFFER THIS

        25  INFORMATION.
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         1           THE WITNESS:  I UNDERSTAND, YOUR HONOR.

         2           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL TAKE A 10-MINUTE

         3  RECESS.

         4           HOW LONG DO YOU THINK YOU WILL BE FROM NOW ON,

         5  MR. BOIES?

         6           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I'M GOING TO TRY TO

         7  FINISH IN ABOUT AN HOUR AND A HALF.

         8           THE COURT:  OKAY.

         9           ANY IDEA, MR. BURT, ABOUT REDIRECT?

        10           MR. BURT:  I WOULD SAY, YOUR HONOR, SOMEWHERE

        11  BETWEEN 30 AND 60 MINUTES.

        12           THE WITNESS:  SO, WE ARE LOOKING AT 5:00 TONIGHT;

        13  RIGHT?

        14           MR. BOIES:  YES.

        15           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        16           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        17           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT, MR. BOIES.

        18  BY MR. BOIES:

        19  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, I WOULD LIKE TO GO BACK TO THE SUN

        20  MICROSOFT CASE FOR JUST A MOMENT AND SEE IF I CAN CLARIFY

        21  WHAT WE WERE TALKING ABOUT BEFORE.

        22  A.   OKAY.

        23  Q.   IN THE SUN CASE, SUN, WHETHER YOU AGREE WITH THEM OR

        24  NOT, ALLEGES THAT MICROSOFT VIOLATED THE CONTRACT BY NOT

        25  SHIPPING JNI WITH JDK 1.1; CORRECT?
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         1  A.   YES, THAT'S WHAT THEY ALLEGE.

         2  Q.   AND SUN TAKES THE POSITION THAT THEY DID NOT GIVE YOU

         3  JDK 1.2 BECAUSE YOU WERE NOT, IN THEIR VIEW, PROPERLY

         4  SHIPPING JDK 1.1?

         5  A.   YES, I BELIEVE THAT IS THEIR POSITION.

         6  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, LET ME TURN TO THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN

         7  JAVA AND NETSCAPE, WHICH IS SOMETHING THAT WE TOUCHED ON

         8  RIGHT AT THE BEGINNING.

         9           AM I CORRECT THAT IN ADDITION TO WHATEVER

        10  INDEPENDENT COMPETITIVE THREAT NETSCAPE POSED FOR

        11  MICROSOFT, MICROSOFT BELIEVED THAT NETSCAPE WAS ALSO A

        12  COMPETITIVE THREAT BECAUSE IT WAS A DISTRIBUTION VEHICLE

        13  FOR SUN'S JAVA?

        14  A.   NO, I WOULDN'T SAY THAT.  NETSCAPE'S BROWSER HAS AS

        15  AN IMPORTANT FEATURE OF JAVA, A FEATURE THAT CUSTOMERS

        16  HAVE COME TO EXPECT IN INTERNET BROWSER, SO IT WAS

        17  IMPORTANT FOR US IN OUR BROWSER TO HAVE JAVA AS WELL.

        18  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 514 THAT

        19  IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        20           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        21  Q.   AND I'M PARTICULARLY INTERESTED IN MR. MARITZ'S

        22  E-MAIL DATED JULY 14, 1997, THAT IS AT THE TOP OF THE

        23  PAGE.

        24           AND IN THE NEXT-TO-LAST SENTENCE OF THIS

        25  ONE-PARAGRAPH E-MAIL, MR. MARITZ WRITES THAT "IF WE LOOK
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         1  FURTHER AT JAVA/JFC BEING OUR MAJOR THREAT, THEN NETSCAPE

         2  IS THE MAJOR DISTRIBUTION VEHICLE."

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         4  A.   I SEE THOSE WORDS, YES.

         5  Q.   AND WHEN MR. MARITZ REFERS TO JAVA/JFC, HE IS

         6  REFERRING TO WHAT YOU HAVE REFERRED TO AS THE

         7  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA OF SUN; CORRECT?

         8  A.   YES, HE IS.

         9  Q.   AND HE IS SAYING THAT NETSCAPE IS THE MAJOR

        10  DISTRIBUTION VEHICLE FOR THAT; CORRECT?

        11  A.   THAT'S WHAT HE APPEARS TO SAY HERE, YES.

        12  Q.   DO YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

        13  A.   NO.  IN MANY WAYS I DON'T.  FIRST OF ALL, I NEVER

        14  TALKED TO PAUL ABOUT THIS MAIL BECAUSE I WASN'T ON IT IN

        15  ANY WAY, SO THE ONLY TIME I SAW IT WAS IN REVIEWING FOR MY

        16  TESTIMONY, SO I DON'T KNOW WHAT WAS IN HIS HEAD HERE.

        17           THE REASON WHY I WOULD NOT UNDERSTAND THIS IS WE

        18  ALSO SHIP JAVA'S--SUN'S JAVA TECHNOLOGY INSIDE OUR BROWSER

        19  AS WELL.

        20  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT ANOTHER

        21  DOCUMENT AND SEE IF THAT MAKES IT CLEARER.

        22           LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 52

        23  WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        24           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        25  Q.   AND THIS IS HEADED "NC AND JAVA CHALLENGE" AND IS A
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         1  MEETING WITH MR. GATES ON JANUARY 6TH, 1997.

         2  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT.  I MEAN, THERE MAY--I BELIEVE ON

         3  JANUARY 6TH, 1997, THERE WAS A PRESENTATION DONE TO SENIOR

         4  PEOPLE IN THE COMPANY, NOT ALL OF WHOM WERE EXECUTIVES,

         5  BUT SENIOR EXECUTIVE PEOPLE IN THE COMPANY.  I BELIEVE

         6  THAT THESE SLIDES ARE THAT BECAUSE I BELIEVE IT SAYS BILL

         7  IS DOING AN OVERVIEW, SO I WOULDN'T SEE THAT AS A

         8  PRESENTATION TO MR. GATES.

         9  Q.   WELL, MR. GATES IS EITHER MAKING THIS PRESENTATION OR

        10  THE PRESENTATION IS BEING MADE TO HIM; IS THAT FAIR?

        11  A.   NO, IT'S NOT.  LET ME EXPLAIN.

        12           BILL--TYPICALLY, WHEN BILL DOES A TALK LIKE THIS,

        13  HE WILL OFTEN DO IT WITHOUT SLIDES, SO HE MAY HAVE DONE A

        14  PRESENTATION.  IN OTHER WORDS, HE MAY HAVE TALKED TO A

        15  NUMBER OF PEOPLE.  THERE WERE PROBABLY SEVERAL HUNDRED

        16  PEOPLE IN THE ROOM, AND HE DID NOT DO THAT NECESSARILY

        17  FROM THESE SLIDES, EXCEPT, PERHAPS, THIS ONE OVERVIEW

        18  SLIDE.

        19           THE OTHER PEOPLE IN THERE, JIMALL AND BENS, I

        20  BELIEVE, DID MAKE A PRESENTATION TO EVERYONE IN THE ROOM

        21  THAT I THINK IS REPRESENTED FROM THESE SLIDES.

        22           THE COURT:  DID YOU THINK HE WAS PRESENT?

        23           THE WITNESS:  YES, HE WAS.

        24           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        25  BY MR. BOIES:
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         1  Q.   AND THIS, IF WE TURN TO THE SECOND PAGE, TALKS ABOUT

         2  SUN AWT PROVIDING A BASE CROSS-PLATFORM API.

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         4  A.   YES, I DO.

         5  Q.   AND AT THE BOTTOM OF THE SECOND PAGE THERE IS

         6  SOMETHING THAT'S CALLED "RESPONSE SUMMARY."

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   AND THE FIRST RESPONSE THERE IS, "INCREASED IE SHARE,

        10  INTEGRATE WITH WINDOWS."

        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        12  A.   YES, I DO.

        13  Q.   AND DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THIS IS SAYING THAT

        14  INCREASING INTERNET EXPLORER'S SHARE IS A RESPONSE, AT

        15  LEAST IN PART, TO THE THREAT POSED BY SUN'S AWT

        16  CROSS-PLATFORM API?

        17  A.   YES, IN CONJUNCTION WITH OTHER COMPETITIVE API'S,

        18  INCLUDING NETSCAPE'S.  NETSCAPE IS ALSO--NAVIGATOR NET-ONE

        19  IS LISTED AS THE SECOND BULLET POINT IN THE TOP SLIDE, AND

        20  THE RESPONSE FOR INCREASING IE'S SHARE IS ALSO COMPETITIVE

        21  WITH THAT.

        22  Q.   YES.  INCREASING INTERNET EXPLORER'S SHARE IS A

        23  RESPONSE BOTH TO NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR AND TO SUN'S

        24  CROSS-PLATFORM THREAT; CORRECT?

        25  A.   YES, IN THE SENSE THAT THE INTERNET EXPLORER FEATURE
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         1  OF WINDOWS HAS API'S IN IT THAT ARE COMPETITIVE WITH JAVA,

         2  YES, IN THAT SENSE.

         3  Q.   INTERNET EXPLORER DISTRIBUTES WHAT MIGHT NEUTRALLY BE

         4  CALLED MICROSOFT'S VERSION OF JAVA OR, IN SOME OF THE

         5  MICROSOFT DOCUMENTS, WHAT IS CALLED "POLLUTED JAVA";

         6  CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   AND DID YOU BELIEVE THAT DISTRIBUTING MICROSOFT'S

         9  VERSION OF JAVA THROUGH INTERNET EXPLORER, THE MORE THAT

        10  WAS DONE, THE MORE OF A COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE MICROSOFT

        11  HAD VIS-A-VIS SUN'S JAVA?

        12  A.   NO, I DIDN'T SEE THAT AT ALL, BECAUSE THE VERSION OF

        13  JAVA THAT'S TYPICALLY RUN--APPLETS THAT ARE TYPICALLY RUN

        14  AS A PART OF THE BROWSER, REALLY, TYPICALLY ARE JUST

        15  CROSS-PLATFORMED.  THEY TYPICALLY JUST STICK WITH THE

        16  API'S THAT SUN USES.

        17           WE DISTRIBUTE--IN OUR JOB IN WINDOWS, THERE IS

        18  THE ABILITY TO GET TO MORE OF THE WINDOWS API, AND SO I

        19  SAW THAT JAVA IN WINDOWS OVERALL COMPETED WITH SUN, YES.

        20  BUT THE JAVA IN RESPECT TO THE BROWSER, TYPICALLY,

        21  DEVELOPERS WERE JUST STICKING WITH SUN'S CROSS-PLATFORM

        22  API'S WHEN RUNNING APPLETS.

        23  Q.   I'M NOT SURE EXACTLY WHAT THAT ANSWER MEANT, BUT LET

        24  ME PURSUE IT BY SHOWING YOU A DOCUMENT THAT YOU BELIEVED,

        25  I THINK, THAT YOU, AT LEAST, SAW PARTS OF, WHICH IS THE
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         1  DOCUMENT THAT IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 470 THAT YOU HAVE IN

         2  FRONT OF YOU.  THAT'S THE PRESENTATION FROM THE FALL OF

         3  1996?

         4  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.

         5  Q.   IT IS THE ONE THAT BEARS YOUR NAME ON IT AND SAYS,

         6  "PRESENTATION APA STRATEGY FINAL"?

         7  A.   YES, I SEE IT.

         8  Q.   AND IF YOU TURN TO THE PAGE THAT BEARS THE DOCUMENT

         9  PRODUCTION NUMBER ENDING IN 862 THAT IS HEADED

        10  "COMPETITIVE SUMMARY," IS THIS A SLIDE THAT YOU SAW, SIR?

        11  A.   YES, I BELIEVE SO.

        12  Q.   AND IT SAYS THE THIRD ITEM, "MICROSOFT'S ABILITY TO

        13  LEAD JAVA DEVELOPERS IS LARGELY DRIVEN AND LIMITED BY IE'S

        14  SHARE."

        15           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        16  A.   YES, I DO.

        17  Q.   DID YOU AGREE WITH THIS STATEMENT BACK IN THE FALL OF

        18  1996?

        19  A.   YES, IN A COMPLEX WAY, WHICH IS THAT WE ARE--ONE OF

        20  THE THINGS THAT INTERNET EXPLORER HAS IS IT LET'S

        21  DEVELOPERS BUILD HTML-BASED APPLICATIONS.  AND ONE OF THE

        22  KEY WAYS THAT WE SAW OURSELVES COMPETING WITH SUN WAS IN

        23  GETTING DEVELOPERS TO WRITE TO HTML INSTEAD OF SUN'S

        24  JAVA--SUN'S JAVA PLATFORM.

        25           ESPECIALLY IN THIS TIME FRAME.  PEOPLE SAW THOSE
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         1  AS ALTERNATIVES.  THEY COULD JUST WRITE A WEB PAGE, OR

         2  THEY COULD WRITE A JAVA APPLET.  THEY ESSENTIALLY PRESENT

         3  THE SAME FUNCTIONALITY IN DIFFERENT WAYS.  AND BY LEADING

         4  AN HTML, WE SAW OURSELVES ABLE TO COMPETE AGAINST JAVA AND

         5  SUN.

         6  Q.   ISN'T IT THE CASE, SIR, THAT YOU WANTED TO INCREASE

         7  INTERNET EXPLORER'S SHARE BECAUSE INTERNET EXPLORER WAS

         8  DISTRIBUTING MICROSOFT'S API EXTENSIONS THAT YOU WANTED

         9  DEVELOPERS TO WRITE TO?

        10  A.   NO, SIR, REALLY, IT WASN'T, IN THE SENSE THAT

        11  WINDOWS--ANY TIME A CUSTOMER HAS WINDOWS ON THEIR MACHINE,

        12  AN UPDATED COPY OF WINDOWS, THE MICROSOFT JAVA VM WITH ALL

        13  OF THE EXTENSIONS ARE THERE.  SO, IF DEVELOPERS WANT TO

        14  BUILD AN APPLICATION TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THAT, THEY COULD

        15  EITHER USE WHAT'S JUST IN WINDOWS, OR THEY HAVE THE

        16  ABILITY TO DISTRIBUTE THEIR OWN VIRTUAL MACHINE WHICH HAVE

        17  (SIC) OUR EXTENSIONS IN IT.

        18  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT PAGE OF THE SAME DOCUMENT

        19  THAT ENDS IN 887, SIR.  IT IS THE PAGE THAT IS HEADED "HOW

        20  DOES MICROSOFT WIN."

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   AND DO YOU SEE THE ITEM THAT SAYS, "REQUIRES

        23  LEADERSHIP IN BROWSER MARKET SHARE, DEVELOPERS TARGET

        24  MICROSOFT API EXTENSIONS"?  DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        25  A.   YES, I DO.
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         1           I ALSO SEE THE BULLET POINT AT THE VERY TOP THAT

         2  SAYS "REDEFINE THE PLATFORM."  THE WAY I INTERPRETED THE

         3  SLIDE WHEN I SAW IT WAS THE WAY WE WIN WAS NOT TO COMPETE

         4  HEAD-ON AGAINST SUN WITH CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA, BUT,

         5  INSTEAD, TO REDEFINE A NEW PLATFORM USING IE AS A KEY PART

         6  OF THAT TECHNOLOGY IN WINDOWS THAT INCLUDES HTML--IN OTHER

         7  WORDS, THE WAY PAGES ARE DISPLAYED ON THE WAY--TOGETHER

         8  WITH SCRIPTING, WHICH IS A WAY OF PROGRAMMING AGAINST

         9  THAT; AND ACTIVE CONTROLS, WHICH IS A WINDOWS-SPECIFIC

        10  FEATURE THAT LET'S PEOPLE DO ADVANCED THINGS WITH OUR USER

        11  INTERFACE.

        12  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, UNDER "HOW DOES MICROSOFT WIN," THERE ARE

        13  FIVE SEPARATE POINTS; CORRECT?

        14  A.   YES.

        15  Q.   THE FIRST ONE IS, "REDEFINE THE PLATFORM."

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   THE SECOND ONE IS, "EMBRACE, EXTEND, LEAD WHERE

        18  MOMENTUM IS WITH SUNSOFT."

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   THE THIRD IS DO A BETTER JOB THAN NET-ONE FOR

        21  DEVELOPERS."

        22  A.   YES.

        23  Q.   THE FOURTH IS, "DEVELOPERS USE OUR TOOLS"; CORRECT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   AND THE FIFTH IS, "REQUIRES LEADERSHIP IN BROWSER
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         1  MARKET SHARE, DEVELOPERS TARGET MICROSOFT API EXTENSIONS";

         2  CORRECT, SIR?

         3  A.   YES, THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.

         4  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK YOU AGAIN:  DID YOU WANT TO INCREASE

         5  INTERNET EXPLORER'S SHARE BECAUSE THAT WOULD DISTRIBUTE

         6  API EXTENSIONS THAT MICROSOFT WANTED DEVELOPERS TO WRITE

         7  TO?

         8  A.   NO, THAT WAS NOT OUR PRIMARY GOAL.

         9  Q.   YOU DO UNDERSTAND THAT THAT IS STATED HERE TO BE A

        10  GOAL, DO YOU NOT, SIR?

        11  A.   LET ME CLARIFY MY PREVIOUS ANSWER.  WHAT IT SAYS HERE

        12  IS YES, WE DID WANT TO INCREASE BROWSER MARKET SHARE TO

        13  ALLOW DEVELOPERS TO TARGET OUR FULL SET OF EXTENSIONS, AND

        14  THOSE INCLUDE API EXTENSIONS BEYOND JAVA.  SO YES, IF YOU

        15  GO BEYOND JAVA, THE STATEMENT OF THIS IS CORRECT, BUT IT

        16  IS NOT SPECIFICALLY REFERRING TO JAVA HERE.

        17  Q.   ARE YOU SAYING THAT IT DOES NOT INCLUDE JAVA, SIR?

        18  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY HERE?

        19  A.   NO, I DIDN'T SAY IT INCLUDED JAVA.

        20  Q.   OKAY.

        21  A.   BUT I SAID IT WASN'T SPECIFIC TO JAVA.

        22  Q.   DOES IT INCLUDE JAVA?

        23  A.   YES, IT DOES.

        24  Q.   OKAY.

        25           THE COURT:  IS THIS REDEFINED PLATFORM UP HERE
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         1  WHAT HAS BEEN REFERRED TO AS "POLLUTED JAVA"?

         2           THE WITNESS:  NO, YOUR HONOR, IT'S NOT.  IN FACT,

         3  THE WHOLE REDEFINE THE PLATFORM UP THERE DOESN'T REALLY

         4  REFER TO JAVA AT ALL.  IT REFERS TO AN ALTERNATIVE WAY OF

         5  PEOPLE DELIVERING INTERNET FUNCTIONALITY INSTEAD OF JAVA.

         6           IN THIS TIME FRAME THIS PRESENTATION WAS WRITTEN,

         7  WHICH, I BELIEVE, WAS THE FALL OF '96, THE MESSAGE WE WERE

         8  GIVING DEVELOPERS WAS, INSTEAD OF USING SUN'S JAVA

         9  PLATFORM TO ACHIEVE CROSS-PLATFORM SUPPORT, USE A

        10  COMBINATION OF HTML AND SCRIPTING TOGETHER WITH ACTIVE

        11  CONTROLS, WHICH MICROSOFT BELIEVED WE HAD LEADERSHIP IN.

        12  SO, IT WAS AN ALTERNATIVE TO JAVA, POLLUTED OR NOT.

        13           THE COURT:  AND WHATEVER VERSION OF JAVA YOU

        14  INCLUDED IN IE WAS IN ADDITION TO WHATEVER THIS

        15  REDEFINITION OF THE PLATFORM REPRESENTED?

        16           THE WITNESS:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

        17           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        18  BY MR. BOIES:

        19  Q.   NOW, DID MICROSOFT ALSO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS WITH

        20  ISV'S THAT REQUIRED THOSE ISV'S TO REDISTRIBUTE

        21  MICROSOFT'S VIRTUAL MACHINE FOR JAVA AND NOT ANY OTHER

        22  VIRTUAL MACHINE?

        23  A.   YES.  I KNOW OF ONE SUCH AGREEMENT THAT WAS DONE AS A

        24  PART OF DEVELOPER SUPPORT WITHOUT ANY LEGAL REVIEW.  AND

        25  AS SOON AS IT WAS REVIEWED, THAT MISTAKE WAS CORRECTED.
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         1  Q.   WHAT WAS THE DEVELOPER THAT IT WAS DONE WITH?

         2  A.   I'M SORRY?

         3  Q.   WHAT DEVELOPER WAS IT DONE WITH?

         4  A.   IT WAS DONE WITH AN ISP BY THE NAME OF AIMTECH THAT

         5  I'M AWARE OF.

         6  Q.   WHAT?

         7  A.   AIMTECH.

         8  Q.   NOW, YOU SAY IT WAS ONLY DONE ONCE, AND THEN IT WAS

         9  STOPPED; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE TESTIFYING TO?

        10  A.   YES.

        11           LET ME BE CLEAR ABOUT THAT.  MY UNDERSTANDING IS

        12  THERE WAS ONLY ONE SIGNED CONTRACT, AND IT WAS STOPPED AS

        13  SOON AS IT HAD BEEN REVIEWED.  I KNOW OF AT LEAST ONE

        14  OTHER CONTRACT THAT WAS IN DRAFT FORM WHICH I DON'T

        15  BELIEVE WAS EVER EXECUTED WITH FUJITSU.

        16  Q.   NOW, HOW DID YOU FIND OUT ABOUT THESE CONTRACTS?

        17  A.   I FOUND OUT ABOUT THESE CONTRACTS IN PREPARATION FOR

        18  MY TESTIMONY IN THE SUN LAWSUIT IN SAN JOSE.

        19  Q.   PRIOR TO BEING INFORMED OF THESE CONTRACTS BY

        20  COUNSEL, WERE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THESE CONTRACTS AT ALL?

        21  A.   NO, I WAS NOT.

        22           LET ME CLARIFY MY ANSWER.  I'M FAMILIAR THAT WE

        23  DO CONTRACTS WITH ISV'S, BUT THE SPECIFICS OF THESE

        24  AGREEMENTS I WAS NOT FAMILIAR WITH.

        25  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT
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         1  EXHIBIT 1331.

         2           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         3  Q.   THIS DOCUMENT IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         4           AND IT'S, AT THE TOP, AN E-MAIL FROM SARAH

         5  WILLIAMS, DATED NOVEMBER 19, 1997, AND IT'S ON THE SUBJECT

         6  OF MICROSOFT SDK FOR JAVA REDISTRIBUTION RIGHTS.

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   YES, I DO.

         9  Q.   AND THIS ATTACHES AN AGREEMENT, OR A DRAFT AGREEMENT,

        10  PERHAPS, BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND FUJITSU THAT SAYS THAT

        11  FUJITSU AGREES TO REDISTRIBUTE THE MICROSOFT VIRTUAL

        12  MACHINE FOR JAVA.  AND THIS IS IN PARAGRAPH THREE OF THE

        13  AGREEMENT THAT'S THE THIRD PAGE OF THE DOCUMENT, AND IT IS

        14  AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE UNDER "OBLIGATIONS."

        15  A.   YES, I SEE IT.

        16  Q.   AND IT SAYS, "DURING THE TERM OF THE AGREEMENT,

        17  FUJITSU SHALL REDISTRIBUTE THE MICROSOFT VIRTUAL MACHINE

        18  FOR JAVA INCLUDED IN THE LICENSE SOFTWARE AS PART OF

        19  FUJITSU'S PRODUCTS AND NOT ANY OTHER VIRTUAL MACHINE.  "

        20           AND THEN ON THE NEXT PAGE, IF WE COULD BRING THAT

        21  UP--THIS IS PARAGRAPH 1-B OF THE--OR 3-B OF THE

        22  CONTRACT--IT SAYS FUJITSU MUST, QUOTE, USE ONLY THE

        23  MICROSOFT NATIVE CODE INTERFACES (JDIRECT, RNI, JAVA/COM)

        24  THAT ARE PART OF THE MICROSOFT JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE FOR

        25  ANY NATIVE CODE CALLING.
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         2  A.   YES, I DO.

         3  Q.   NOW, THIS CONTRACT WENT TO A NUMBER OF PEOPLE IN

         4  SUCCESSIVE E-MAILS; CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND PEOPLE WERE TOLD, "HERE IS THE CURRENT AGREEMENT.

         7  SEARCH AND REPLACE FUJITSU WITH THE NAME OF YOUR ISV."

         8           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         9  A.   NO, WHERE DOES IT SAY THAT?  I'M SORRY.

        10  Q.   THE THIRD PARAGRAPH AT THE TOP OF THE PAGE, THE FIRST

        11  PAGE.

        12  A.   YES, THIS IS SARAH REPRESENTING THAT.

        13  Q.   RIGHT.

        14           THIS IS FROM SARAH WILLIAMS?

        15  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

        16  Q.   AND IT SENDS OUT THIS CONTRACT, AND IT SAYS, "HERE'S

        17  THE CURRENT AGREEMENT.  SEARCH AND REPLACE FUJITSU WITH

        18  THE NAME OF YOUR ISV."

        19           CORRECT?

        20  A.   YES, THAT'S THE WORD--THAT'S WHAT THE WORDS SAY HERE

        21  NOW.

        22           NOW, THE WAY I INTERPRET THIS IS THESE

        23  OTHER--SARAH WILLIAMS IS AN EVANGELIST IN THE DEVELOPER

        24  RELATIONS GROUP.  AND AS OUR PEOPLE LIKE STAN AND, I

        25  BELIEVE, BRAD--I KNOW STAN IS FOR SURE--AND I INTERPRET

                                                           63

         1  THIS THAT THESE PEOPLE ARE ASKING SARAH FOR THE CURRENT

         2  DRAFT OF THE AGREEMENT SHE'S WORKING ON WITH FUJITSU, AND

         3  SHE SENT IT TO THEM IF THEY WANTED TO DO AN AGREEMENT WITH

         4  AN ISV.

         5           BUT AS I SAID, THIS AGREEMENT WAS NEVER SIGNED.

         6  AND NOR, TO MY KNOWLEDGE, WERE ANY OTHER AGREEMENTS EVER

         7  SIGNED OTHER THAN THE ONE I MENTIONED PREVIOUSLY.

         8  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT THIS INDICATES THAT THIS WAS A

         9  MORE GENERAL APPROACH THAN JUST ONE OR TWO AGREEMENTS WHEN

        10  THEY WERE GIVING INSTRUCTIONS, THAT THE WAY THAT THEY DO

        11  THE AGREEMENT IS SIMPLY SEARCH AND REPLACE FUJITSU?  WOULD

        12  YOU AGREE WITH THAT, SIR?

        13  A.   NO, I WOULD NOT.

        14  Q.   OKAY.  ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU SAY IN YOUR DIRECT

        15  TESTIMONY IS THAT WHETHER OR NOT MICROSOFT IS DISTRIBUTING

        16  AN INCOMPATIBLE VERSION OF JAVA ISN'T IMPORTANT BECAUSE

        17  DEVELOPERS CAN ALWAYS DISTRIBUTE WHATEVER JVM THEY WANT

        18  TO; CORRECT?

        19  A.   NO, I DON'T THINK THAT'S WHAT I SAID IN MY TESTIMONY.

        20  I DON'T KNOW THE SPECIFIC PARAGRAPH YOU'RE REFERRING TO.

        21           I DO KNOW THAT THERE WERE COMMENTS IN MY

        22  TESTIMONY ABOUT THE FACT THAT ONE OF THE OPTIONS THE

        23  DEVELOPER HAS TO GET THE JAVA TECHNOLOGY OUT INTO THE

        24  MARKETPLACE IS TO DISTRIBUTE THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE WITH

        25  THEIR APPLICATION, AND WE KNOW OF A NUMBER OF SUCH
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         1  DEVELOPERS THAT ARE DOING SO.

         2  Q.   WELL, LET'S LOOK AT PARAGRAPH 187 OF YOUR DIRECT

         3  TESTIMONY, SIR.

         4           IF YOU LOOK AT THE BOTTOM HERE, THE LAST FULL

         5  SENTENCE WHERE YOU SAY, "OF COURSE, THE REALITY THAT A

         6  JAVA DEVELOPER MUST DISTRIBUTE A JVM OR OTHERWISE ENSURE

         7  THAT THE JVM THEY HAVE TARGETED IS PRESENT ON THEIR

         8  CUSTOMERS' COMPUTERS MAKES ANY CONCERN ABOUT THE

         9  COMPATIBILITY OF ANY PARTICULAR JVM LARGELY UNIMPORTANT."

        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        11  A.   YES, I DO.

        12  Q.   AND I TAKE IT YOU BELIEVED THAT AT THE TIME YOU WROTE

        13  IT?

        14  A.   I DID, AND I STILL DO.

        15  Q.   AND YOU STILL DO.

        16           NOW, HOW LARGE IS THE JVM THE DEVELOPERS MUST

        17  REDISTRIBUTE IF THEY ARE TO AVOID COMPATIBILITY PROBLEMS?

        18  A.   THE DIFFERENCE IN SIZE--AND I DON'T KNOW THE EXACT

        19  NUMBERS, BUT IT'S MEASURED IN THE RANGE OF SEVERAL

        20  MEGABYTES.

        21  Q.   CAN YOU BE ANY MORE--CAN YOU GIVE ME A RANGE OF

        22  MEGABYTES?

        23  A.   I DON'T KNOW THE EXACT NUMBER.  IT'S A SINGLE-DIGIT

        24  NUMBER OF MEGABYTES.  CERTAINLY LESS THAN TEN.

        25  Q.   COULD YOU BE ANY MORE SPECIFIC THAN SAYING LESS THAN
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         1  TEN?

         2  A.   NO, I CAN'T.

         3  Q.   WOULD YOU AGREE THAT THE BURDEN ON DEVELOPERS TO

         4  REDISTRIBUTE THE JVM IS, IN PART, A FUNCTION OF HOW LARGE

         5  THE JVM IS?

         6  A.   GENERALLY, NO, BECAUSE, TYPICALLY, THESE ARE

         7  APPLICATIONS THAT ARE BEING DELIVERED ON MEDIA LIKE

         8  CD-ROM, WHERE THE SIZE IS LARGELY UNIMPORTANT.

         9  Q.   MICROSOFT INTENDS TO DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER AS

        10  PART OF OFFICE 2000; IS THAT CORRECT?

        11  A.   YES.  OFFICE 2000 TAKES ADVANTAGE OF SOME OF THE

        12  FEATURES OF INTERNET EXPLORER THAT ARE NEW THINGS THAT

        13  WE'RE ADDING TO WINDOWS.

        14           IT'S COMMON--ONE OF THE THINGS WE COMMONLY DO IS

        15  ALLOW ISV'S TO REDISTRIBUTE PARTS OF WINDOWS WITH THEIR

        16  APPLICATION.

        17  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU TALK ABOUT PARTS OF WINDOWS, I JUST

        18  WANT TO BE SURE THAT WITH RESPECT TO OFFICE 2000, THE PART

        19  OF WINDOWS THAT YOU SAY YOU ARE DISTRIBUTING IS THE PART

        20  THAT'S CALLED "INTERNET EXPLORER"; CORRECT?

        21  A.   NO.  IT INCLUDES INTERNET EXPLORER, BUT WE'RE ALSO

        22  DISTRIBUTING WITH OFFICE 2000 OTHER PARTS OF WINDOWS,

        23  INCLUDING UPDATED COM FACILITIES, UPDATED DATA ACCESS, AND

        24  OTHER THINGS AS WELL.

        25  Q.   AND ARE THOSE, IN PARTICULAR, DLL'S?
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         1  A.   YES, I BELIEVE THEY ARE ALL IN SOME FORM OF DLL

         2  EVENTUALLY.  MANY OF THEM ARE ALSO COM OBJECTS, BUT COM

         3  OBJECTS ARE DLL'S, YES.

         4  Q.   SO, WHAT YOU ARE DOING IS DISTRIBUTING CERTAIN DLL'S

         5  SEPARATELY FROM THE REST OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT?

         6  A.   NO.  WINDOWS IS AN INTEGRATED PRODUCT, A PRODUCT

         7  WHICH WAS DESIGNED TO BE INTEGRATED.  WE ARE DISTRIBUTING

         8  PARTS OF THE OPERATING SYSTEM THAT HAVE BEEN UPDATED SINCE

         9  ITS LAST RELEASE INTO THE MARKET SEPARATELY.

        10  Q.   YOU'RE NOT DISTRIBUTING THE ENTIRE OPERATING SYSTEM;

        11  CORRECT?

        12  A.   NO, WE'RE NOT.

        13  Q.   YOU ARE DISTRIBUTING CERTAIN DLL'S THAT YOU HAVE

        14  EXTRACTED FROM THE OPERATING SYSTEM AND NOT OTHER DLL'S;

        15  CORRECT?

        16  A.   YES.  THE WORD "EXTRACT," I JUST WANT TO BE CLEAR,

        17  THERE'S (SIC) PACKAGES THAT DELIVER FUNCTIONALITY THAT THE

        18  OPERATING SYSTEM HAS, AND THOSE PACKAGES, IN GENERAL, ARE

        19  COHESIVE.  AND WE ARE DISTRIBUTING UPDATED PACKAGES,

        20  INCLUDING UPDATES LIKE OUR DATA ACCESS PACKAGE.

        21  Q.   AND THOSE ARE BEING PACKAGED AS DLL'S?

        22  A.   YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        23  Q.   IS PACKAGE BETTER FOR YOU?

        24  A.   YES, THAT'S FINE.

        25  Q.   THERE IS A LARGE NUMBER OF DLL'S IN THE WINDOWS
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         1  OPERATING SYSTEM; CORRECT?

         2  A.   YES, THERE ARE.

         3  Q.   AND YOU ARE TAKING SOME, BUT BY NO MEANS ALL, OF

         4  THOSE DLL'S, AND THEN YOU'RE INCLUDING THEM IN OFFICE

         5  2000, WHICH IS AN APPLICATION PROGRAM, AND YOU ARE SENDING

         6  IT OUT TO USERS; CORRECT?

         7  A.   YES.  THERE IS UPDATED WINDOWS FUNCTIONALITY THAT WE

         8  NEED TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF.  SO, TO MAKE SURE THAT

         9  FUNCTIONALITY IS ON THE USER'S COMPUTER, WE ARE

        10  DISTRIBUTING IT WITH OFFICE 2000, JUST LIKE OTHER ISV'S

        11  HAVE THE OPTION TO DO.

        12           THE COURT:  IS THIS COMING OUT AS A CD-ROM?

        13           THE WITNESS:  YES.  IN GENERAL, YOUR HONOR,

        14  THAT'S THE FORM.

        15           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        16  BY MR. BOIES:

        17  Q.   AND OFFICE INCLUDES SEPARATE APPLICATION PROGRAMS;

        18  CORRECT?

        19  A.   LET ME BE PRECISE ABOUT THAT.  OFFICE IS AN

        20  INTEGRATED--OFFICE IS AN INTEGRATED PACKAGE, AND WITHIN IT

        21  ARE PROGRAMS THAT ARE ALSO SOLD SEPARATELY.

        22  Q.   OFFICE IS AN INTEGRATED PACKAGE, IN YOUR TERMS;

        23  CORRECT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   AND IN THAT INTEGRATED PACKAGE ARE THE WORD PROGRAM

                                                           68

         1  AND THE EXCEL PROGRAM; CORRECT?

         2  A.   YES.  THEY'RE INCLUDED IN THE OVERALL OFFICE, WHICH,

         3  WHEN PURCHASED AS A WHOLE, HAS AN INTEGRATED DESIGN.

         4  Q.   YOU HAVE DESIGNED WORD AND EXCEL, AMONG OTHER THINGS,

         5  TO BE INTEGRATED TOGETHER INTO OFFICE; CORRECT?

         6  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         7           MR. BURT:  OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.  IT SEEMS WE

         8  ARE GETTING FAR BEYOND THE SCOPE OF MR. MUGLIA'S WRITTEN

         9  DIRECT AND SUPPLEMENTAL.

        10           THE COURT:  IF HE HADN'T ASKED HIM, I WOULD HAVE.

        11           MR. BOIES:  AND I HAVE JUST A COUPLE MORE ALONG

        12  THIS LINE, YOUR HONOR.

        13           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        14  BY MR. BOIES:

        15  Q.   NOW--

        16  A.   COULD YOU ASK THE LAST QUESTION BECAUSE I'M NOT SURE

        17  I HAVE AN ANSWER ON THE RECORD.  I'M NOT SURE IF I DO OR

        18  NOT.

        19  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  MICROSOFT HAS AN APPLICATION PROGRAM

        20  CALLED "WORD"; CORRECT?

        21  A.   YES, WE DO.

        22  Q.   MICROSOFT HAS AN APPLICATION PROGRAM CALLED "EXCEL";

        23  CORRECT?

        24  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        25  Q.   MICROSOFT ALSO HAS A PROGRAM OR A PACKAGE THAT'S
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         1  CALLED "OFFICE" THAT INCLUDES BOTH WORD AND EXCEL AND SOME

         2  OTHER THINGS ALL INTEGRATED TOGETHER INTO A NEW PACKAGE;

         3  CORRECT?

         4  A.   YES.  THEY'RE DESIGNED TO BE INTEGRATED, YES.

         5  Q.   AND--

         6           THE COURT:  AND IT'S GOT IE IN IT?

         7           THE WITNESS:  THE CURRENT VERSION--YOUR HONOR,

         8  THE CURRENT VERSION DOES NOT.  OFFICE 97.

         9           THE COURT:  2000?

        10           THE WITNESS:  THE 2000 DOES.

        11           THE COURT:  BOTH HAVE IE?

        12           THE WITNESS:  IT DOES IN THE SENSE THAT WE NEEDED

        13  SOME OF THE FACILITIES THAT IE HAS.

        14           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        15  BY MR. BOIES:

        16  Q.   AND WORD AND EXCEL WILL STILL BE SOLD SEPARATELY BY

        17  MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

        18  A.   YES, THEY WILL.

        19  Q.   EVEN THOUGH THEY ARE INTEGRATED, IN YOUR WORDS,

        20  TOGETHER WITH IE IN THE OFFICE PACKAGE?

        21  A.   I'M CONFUSED BY--YOU SAID WITH IE.  IE IS A SET OF

        22  WINDOWS SERVICES THAT OFFICE TAKES ADVANTAGE OF.

        23           THE WAY I MIGHT SAY THAT IS THAT OFFICE IS AN

        24  INTEGRATED PACKAGE OVERALL.  IT WAS DESIGNED TO BE

        25  INTEGRATED.  WE PRODUCED, BECAUSE OUR CUSTOMERS WOULD LIKE
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         1  US TO PRODUCE IT, A SEPARATE WORD-PROCESSING PROGRAM THAT

         2  WE DERIVED FROM THE OVERALL INTEGRATED OFFICE PACKAGE AND

         3  A SEPARATE SPREADSHEET PROGRAM.

         4  Q.   YOU HAD A SEPARATE WORD PROGRAM AND A SEPARATE EXCEL

         5  PROGRAM BEFORE YOU HAD AN INTEGRATED OFFICE; CORRECT?

         6  A.   YES, WE DID.

         7  Q.   AND YOU HAVE DESCRIBED OFFICE AS INCLUDING INTERNET

         8  EXPLORER; CORRECT, SIR?

         9  A.   YES.  OFFICE USES THE UPDATED FACILITIES OF INTERNET

        10  EXPLORER 5.

        11  Q.   I'M NOT SAYING WHAT DOES IT USE.  I'M SAYING IT IS

        12  DESCRIBED BOTH BY YOU AND BY MICROSOFT AS INCLUDING

        13  INTERNET EXPLORER; CORRECT?

        14  A.   YES.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, WHAT YOU DESCRIBE AS INTERNET EXPLORER

        16  AND WORD AND EXCEL AND, PERHAPS, OTHER THINGS ARE ALL

        17  INTEGRATED TOGETHER INTO A NEW PACKAGE THAT YOU CALL

        18  "OFFICE"; CORRECT?

        19  A.   YES.  IT'S AN INTEGRATED DESIGN, YES.

        20  Q.   OKAY.  LET ME ASK YOU TO--DO YOU HAVE YOUR DEPOSITION

        21  UP THERE?

        22  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE I DO, NO.

        23  Q.   LET ME HAND YOU YOUR DEPOSITION IN THIS CASE.

        24           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        25  Q.   AND LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT PAGE 313.
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         1  A.   I'M SORRY, THREE ONE THREE?

         2  Q.   AND FOR CONTEXT, LET'S GO BACK TO 312.

         3  A.   OKAY.

         4  Q.   AND IN 312, YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT OFFICE AND THE

         5  FUNCTIONS OF OFFICE AND THE VARIOUS THINGS THAT ARE, AS

         6  YOU HAVE PUT IT, INTEGRATED INTO OFFICE; CORRECT?

         7  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         8  Q.   AND THEN ON PAGE 13, LINES 7 THROUGH 13, (READING):

         9                "QUESTION:  BUT THAT'S NOT A REASON, I

        10           GATHER, NOT TO OFFER THE PRODUCT SEPARATELY--WORD

        11           AND EXCEL SEPARATELY, IS IT?

        12                ANSWER:  SURE.  OF COURSE NOT.  AGAIN, WE'RE

        13           JUST PROVIDING CHOICES FOR CUSTOMERS.  WE'RE

        14           SAYING IF PEOPLE WANT TO BUY JUST A WORD

        15           PROCESSOR OR SPREADSHEET, THEY HAVE THE OPTION TO

        16           DO SO."

        17           AND I TAKE IT YOU AGREED WITH THAT TESTIMONY WHEN

        18  YOU GAVE IT?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   AND YOU WOULD AGREE WITH IT TODAY; CORRECT?

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   LET ME TURN NEXT TO VARIOUS EFFORTS THAT MICROSOFT

        23  MADE TO GET OTHER COMPANIES TO AGREE TO USE ITS VERSION OF

        24  JAVA AND NOT SUN'S VERSION OF JAVA, AND I WOULD LIKE TO

        25  ASK YOU ABOUT TWO PARTICULAR EXAMPLES.  ONE IS INTEL, AND
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         1  THE OTHER IS APPLE.

         2  A.   I'M SORRY, INTEL?

         3  Q.   INTEL AND APPLE.

         4           FIRST, ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY EFFORTS BY MICROSOFT

         5  IN ORDER--OR IN AN EFFORT TO GET INTEL TO HELP MICROSOFT

         6  WITH ITS VERSION OF JAVA AND NOT TO PROMOTE OR HELP WITH

         7  SUN'S VERSION OF JAVA?

         8  A.   YES, DISTANTLY.  I WASN'T DIRECTLY INVOLVED IN THAT,

         9  BUT I KNOW THAT WE DID WORK WITH INTEL IN TRYING TO

        10  ENCOURAGE THEM TO WORK WITH US RATHER THAN OUR COMPETITOR.

        11  Q.   AND WHAT ABOUT APPLE?  DID YOU HAVE ANY INVOLVEMENT

        12  IN THE EFFORTS AT APPLE?

        13  A.   NO, I DID NOT.

        14  Q.   LET ME BEGIN, THEN, BY FOCUSING ON INTEL.

        15           IN THAT CONNECTION, LET ME BEGIN WITH GOVERNMENT

        16  EXHIBIT 235, WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        17           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        18  Q.   AND WHAT WE HAVE IS AN E-MAIL DATED MAY 27, 1997,

        19  FROM PAUL MARITZ TO YOU THAT ENCLOSES AN EARLIER E-MAIL

        20  DATED MAY 26TH, 1997, FROM ERIC ENGSTROM; CORRECT?

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   AND MR. ENGSTROM'S DOCUMENT REPORTS TO BE AN UPDATE

        23  OF WHAT MICROSOFT IS DOING WITH INTEL; CORRECT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   AND THERE IS A SERIES OF GOALS THAT ARE SET OUT HERE;
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         1  CORRECT?

         2  A.   I GUESS SO, YES.  I DID NOT--PAUL FORWARDED THIS TO

         3  ME AS A WAY OF BACKGROUND.  AT THIS TIME FRAME, I WAS

         4  WORKING ON OUR SERVER APPLICATIONS, SO I DIDN'T REALLY PAY

         5  MUCH ATTENTION TO THIS MAIL WHEN I RECEIVED IT, BUT I

         6  SUPPOSE SO.

         7  Q.   THE FIRST MAJOR GOAL IS STATED TO BE, "GETTING INTEL

         8  TO DROP ITS INVOLVEMENT IN INTERACTIVE MPEG-4."

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   YES, I SEE THOSE WORDS.

        11  Q.   THE SECOND MAJOR GOAL LISTED HERE IS, "INTEL TO STOP

        12  HELPING SUN CREATE JAVA MULTIMEDIA API'S, ESPECIALLY ONES

        13  THAT RUN WELL--I.E., NATIVE IMPLEMENTATIONS--ON WINDOWS."

        14           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        15  A.   WHERE ARE YOU NOW?

        16  Q.   WELL--

        17           THE COURT:  BOTTOM BULLET.

        18  BY MR. BOIES:

        19  Q.   BOTTOM BULLET.

        20  A.   OKAY.

        21           YES, I SEE IT.

        22  Q.   DID YOU AGREE THAT THAT WAS ONE OF THE GOALS IN

        23  DEALING WITH INTEL, AS OF THIS TIME?

        24  A.   I NEITHER AGREED NOR DISAGREED.  I DIDN'T PAY ANY

        25  ATTENTION TO THIS.
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         1  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE OF THIS AS A GOAL?

         2  A.   NO, I WAS NOT.

         3  Q.   LET ME SHOW YOU SOMETHING FROM ABOUT A YEAR EARLIER,

         4  SIR:  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 566.

         5           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         6  Q.   THIS IS ALSO ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

         7           AND THIS IS AN INTEL MEMORANDUM SUMMARIZING A

         8  MICROSOFT/INTEL/JAVA MEETING HELD APRIL 18, 1996.

         9           THAT WAS A MEETING THAT YOU PARTICIPATED IN;

        10  CORRECT, SIR?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE--THIS--THIS WAS SHOWN TO ME FOR THE FIRST

        12  TIME IN MY DEPOSITION, AND I BELIEVE I WAS THERE FOR SOME

        13  OF THIS MEETING, PARTICULARLY THE PARTS WHICH WERE TALKING

        14  ABOUT COM.

        15           THE MEETING WAS AN OVERALL MICROSOFT/INTEL

        16  MEETING THAT INCLUDED MORE THAN JAVA, AND THERE WERE SOME

        17  COM-SPECIFIC THINGS THAT I BELIEVE I PARTICIPATED IN.

        18  Q.   WELL, LET ME GO TO THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE WHERE IT

        19  SAYS, "MUGLIA/LUDWIG WANT EXCLUSIVE ACCESS TO IA'S VM

        20  WORK."

        21           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        22  A.   I SEE THAT, YES.

        23  Q.   AND IA REFERS TO INTEL'S ARCHITECTURE LABS; CORRECT?

        24  A.   I BELIEVE SO, YES.

        25  Q.   AND VM WORK REFERS TO THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE WORK;
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         1  CORRECT?

         2  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         3  Q.   AND WHAT IT'S BEING SAID HERE IS THAT YOU AND

         4  MR. LUDWIG WANT MICROSOFT TO HAVE EXCLUSIVE ACCESS TO

         5  INTEL'S JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE WORK.

         6           DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT?

         7  A.   THAT IS WHAT THE DOCUMENT IS SAYING.

         8           THIS IS, AGAIN, AN INTEL DOCUMENT THAT I DIDN'T

         9  REVIEW.  I DON'T RECALL BEING PRESENT FOR THAT PARTICULAR

        10  DISCUSSION.

        11           AND ALL OF THE SUBBULLETS REFERENCE JOHN LUDWIG,

        12  SO I DON'T KNOW WHAT SPECIFIC CONVERSATIONS JOHN MAY OR

        13  MAY NOT HAVE HAD WITH THEM.

        14  Q.   WERE YOU PRESENT WHEN EITHER YOU OR MR. LUDWIG OR

        15  SOMEONE ELSE CONVEYED TO INTEL THAT MICROSOFT WANTED

        16  EXCLUSIVE ACCESS TO INTEL'S JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE WORK?

        17  A.   I DON'T RECALL, SO I DON'T KNOW IF IT WAS EVER--IF

        18  THAT INTENT WAS EVER CONVEYED.

        19  Q.   THE NEXT POINT SAYS, "LUDWIG DOES NOT"--AND "NOT" IS

        20  CAPITALIZED--"WANT US TO GIVE NETSCAPE OUR VIRTUAL MACHINE

        21  WORK."

        22           AND THE NEXT ITEM SAYS, "NETSCAPE ACCESS TO

        23  VIRTUAL MACHINE IS VERY"--AND "VERY" IS

        24  CAPITALIZED--"TOUCHY WITH MICROSOFT."

        25           DO YOU SEE THAT?
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         1  A.   I SEE THAT, YES.

         2  Q.   WERE YOU PRESENT WHEN THAT WAS CONVEYED, IN WORDS OR

         3  IN SUBSTANCE, TO INTEL?

         4  A.   NO, I DON'T RECALL BEING THERE IF THAT WAS CONVEYED.

         5  I DON'T KNOW WHETHER IT WAS CONVEYED OR NOT.

         6  Q.   LET ME GO TO THE NEXT PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT.  IN THE

         7  MIDDLE OF THE PAGE THERE IS A SECTION HEADED "BOTTOM

         8  LINE."

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   YES, I DO.

        11  Q.   AND UNDER THAT HEADING IT SAYS, "BOTTOM LINE:

        12  MICROSOFT WANTS DEVELOPERS WRITING TO THEIR API'S, NOT

        13  SUN'S JAVA API'S, AND STRONGLY WANT US TO RETHINK WHAT

        14  WE'RE DOING."

        15           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        16  A.   I DO.

        17  Q.   WAS THAT CONVEYED, IN WORDS OR IN SUBSTANCE, TO

        18  INTEL?

        19  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF THOSE EXACT WORDS WERE USED, BUT THAT

        20  IS CERTAINLY CONSISTENT WITH OUR STRATEGY, AND SO IT IS

        21  LIKELY, YES, THAT IT WAS CONVEYED TO INTEL, YES.

        22  Q.   LET ME GO BACK TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 235 WHICH IS THE

        23  ONE THAT I WAS JUST DEALING WITH FIRST BEFORE I CAME TO

        24  THIS DOCUMENT.  THIS IS THE ONE ON THE FIRST PAGE WE DEALT

        25  WITH THE BULLET AT THE BOTTOM, AND NOW I WANT TO GO TO THE
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         1  SECOND PAGE, WHERE IT SAYS "PROPOSED ACTIONS."

         2           AND THE FIRST PROPOSED ACTION IS, "INTEL AGREES

         3  TO STOP HELPING JAVASOFT IN ANY AREA WHERE MICROSOFT

         4  AGREES TO SHIP INTEL TECHNOLOGY AS PART OF DIRECTX MEDIA."

         5           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         6  A.   YES, I DO.

         7  Q.   WAS THAT SOMETHING THAT WAS CONVEYED TO INTEL IN

         8  WORDS OR IN SUBSTANCE?

         9  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  BUT IF IT WAS CONVEYED TO THEM IN

        10  APRIL OF 1996, AND IT WAS STILL AN OPEN ISSUE IN MAY OF

        11  1997, THEY OBVIOUSLY KEPT WORKING WITH JAVASOFT DURING

        12  THAT PERIOD.  SO, WHATEVER WAS CONVEYED TO THEM IN APRIL

        13  WASN'T VERY EFFECTIVE, OF '96.

        14  Q.   I'M NOT SURE I UNDERSTOOD THE REFERENCES THAT YOU

        15  GAVE, SIR.

        16           WHAT POINTS IN TIME ARE YOU TALKING ABOUT?

        17  A.   WELL, THE MEMO YOU HAD SHOWN ME PREVIOUSLY--

        18  Q.   JUST GET THE POINTS IN TIME.

        19  A.   I'M SORRY.  I'M TRYING TO GET THE POINTS IN TIME.

        20           IN APRIL 18TH, 1996, THERE IS A MEMO, AN INTERNAL

        21  INTEL MEMO, WHERE SOME COMMENTS ARE ATTRIBUTED TO JOHN

        22  LUDWIG, AND THERE WAS A BOTTOM LINE ABOUT US--ABOUT

        23  MICROSOFT, I ASSUME, MEANING THEY, WANT DEVELOPERS WRITING

        24  TO THEIR API'S, NOT SUN'S JAVA API'S.  AND THEY STRONGLY

        25  WANT US TO RETHINK WHAT THEY'RE DOING.
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         1           NOW, MORE THAN A YEAR LATER, IN MAY OF 1997,

         2  MR. ENGSTROM IS WRITING A MAIL, WHICH, AGAIN, I DIDN'T

         3  REVIEW VERY CAREFULLY, WHERE IT'S APPARENT IN THAT MAIL,

         4  AT LEAST, THAT INTEL IS CONTINUING TO WORK WITH JAVASOFT.

         5  Q.   WHAT IT SAYS IS INTEL AGREES TO STOP HELPING JAVASOFT

         6  IN ANY AREA WHERE MICROSOFT AGREES TO SHIP INTEL

         7  TECHNOLOGY AS A PART OF DIRECTX MEDIA; CORRECT?

         8  A.   IT'S WHAT IT SAYS, IS A PROPOSED ACTION, INTEL AGREES

         9  TO STOP HELPING JAVASOFT.  I WOULD INTERPRET THAT AS THAT

        10  INTEL IS CONTINUING TO HELP JAVASOFT.

        11           NOW, AGAIN, IN TERMS OF THE SPECIFICS OF WHAT

        12  HAPPENED WITH ERIC IN DISCUSSIONS WITH INTEL, I CAN'T

        13  TESTIFY TO THAT BECAUSE I WASN'T THERE.

        14  Q.   WAS THERE ANYTHING IN THE EARLIER MEMO, THE INTEL

        15  MEMO, OF APRIL 18TH, 1996, IN WHICH INTEL WAS BEING ASKED

        16  TO STOP ENTIRELY WORKING WITH JAVASOFT IN ANY AREA WHERE

        17  MICROSOFT AGREES TO SHIP INTEL TECHNOLOGY, OR WAS ALL THAT

        18  WAS INVOLVED BACK THEN SAYING YOU WANTED EXCLUSIVE ACCESS

        19  TO THEIR VIRTUAL MACHINE WORK, AND YOU WANTED THEM WRITING

        20  TO YOUR API'S, NOT SUN API'S?  AREN'T THOSE THE TWO THINGS

        21  THAT WE TALKED ABOUT IN APRIL OF '96?

        22  A.   HOLD ON A SECOND.

        23           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        24  A.   WELL, WHAT'S CLEAR IN APRIL OF 1996 IS THAT INTEL IS

        25  WORKING WITH JAVASOFT ON--THERE--IS WORKING ON UPDATED
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         1  VIRTUAL MACHINE, AND I BELIEVE THAT'S WITH JAVASOFT.  AND

         2  HERE, IN 1997, THEY'RE STILL WORKING WITH THEM, AND

         3  NOW--THEY'RE STILL WORKING WITH INTEL.

         4  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.  LET ME GO BACK TO THE FIRST PAGE OF

         5  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 235, BECAUSE YOU SAID SOMETHING AT THE

         6  TIME THAT IT'S ONLY RECENTLY STRUCK ME OF WHAT THE

         7  SIGNIFICANCE IS.

         8           I'D ASKED YOU ABOUT THIS LINE THAT SAYS, "INTEL

         9  TO STOP HELPING SUN CREATE JAVA MULTIMEDIA API'S,

        10  ESPECIALLY ONES THAT RUN WELL--I.E., NATIVE

        11  IMPLEMENTATIONS--ON WINDOWS."

        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        13  A.   YES, I DO.

        14  Q.   AND I ASKED YOU WHETHER YOU AGREED WITH THAT.  DO YOU

        15  RECALL THAT YOU AGREE THAT'S A GOAL?

        16  A.   YOU ASKED ME THAT QUESTION, YES.

        17  Q.   AND YOU SAID YOU DIDN'T KNOW?

        18  A.   YES.

        19  Q.   NOW, YOU ALSO MENTIONED THAT YOU TALKED ABOUT THIS AT

        20  YOUR DEPOSITION.

        21           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        22  A.   YES.

        23  Q.   AND I WOULD LIKE YOU TO NOW LOOK AT YOUR DEPOSITION

        24  AND WHAT YOU SAID ABOUT IT AT YOUR DEPOSITION.

        25           AND I WOULD LIKE TO GO FIRST TO PAGE 130.  AND
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         1  PARTICULARLY, THE ANSWER THAT'S AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE

         2  AT LINES 18 THROUGH 24, AND PARTICULARLY WHERE YOU SAY,

         3  STARTING AT LINE 19, WHERE YOU ANSWER YOUR OWN QUESTION,

         4  "IF A DEVELOPER IS WRITING TO SUN'S JAVA PLATFORM, THEY'RE

         5  NOT BUILDING A WINDOWS APP.  THEY'RE BUILDING A SUN APP.

         6  AND EVEN IF THAT APP RUNS WELL ON WINDOWS, EVEN IF THAT'S

         7  TRUE, IT'S STILL NOT IN MICROSOFT'S INTEREST THAT THE

         8  DEVELOPER DO THAT."

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        10  A.   YES, I DO.

        11  Q.   AND WAS THAT YOUR VIEW AT THE TIME YOU GAVE THIS

        12  TESTIMONY?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   AND IS THAT STILL YOUR VIEW?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   NOW LET ME TURN TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 289.  AND THIS

        17  IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE.

        18           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        19  Q.   THIS IS AN E-MAIL DATED JUNE 9, 1996, FROM MR. GATES

        20  TO MR. MARITZ AND A NUMBER OF OTHER PEOPLE.

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE?

        23  A.   ONLY IN PREPARATION FOR MY TESTIMONY.

        24  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN IT IN PREPARATION FOR YOUR TESTIMONY?

        25  A.   YES.
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         1  Q.   WHEN DID YOU FIRST SEE THIS?

         2  A.   I BELIEVE EARLIER THIS WEEK.

         3  Q.   AND DID YOU, IN CONNECTION WITH REVIEWING THIS FOR

         4  YOUR TESTIMONY, REVIEW PARTICULARLY PARAGRAPH NINE?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND THERE MR. GATES WRITES WITH RESPECT TO JAVA, "I

         7  TOLD ANDY GROVE THAT ITS INAPPROPRIATE FOR THEIR GROUP TO

         8  TAKE ANYTHING RESEMBLING A WINDOWS API AND WRAP IT AS A

         9  JAVA API."

        10           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        11  A.   YES, I DO.

        12  Q.   NOW, PRIOR TO BEING SHOWN THIS BY YOUR COUNSEL THIS

        13  WEEK, WERE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE FACT THAT MR. GATES HAD

        14  CONVEYED THAT TO INTEL?

        15  A.   NO, I WAS NOT.

        16  Q.   HAD YOU EVER HAD ANY DISCUSSIONS WITH ANYONE IN

        17  MICROSOFT AS TO THE APPROPRIATENESS OR INAPPROPRIATENESS

        18  OF INTEL TAKING ANYTHING RESEMBLING A WINDOWS API AND

        19  WRAPPING IT AS A JAVA API?

        20  A.   NOT THAT I CAN RECALL.

        21  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  WOULD YOU EXPLAIN FOR THE RECORD WHAT

        22  JDIRECT IS.

        23  A.   YES.  JDIRECT IS A MECHANISM THAT EXISTS INSIDE

        24  MICROSOFT'S JAVASOFT VM THAT MAKES IT EASIER FOR A JAVA

        25  PROGRAMMER TO CALL NATIVE CODE TO CALL WINDOWS API'S.
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         1  Q.   NOW, YOU SAID IT MAKES IT EASY TO CALL NATIVE CODE TO

         2  CALL WINDOWS API'S.

         3           ARE YOU USING NATIVE CODE AS SYNONYMOUS WITH

         4  WINDOWS API'S IN THAT ANSWER?

         5  A.   NO, I SHOULD PROBABLY BE MORE CLEAR.  JDIRECT LET'S

         6  YOU CALL, ESSENTIALLY, ANY CODE IN WINDOWS THAT'S WRAPPED

         7  AS A DLL.  SO, IT WOULD INCLUDE THE WINDOWS API'S, BUT

         8  WOULD ALSO INCLUDE FUNCTIONALITY PROVIDED BY THIRD

         9  PARTIES--THIRD-PARTY ISV'S.

        10  Q.   IS THE ABILITY OF JDIRECT TO CALL CODE LIMITED TO

        11  WINDOWS, OR DOES IT ALSO WORK WITH OTHER OPERATING

        12  SYSTEMS?

        13  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF ANY OTHER OPERATING SYSTEMS THAT

        14  SUPPORT JDIRECT, ALTHOUGH I DO KNOW THAT WE OPENLY PUBLISH

        15  THE SPECIFICATIONS SO THAT OTHERS COULD TAKE ADVANTAGE OF

        16  IT.

        17  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU SAY "COULD TAKE ADVANTAGE OF IT,"

        18  JDIRECT IS DESIGNED TO CALL NATIVE CODE IN WINDOWS;

        19  CORRECT?

        20  A.   YES.  THE WINDOWS IMPLEMENTATION IS FOR WINDOWS.

        21  HOWEVER, FOR EXAMPLE, CONCEPTUALLY, APPLE COULD TAKE AND

        22  IMPLEMENT A VERSION OF JDIRECT FOR THE MACINTOSH THAT

        23  WOULD MAKE IT EQUALLY EASY TO CALL NATIVE CODE ON THE

        24  MACINTOSH.

        25  Q.   WELL, DO YOU KNOW WHAT'S INVOLVED IN DOING THAT, SIR?

                                                           83

         1  A.   THE SPECIFICS, NO, BUT I DO KNOW THAT WE'VE HAD--THAT

         2  JDIRECT COULD BE IMPLEMENTED IN OTHER VM'S ON OTHER

         3  PLATFORMS.

         4  Q.   JUST SO THAT I'M CLEAR WHAT YOU'RE TALKING ABOUT,

         5  YOU'RE NOT TALKING ABOUT IMPLEMENTING JDIRECTS.  YOU'RE

         6  TALKING ABOUT DESIGNING A NEW WHATEVER YOU WOULD--WHAT

         7  WOULD YOU CALL JDIRECT?  IS THAT A PROGRAM?  A ROUTINE?

         8  A.   NO, I WOULD USE THE WORD--IT'S A PROGRAMMING

         9  INTERFACE THAT'S A PART OF THE VIRTUAL MACHINE.

        10  Q.   OKAY.  PROGRAMMING INTERFACE.

        11  A.   SO, APPLE HAS THEIR VIRTUAL MACHINE.  THEY COULD, IF

        12  THEY CHOSE, IMPLEMENT JDIRECT AS WELL.

        13  Q.   WELL, SIR, USING YOUR TERMINOLOGY AND CALLING JDIRECT

        14  A PROGRAMMING INTERFACE, YOU COULDN'T ADAPT THE JDIRECT

        15  PROGRAMMING INTERFACE TO APPLE.  YOU WOULD HAVE TO WRITE

        16  AN ENTIRELY NEW PROGRAM INTERFACE; CORRECT?

        17  A.   NO.  THAT'S NOT CONSISTENT WITH MY UNDERSTANDING, NO.

        18  YOU COULD TAKE THE TECHNIQUE AND THE SPECIFICS OF THE

        19  INTERFACE THAT IS CALLED "JDIRECT" AND IMPLEMENT IT INSIDE

        20  APPLE'S VIRTUAL MACHINE.

        21  Q.   WHO TOLD YOU THAT?

        22  A.   I BELIEVE THE PERSON WHO COMMUNICATED THAT TO ME IS

        23  MR. CHARLES FITZGERALD.

        24  Q.   AND WHAT IS HIS POSITION?

        25  A.   HE IS A PROGRAM MANAGER.
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         1  Q.   AND WHEN DID HE TELL YOU THIS?

         2  A.   I WOULD BELIEVE PROBABLY SHORTLY AFTER JDIRECT WAS

         3  CREATED.

         4  Q.   AND THAT WAS WHEN?

         5  A.   SUMMER OF 1997.

         6  Q.   AND SINCE THEN, HAS ANY OTHER OPERATING SYSTEM

         7  SUPPLIER, AS YOU PUT IT, IMPLEMENTED JDIRECT?

         8  A.   I DON'T KNOW FOR SURE.  I BELIEVE THE ANSWER IS NO,

         9  BUT I'M NOT CERTAIN.

        10  Q.   LET ME TURN TO WHAT I HOPE IS MY NEXT-TO-LAST

        11  SUBJECT.

        12           IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, YOU MAKE A NUMBER OF

        13  STATEMENTS CONCERNING NEGOTIATIONS WITH SUN AND WHAT YOU

        14  UNDERSTOOD SUN'S POSITION TO BE; CORRECT, SIR?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1357 AND

        17  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1918.

        18           (DOCUMENTS HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        19  Q.   AND I WOULD OFFER GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1357.

        20           MR. BURT:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        21           THE COURT:  WHAT IS IT?

        22           MR. BOIES:  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1357 IS AN

        23  INTERNAL SUN DOCUMENT.  IT CONSISTS OF A SERIES OF

        24  E-MAILS, THE FIRST ONE OF WHICH IS DATED OCTOBER 3, 1996.

        25           MR. BURT:  YOUR HONOR, UPON RECONSIDERATION, I
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         1  OBJECT TO 1357, IN PARTICULAR THE PORTION BELOW THE DASHED

         2  LINE THAT APPEARS PARTWAY DOWN THE FIRST PAGE, IF IT'S

         3  GOING TO BE OFFERED FOR PROOF OF THE MATTERS ASSERTED.  IT

         4  APPEARS TO BE PURELY A HEARSAY STATEMENT, YOUR HONOR.  IT

         5  DOES NOT APPEAR TO BE A DOCUMENT THAT WAS CREATED IN THE

         6  ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS, BUT, RATHER, CREATED FOR THE

         7  PURPOSE OF COMMUNICATING SOMETHING TO MICROSOFT, AND THERE

         8  IS NO FOUNDATION THAT THAT COMMUNICATION WAS EVER MADE.

         9           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I THINK THIS IS CREATED

        10  IN THE ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS AS MUCH AS ANY OF THE

        11  DOCUMENTS THAT HAVE BEEN OFFERED.

        12           THE COURT:  THEY'RE CERTAINLY NOT DISCUSSING

        13  BASKETBALL HERE.

        14           I GUESS WHAT I'M STUMBLING OVER IS WHO IS ERIC

        15  AND WHO IS JOHN AND WHO IS ALAN?

        16           MR. BOIES:  ERIC SCHMIDT--ERIC, I BELIEVE, IS

        17  ERIC SCHMIDT.  BUT I DO NOT KNOW, AS I STAND HERE, WHO THE

        18  OTHER TWO ARE, YOUR HONOR, IN TERMS OF PEOPLE WHO WERE AT

        19  INTEL.

        20           I MIGHT ASK THE WITNESS WHETHER HE KNOWS, SINCE

        21  IT REFERS TO CONVERSATIONS WITH MICROSOFT PEOPLE.

        22           THE COURT:  IT DOES REFER TO JOHN LUDWIG.

        23           MR. BOIES:  I'M TOLD THAT ERIC SCHMIDT IS THE

        24  CHIEF TECHNICAL OFFICER OF SUN.

        25  BY MR. BOIES:
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         1  Q.   DO YOU RECOGNIZE HIM AS SUCH, MR. MUGLIA?

         2  A.   AT THIS TIME, YES.

         3  Q.   AND DO YOU KNOW WHO JON KANNEGAARD IS?

         4  A.   YES, I DO.

         5  Q.   AND WHO IS JON KANNEGAARD?

         6  A.   HE'S A TECHNICAL EXECUTIVE AT SUN.  I DON'T KNOW HIS

         7  EXACT TITLE.

         8  Q.   AND DO YOU KNOW WHO ALAN IS?

         9  A.   WELL, I CAN'T TELL FOR SURE.  IT COULD BE--I

        10  NEGOTIATED A CONTRACT WITH ALAN BARATZ, BUT I DON'T KNOW

        11  IF THAT'S WHO THIS REFERS TO OR NOT.

        12  Q.   AND ALAN BARATZ IS THE HEAD OF JAVASOFT; CORRECT,

        13  SIR?

        14  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        15           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I'M GOING TO ADMIT 1357.

        16  THE OBJECTION IS OVERRULED.

        17                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1357 WAS

        18                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        19  BY MR. BOIES:

        20  Q.   NOW, AT THE TOP OF THE PAGE, MR. KANNEGAARD WRITES TO

        21  MR. SCHMIDT, QUOTE, I LOOKED INTO COMPLAINTS YOU'VE HEARD

        22  AND RELAYED FROM MICROSOFT ON HOW WE IGNORE THEM, SURPRISE

        23  THEM, ET CETERA.  IN PARTICULAR, THEY COMPLAINED ABOUT THE

        24  JRI DESIGN, A DESIGN THAT DID NOT GO THEIR WAY.  WE

        25  CONDUCTED A FABULOUS PROCESS AND CAME TO THE RIGHT
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         1  DECISION.  THEY JUST DON'T LIKE IT.

         2           NOW, FIRST, WERE YOU AWARE OF COMPLAINTS RELAYED

         3  FROM MICROSOFT TO SUN ABOUT THE JRI DESIGN?

         4  A.   I DON'T KNOW BECAUSE I DON'T KNOW WHAT "JRI DESIGN"

         5  REFERS TO HERE.

         6  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.

         7  A.   IT MAY SAY ELSEWHERE, BUT I DON'T SEE IT.

         8  Q.   IF YOU DON'T KNOW WHAT JRI STANDS FOR, WE COULD GO

         9  ON.

        10           AND, I TAKE IT, YOUR TESTIMONY IS YOU DON'T KNOW

        11  WHAT THEY'RE TALKING ABOUT?

        12  A.   NO, I DON'T KNOW SPECIFICALLY WHAT THEY'RE TALKING

        13  ABOUT.

        14  Q.   DO YOU KNOW GENERALLY WHAT THEY'RE TALKING ABOUT?

        15  A.   WELL, AS A GENERAL RULE, I KNOW THAT SUN WAS

        16  DESIGNING NEW INTERFACES IN THIS TIME FRAME AND EXTENDING

        17  JAVA, AND MICROSOFT FELT AS IF WE WERE BEING EXCLUDED FROM

        18  THAT PROCESS.

        19           THE COURT:  AND HAD YOU DIVINED THAT JRI IS AN

        20  INTERFACE?

        21           THE WITNESS:  IT COULD BE, YOUR HONOR, I'M SORRY,

        22  BUT I'M NOT CERTAIN.

        23           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        24  BY MR. BOIES:

        25  Q.   LET'S LOOK AT THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE, WHERE IT SAYS
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         1  THIS WAS DIRECTED TO ALAN FROM JON KANNEGAARD.  "YOU ASKED

         2  FOR INFORMATION ON THE JRI DESIGN PROCESS WHICH MICROSOFT

         3  HAS COMPLAINED ABOUT.  I LOOKED INTO IT.  IT'S

         4  UNIMPEACHABLE.  THE ONLY LEGITIMATE COMPLAINT IS THAT IN

         5  THE END WE DID NOT AGREE WITH MICROSOFT.  HERE IS WHAT WE

         6  DID:  ONE, STARTED A NEWGROUP TO DISCUSS THE TOPIC; TWO

         7  STARTED THE DISCUSSION OFF WITH A PRIMER ON THE ISSUE;

         8  THREE, SOLICITED OPINIONS; FOUR, GOT INPUT FROM MICROSOFT,

         9  IBM, APPLE, INTEL, NETSCAPE, ILOG, AND OTHER PARTS OF

        10  SUN."

        11           NOW, IS THAT THE TYPICAL WAY THAT SUN APPROACHED

        12  INTERFACE QUESTIONS, SIR?

        13  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  IF BY "NEWGROUP" THEY MEANT NEWSGROUP,

        14  MEANING AN INTERNET NEWSGROUP, THEN TYPICALLY, YES, THAT

        15  WAS THE WAY IT WAS APPROACHED BY SUN.  HOWEVER, I WILL SAY

        16  THAT I HAVE SEEN AS A PART OF REVIEWING MY TESTIMONY SOME

        17  OTHER INTERNAL E-MAILS FROM SUN THAT INDICATED THAT WHILE

        18  THEY WERE STARTING THIS NEWSGROUP, THEY WERE NOT INCLUDING

        19  MICROSOFT AS THE GROUP WITHIN THE GROUP OF PEOPLE THAT

        20  THEY WERE ACTUALLY TAKING INPUT FROM.

        21  Q.   WELL, HERE IT SAYS THEY GOT INPUT FROM MICROSOFT, AND

        22  YOU DON'T HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THAT, DO YOU, SIR?

        23  A.   THEY GOT INPUT FROM US, YES.

        24  Q.   AND IT GOES ON TO SAY, "EVERYONE WROTE THOUGHTFUL,

        25  CIVIL, CAREFULLY-CONSIDERED ANALYSIS.  SOME ARE QUITE LONG
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         1  WITH EXAMPLES."

         2           AND THEN AT THE TOP OF THE PAGE, ON THE SECOND

         3  PAGE, IT LISTED ADDITIONAL THINGS THAT WERE DONE, AND THEN

         4  CONTINUES.  "YOU CAN LOOK AT THIS YOURSELF.  IF YOU DO,

         5  YOU WILL FIND THAT THE MICROSOFT PROPOSAL WAS SERIOUSLY

         6  CONSIDERED BUT, IN THE END, REJECTED FOR LEGITIMATE

         7  TECHNICAL REASONS.  YOU WILL FIND THAT IBM, APPLE, AND

         8  SMLI ALL REACHED THIS CONCLUSION WITHOUT ANY HELP FROM

         9  US."

        10           WAS THAT EVER CONVEYED TO MICROSOFT, TO YOUR

        11  KNOWLEDGE?

        12  A.   YES, IN THE SENSE THAT SUN, IN A CONVERSATION, DID

        13  SAY THEY WOULD LISTEN TO OUR INPUT, BUT WE HAD NEVER SEEN

        14  THEM RESPOND IN ANY WAY POSITIVE TO IT.

        15  Q.   WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN INTERFACES AND CERTAIN

        16  JUDGMENT DECISIONS, DID THEY GO THE WAY YOU WANTED THEM

        17  TO, SIR?

        18  A.   NO, THEY DID NOT.

        19  Q.   NEVER?  IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY THAT THEY ALWAYS REJECTED

        20  YOUR INPUT?

        21  A.   TO THE BEST OF MY RECOLLECTION, YES.

        22  Q.   WERE YOU INVOLVED IN THESE DISCUSSIONS WITH INTEL,

        23  SIR?  I MEAN, WITH SUN.

        24  A.   WITH--AT THE EXECUTIVE LEVEL I WAS, YES.  I WAS

        25  TALKING TO ALAN BARATZ, THE PRESIDENT OF JAVASOFT.  AT THE
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         1  DETAILED TECHNICAL LEVEL, NO, I PERSONALLY DID NOT

         2  PARTICIPATE.

         3  Q.   BUT YOU WOULD HAVE KNOWN WHAT INPUT MICROSOFT WAS

         4  FURNISHING SUN; CORRECT?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND YOU WOULD HAVE KNOW WHAT SUN WAS DOING IN

         7  RESPONSE TO THAT INPUT?

         8  A.   WELL, I HAVE NOW SINCE DIVINED THAT SUN HAD SAID UP

         9  FRONT THAT THEY WEREN'T PLANNING ON LISTENING TO US, BUT

        10  THAT WAS APPARENT IN MY CONVERSATIONS WITH ALAN, THAT, IN

        11  FACT, NONE OF OUR INPUT WAS BEING CONSIDERED.

        12  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU SAY YOU HAVE SINCE DIVINED, YOU MEAN

        13  THAT THIS IS SOMETHING YOU HAVE COME TO BELIEVE IN THE

        14  COURSE OF YOUR PREPARATION FOR THIS TESTIMONY?

        15  A.   YES, BY REVIEWING INTERNAL SUN DOCUMENTS.

        16  Q.   AND WHO SELECTED THOSE INTERNAL SUN DOCUMENTS FOR YOU

        17  TO REVIEW?

        18  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHO SELECTED THEM.  THEY WERE PRESENTED

        19  TO ME BY MY ATTORNEYS.

        20  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU TO LOOK AT ONE OF MICROSOFT'S

        21  EXHIBITS, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 1918.

        22           AND I AM--THIS IS ALSO A SUN INTERNAL DOCUMENT;

        23  IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

        24  A.   IT STARTS OUT WITH, I BELIEVE, TWO E-MAILS THAT I

        25  SENT TO--WELL, ACTUALLY THE VERY LAST THING, WHICH I THINK
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         1  IS UNRELATED, IS MAIL FROM SCOTT RUTMAN, BUT I KNOW I

         2  BEGAN THIS E-MAIL THREAD FROM ALAN BARATZ BY SENDING HIM

         3  TWO MESSAGES SUBSEQUENTLY.  AND I BELIEVE THE FIRST ONE

         4  WAS DATED FRIDAY, AUGUST 16TH, AND THE ONE WAS SLIGHTLY

         5  LATER, SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 7TH, 1996.

         6  Q.   THE FIRST E-MAIL AT THE TOP OF THE FIRST PAGE IS

         7  DATED SEPTEMBER 10, 1996; CORRECT, SIR?

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   AND THAT IS AN INTERNAL SUN DOCUMENT; CORRECT, SIR?

        10  A.   YES, IT IS.

        11  Q.   OR IT MAY HAVE GONE TO PEOPLE OUTSIDE OF SUN, BUT IT

        12  WAS, AT LEAST, AUTHORED BY SUN PEOPLE; CORRECT?

        13  A.   IF IT WENT OUTSIDE OF SUN, I WAS UNAWARE OF IT.  IT

        14  WAS AUTHORED BY SUN, YES.

        15  Q.   AND THE LAST PARAGRAPH SAYS, "CONSISTENTLY,

        16  MICROSOFT'S IDEA OF WORKING WITH US IS TO OFFER US SOME

        17  SPECS CLEARLY AIMED AT THE WINDOWS 32 PLATFORM, THEN BALK

        18  WHEN WE JUST DON'T ACCEPT THEM.  THIS WAS CLEARLY TRUE FOR

        19  JAR AND, PERHAPS, ALMOST EVERYTHING ELSE ON THE LIST.

        20           DID YOU KNOW WHAT IS MEANT BY "JAR" THERE?

        21  A.   YES.  JAR IS A MECHANISM THAT SUN USES TO PACKAGE

        22  JAVA APPLETS FOR DOWNLOADING OVER THE INTERNET.

        23  Q.   AND YOU DON'T HAVE ANY REASON TO DOUBT THAT THE SUN

        24  VIEW EXPRESSED HERE WAS, AT LEAST, SUN'S VIEW OF WHAT

        25  MICROSOFT WAS DOING, DO YOU, SIR?

                                                           92

         1  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT THEIR VIEW WAS.

         2  Q.   DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THIS WAS AN ACCURATE REFLECTION

         3  OF MICROSOFT'S APPROACH?

         4  A.   NO.

         5           AND, IN FACT, IF YOU LOOK AT LATER IN THIS

         6  DOCUMENT AT THE E-MAIL THAT I SENT TO ALAN BARATZ, DATED

         7  FRIDAY, AUGUST 16TH, THE FOURTH PARAGRAPH IN THAT FIRST,

         8  SECOND, THIRD, FOURTH THAT BEGINS WITH, "SO, I DON'T THINK

         9  THAT THIS IS A TECHNICAL QUESTION," IF I MAY READ IT, "SO,

        10  I DON'T THINK THAT THIS IS A TECHNICAL QUESTION.  IT'S

        11  REALLY AN ISSUE OF WHETHER OR NOT SUN AND MICROSOFT ARE

        12  GOING TO CONVERGE ON A COMMON SET OF JAVA INTERFACES.

        13  NEEDLESS TO SAY, I THINK THAT THERE ARE ENORMOUS

        14  ADVANTAGES TO US DOING THIS.  THIS WOULD HAVE A VERY

        15  POSITIVE IMPACT ON THE INDUSTRY, WHILE MANY OF

        16  OUR--POSITIVE IMPACT ON THE INDUSTRY.  WHILE MANY OF OUR

        17  OBJECTIVES ARE DIFFERENT, IT SEEMS LIKE CONVERGING ON THIS

        18  AREA BENEFITS THE INTERESTS OF BOTH MICROSOFT AND

        19  JAVASOFT."

        20           EFFECTIVELY, I NEVER HEARD A RESPONSE TO THIS

        21  PROPOSAL FROM ALAN--TO ALAN.

        22  Q.   NOW, SIR, WHEN YOU WERE TELLING SUN THAT YOU THOUGHT

        23  IT WAS DESIRABLE TO CONVERGE--

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   --THIS WAS IN THE FALL OF 1996; CORRECT, SIR?
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         1  A.   YES, IT WAS.

         2  Q.   AND THAT WAS THE TIME WHEN MICROSOFT WAS INTERNALLY

         3  SAYING THAT A FAILURE TO CONVERGE WAS A SUPER OUTCOME

         4  BECAUSE IT LED TO FRAGMENTATION; CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   NO, THAT'S NOT WHAT WE ARE SAYING INTERNALLY.  BEN

         6  MAY HAVE PUT THAT IN HIS DEPOSITION, BUT INTERNALLY, THERE

         7  WAS A LOT OF CONCERN ABOUT WORKING WITH SUN BECAUSE,

         8  EFFECTIVELY, THEY WERE VIOLATING THE CONTRACT WITH US, AND

         9  WE HAD SEEN--WE HAD MADE PROPOSALS TO THEM.  THEY WOULD

        10  NEVER RESPOND TO THEM.

        11           I WAS TRYING TO WORK WITH JAVASOFT AND ALAN

        12  BARATZ, THE PRESIDENT OF JAVASOFT, TO GET A CONVERGED SET

        13  OF INTERFACES OUT INTO THE INDUSTRY.

        14  Q.   WHEN DID YOU BELIEVE SUN STARTED TO VIOLATE THEIR

        15  CONTRACT WITH YOU?

        16  A.   IN MAY OF 1996.

        17  Q.   AND DID I UNDERSTAND YOU TO SAY THAT MR. SLIVKA MAY

        18  HAVE TALKED ABOUT DISAGREEING WITH FRAGMENTATION AS BEING

        19  A SUPER OUTCOME IN HIS DEPOSITION, BUT THAT WASN'T

        20  SOMETHING THAT YOU TALKED ABOUT OR WROTE ABOUT INTERNALLY

        21  WITHIN MICROSOFT?  IS THAT WHAT YOU MEANT TO SAY?

        22  A.   NO, THAT'S NOT WHAT I MEANT TO SAY.  THERE ARE MANY

        23  E-MAILS WHERE PEOPLE SHARES LOTS OF IDEAS.  I WAS

        24  ESTABLISHING OUR POLICY WITH SUN WITH RESPECT TO JAVA AT

        25  THAT TIME.  AND I WAS CONSISTENTLY, THROUGH THAT WHOLE
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         1  PERIOD, EVEN WHILE THEY WERE VIOLATING OUR CONTRACT, EVEN

         2  WHILE IT WAS OBVIOUS THAT ALL THEY WERE TRYING TO DO WAS

         3  USE THIS CONTRACT AS A WAY TO COMPETE AGAINST US, I WAS

         4  TRYING TO FIND WAYS TO WORK WITH THEM AND DEFINE COMMON

         5  INTERFACES.

         6  Q.   IN THE FALL OF 1996, SIR, DID YOU BELIEVE THAT SUN

         7  AND MICROSOFT DISAGREEING WOULD BE A SUPER OUTCOME BECAUSE

         8  IT WOULD LEAD TO MORE FRAGMENTATION?

         9  A.   NO, I DID NOT.

        10  Q.   LET ME ASK THAT YOU LOOK AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1910,

        11  WHICH I WOULD OFFER AT THIS TIME.

        12           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        13           MR. BURT:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.

        14           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1910 IS ADMITTED.

        15                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1910 WAS

        16                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        17  BY MR. BOIES:

        18  Q.   NOW, THIS IS DATED OCTOBER 25, 1996; CORRECT, SIR?

        19  A.   IT STARTED ON OCTOBER 24TH, BUT THE TOP IS DATED

        20  OCTOBER 25TH, YES.

        21  Q.   MR. SLIVKA'S E-MAIL TO YOU AND MR. LUDWIG IS DATED

        22  OCTOBER 25TH, 1996, AT 11:07 P.M.; CORRECT?

        23  A.   YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        24  Q.   AND MR. SLIVKA WRITES HERE, IN LANGUAGE REMARKABLY

        25  SIMILAR TO THE DEPOSITION, "IF SUN AND WE DISAGREE ON THIS
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         1  AND DIVERGE IN THESE AREAS, AS LONG AS NETSCAPE DOESN'T

         2  BUDDY-UP WITH SUN, THAT IS A SUPER OUTCOME FOR US (MORE

         3  FRAGMENTATION)."

         4           NOW, YOU UNDERSTOOD IN OCTOBER OF 1996 THAT THIS

         5  WAS, AT LEAST, MR. SLIVKA'S VIEW; CORRECT, SIR?

         6  A.   YES, I DID.

         7  Q.   DID YOU EVER WRITE MR. SLIVKA BACK AND TELL HIM YOU

         8  THOUGHT THAT WAS WRONG?

         9  A.   WELL, YES, IN THE SENSE THAT THE MAIL THAT HE WAS

        10  RESPONDING TO FOR ME--THIS IS AN ONGOING TRAIN OF

        11  THOUGHT--BEN HAD, IN HIS INITIAL MAIL, SUGGESTED WE START

        12  CREATING A SET OF EXTENSIONS TO JAVA WITHOUT INVOLVING

        13  SUN.

        14           I RESPONDED TO HIM AND SAID--AND I QUOTE--"THIS

        15  IS WHERE THE RUBBER MEETS THE ROAD.  THIS IS THE IDEAL

        16  THING TO COLLABORATE ON WITH SUN.  WE REALLY DON'T WANT

        17  DIVERGING WAYS OF DOING THESE THINGS.  JOHN, THIS IS YOUR

        18  CALL, BUT I WOULD SUGGEST THAT WE SELECT ONE OF THESE

        19  THINGS AND USE THAT AS A CONTEXT FOR ENGAGEMENT WITH

        20  KANNEGAARD"--MEANING JON KANNEGAARD--"WHAT THINK?"

        21  Q.   AND THEN MR. LUDWIG, WHOSE CALL YOU SAID IT WAS,

        22  SAYS, "I WOULD BE WILLING TO DO ONE SMALL EXPERIMENT, BUT

        23  MOSTLY FOR THE SAKE OF CONSENSUS.  LEFT TO MY DRUTHERS, I

        24  WOULD CONTINUE TO INNOVATE SEPARATELY FROM SUN AND NOT

        25  GIVE THEM ANY INFORMATION ON ANYTHING."
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         1           AND THEN AFTER THAT, MR. SLIVKA WRITES, "IF SUN

         2  AND WE DISAGREE ON THIS AND DIVERGE IN THESE AREAS, AS

         3  LONG AS NETSCAPE DOESN'T BUDDY-UP WITH SUN, THAT IS A

         4  SUPER OUTCOME FOR US (MORE FRAGMENTATION)."

         5           AND DID YOU EVER--AFTER MR. SLIVKA WROTE THAT TO

         6  YOU, DID YOU EVER WRITE HIM BACK AND SAY, "NO, YOU'RE

         7  WRONG, WE DON'T WANT MORE FRAGMENTATION"?

         8  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT I PUT IN WRITING OR NOT.

         9           I DO KNOW THAT I TALKED TO BOTH BEN SLIVKA AND

        10  JOHN LUDWIG AFTER THIS DISCUSSION WENT ON.

        11           AND, IN FACT, WE DID HAVE ADDITIONAL DISCUSSIONS

        12  WITH SUN ABOUT THE SPECIFIC AREA HERE, WHICH IS WORKING

        13  TOGETHER TO DEFINE LANGUAGE EXTENSIONS.

        14           AND I WOULD ALSO SAY, JUST TO BE CLEAR, THAT WHAT

        15  JOHN IS SAYING HERE IS THAT IN THE CONTEXT WHERE SUN HAS

        16  NOT RESPONDED TO MICROSOFT AND IS SHOWING THAT ALL THEY

        17  WANT TO DO IS COMPETE WITH US, HE'S SAYING THAT HE'S

        18  WILLING TO DO THIS.  HE SAID, "I WOULD BE WILLING TO DO

        19  ONE MORE SMALL EXPERIMENT," AND BY THAT I MEAN HE DOESN'T

        20  BELIEVE--I THINK HE MEANT HE DOESN'T BELIEVE THAT IT WAS

        21  GOING TO WORK.  BUT HE DID INDICATE THAT HE WAS WILLING TO

        22  CONTINUE TO WORK WITH THEM EVEN IN THAT CONTEXT.

        23  Q.   AND I DON'T MEAN TO PROLONG THIS UNNECESSARILY, SIR,

        24  BUT WHAT WAS MR. SLIVKA'S POSITION AT THIS TIME?

        25  A.   MR. SLIVKA'S POSITION WAS THAT JAVASOFT.
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         1  Q.   I MEANT IN--I APOLOGIZE.  MY QUESTION WAS AMBIGUOUS.

         2           I MEANT IN THE ORGANIZATION--

         3  A.   OH, I'M SORRY.

         4  Q.   --OF MICROSOFT.

         5  A.   I'M SORRY.

         6           MR. SLIVKA REPORTED TO JOHN LUDWIG.  MR. SLIVKA

         7  WAS RUNNING THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE GROUP AT THE TIME.

         8  Q.   HE WAS RUNNING THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE GROUP?

         9  A.   YES.

        10  Q.   AND AS THE PERSON RUNNING THE JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE

        11  GROUP, HE EXPRESSED THIS VIEW.

        12           AND HAVE YOU EVER SEEN A CONTRARY VIEW EXPRESSED

        13  SUBSEQUENT TO THIS E-MAIL IN WRITING, IN ANY EVENT, SO WE

        14  COULD FIND IT AND CHECK IT.

        15  A.   YES, I HAVE IN THE SENSE THAT I KNOW--REMEMBER:  THE

        16  VIEW THAT HE WAS EXPRESSING WAS JAVASOFT WAS NOT

        17  COOPERATING WITH US AND THAT HE WANTED TO BEGIN INNOVATING

        18  WITHOUT WORKING WITH THEM, BECAUSE, IN FACT, HE WAS SO

        19  FRUSTRATED THAT THEY NEVER WOULD WORK WITH US.

        20           AND YES, BEN DID FOLLOW UP EARLY THE FOLLOWING

        21  YEAR IN A MEETING WHICH--WITH JAVASOFT AND OTHERS IN AN

        22  ATTEMPT TO ACHIEVE SOME CONSENSUS IN THIS AREA.

        23  Q.   MAYBE MY QUESTION WASN'T CLEAR.

        24           MR. SLIVKA, IN HIS E-MAIL HERE, SAYS THAT SUN AND

        25  MICROSOFT DISAGREEING IS A SUPER OUTCOME FOR MICROSOFT
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         1  BECAUSE IT LEADS TO FRAGMENTATION.

         2           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         3  A.   I DO.

         4  Q.   NOW, I HAVE A SIMPLE QUESTION.

         5           DO YOU KNOW OF ANY DOCUMENT THAT EXISTS

         6  SUBSEQUENT TO THIS THAT TAKES A CONTRARY POSITION; THAT

         7  IS, THAT IT TAKES A POSITION THAT FRAGMENTATION IS NOT

         8  SOMETHING THAT MICROSOFT WANTS?

         9  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I KNOW THAT MY FOCUS HERE WAS TRYING

        10  TO WORK WITH SUN.

        11           AND MY ENGAGEMENT WITH BEN, FOLLOWING THIS

        12  E-MAIL, WAS NOT ABOUT SOME INFLAMMATORY WORDS HE WAS

        13  WRITING.  BUT, INSTEAD, IT WAS ABOUT TRYING TO WORK WITH

        14  BEN TO GET HIM TO WORK WITH SUN, BECAUSE I THOUGHT THAT

        15  WAS RIGHT, AS REFLECTED IN THIS MAIL.

        16           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

        17           THE COURT:  AND YOU WILL BE HOW LONG, MR. BURT?

        18           MR. BURT:  I WOULD SAY 30 TO 40 MINUTES, YOUR

        19  HONOR.

        20           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL TAKE A 10-MINUTE

        21  RECESS.

        22           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        23           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT, SIR.

        24           MR. BURT:  GOOD AFTERNOON, YOUR HONOR.

        25           THE COURT:  GOOD AFTERNOON.
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         1                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

         2  BY MR. BURT:

         3  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, I HAVE A FEW QUESTIONS FOR YOU ABOUT SOME

         4  OF THE QUESTIONS MR. BOIES ASKED.  IF WE COULD BEGIN BY

         5  LOOKING AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 259, ONE OF THE FIRST

         6  DOCUMENTS MR. BOIES SHOWED YOU.  AND, IN PARTICULAR, THE

         7  PHRASE AT THE TOP THAT HE FOCUSED ON, UNDER "STRATEGIC

         8  OBJECTIVE."

         9           NOW, MR. MUGLIA, THIS DOCUMENT WAS A DRAFT BY A

        10  JUNIOR PERSON OF A PRICING PROPOSAL; IS THAT RIGHT?

        11  A.   YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        12  Q.   OKAY.  AND THE STATEMENT UNDER "STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE,

        13  KILL CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA BY GROW THE POLLUTED JAVA

        14  MARKET," AT ANY TIME, MR. MUGLIA, WAS THAT AN ACCURATE

        15  STATEMENT OF MICROSOFT'S JAVA OBJECTIVES?

        16  A.   NO, THAT'S NOT.

        17  Q.   COULD YOU EXPLAIN TO THE COURT WHY NOT.

        18  A.   WELL, WE WERE BUILDING, AS A PART OF OUR JAVA

        19  STRATEGY, OUR JAVA STRATEGY WAS FOCUSED ON OUTINNOVATING

        20  SUN, AND WE HAD BEST THE BUILT IMPLEMENTATION OF

        21  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA IN THE MARKETPLACE.  IT IS PART OF OUR

        22  STRATEGY VERY MUCH TO ALSO GIVE DEVELOPERS THE CHOICE TO

        23  BUILD WINDOWS APPLICATIONS.

        24           SO, THIS STATEMENT, AS WORDED HERE, IS WRONG,

        25  BECAUSE, REALLY, OUR FOCUS IS NOT TO KILL CROSS-PLATFORM
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         1  JAVA; WE ARE BUILDING GREAT CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA SUPPORT.

         2  WE HAVE A FOCUS TO COMPETE AGAINST SUN WITH THEIR JAVA

         3  PLATFORM RELATIVE TO WINDOWS.

         4  Q.   AND IN TERMS OF THE JAVA PLATFORM, MR. MUGLIA, AS

         5  DISTINCT FROM TRUE PURE CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA PROGRAMS, BUT

         6  IN TERMS OF THE JAVA PLATFORM, IS MICROSOFT COMPETING

         7  AGAINST SUN IN THAT AREA?

         8  A.   YES, WE ARE.

         9  Q.   AND ARE YOU DOING EVERYTHING YOU CAN TO WIN THAT

        10  COMPETITION?

        11  A.   YES, WE ARE.

        12  Q.   AND HAS THAT CONSISTENTLY BEEN PART OF MICROSOFT'S

        13  STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE?

        14  A.   YES, IT HAS.

        15  Q.   NOW, IF WE COULD LOOK AT--MR. BOIES ASKED YOU A

        16  NUMBER OF QUESTIONS RELATIVE TO THE SUBJECT OF FRAGMENTING

        17  THE JAVA MARKET.

        18           DO YOU RECALL THOSE QUESTIONS GENERALLY?

        19  A.   GENERALLY, YES.

        20  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO LOOK AT ONE OF THE EXHIBITS HE SHOWED

        21  YOU, WHICH WAS EXHIBIT 470, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 470.  AND

        22  IF WE COULD LOOK AT THE PAGE THAT ENDS 850, WHICH IS ONE

        23  OF THE PAGES MR. BOIES SHOWED YOU.

        24  A.   OKAY.  YES, I HAVE THAT.

        25  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  NOW, MR. BOIES ASKED YOU SOME QUESTIONS
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         1  ABOUT THIS.  AND YOU ALSO EXPLAINED TO THE COURT WHAT WAS

         2  MEANT BY THE FIRST BULLET POINT, AND THERE WAS SOME

         3  DISCUSSION ABOUT THE THIRD BULLET POINT.  AND I'M

         4  INTERESTED IN THE SECOND BULLET POINT AND, IN PARTICULAR,

         5  THE SECOND ITEM, "NETSCAPE ONE COULD FRAGMENT THE MARKET."

         6           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         7  A.   YES, I DO.

         8  Q.   COULD YOU EXPLAIN TO THE COURT WHAT THAT REFERENCE IS

         9  TO.

        10  A.   NETSCAPE ONE IS A SET OF JAVA CLASS LIBRARIES THAT

        11  NETSCAPE WAS MARKETING ON OR ABOUT THIS TIME, AND I

        12  BELIEVE THAT POINT IS IN REFERENCE TO THE FACT THAT THOSE

        13  CLASS LIBRARIES WERE, IN EFFECT, COMPETITIVE WITH SUN'S

        14  JAVA PLATFORM, SO THAT POINT MEANT THAT NETSCAPE

        15  COULD--NETSCAPE AND SUN COLLECTIVELY COULD FRAGMENT THE

        16  MARKET.

        17  Q.   AND WHEN YOU SAY "NETSCAPE AND SUN COLLECTIVELY," YOU

        18  MEAN BETWEEN NETSCAPE AND SUN'S COMPETING IMPLEMENTATIONS

        19  THAT COULD FRAGMENT THE MARKET?

        20  A.   YES.  IN ESSENCE, AT THIS TIME, IT APPEARED TO US TO

        21  BE NETSCAPE'S POSITION IN A SENSE THAT THEY WERE COMPETING

        22  WITH SUN FOR JAVA DEVELOPERS.

        23  Q.   AND IN THE TERMS OF JAVA DEVELOPERS, WHAT DID THAT

        24  MEAN IN THIS CONTEXT WHEN YOU SAID THAT NETSCAPE ONE COULD

        25  FRAGMENT THE MARKET?
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         1  A.   NETSCAPE WAS PROVIDING DEVELOPERS WITH ALTERNATIVE

         2  CHOICES TO WHAT SUN WAS PROPOSING, AND THOSE CHOICES COULD

         3  HAVE THE RESULT OF FRAGMENTING THE MARKET.

         4  Q.   NOW, YOU ADDRESS, MR. MUGLIA, IN YOUR DIRECT

         5  TESTIMONY THE FACT THAT SUN HAS ISSUED MULTIPLE DIFFERENT

         6  VERSIONS OF ITS OWN JAVA TECHNOLOGY.

         7           DO YOU RECALL THAT TESTIMONY GENERALLY?

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   DO THE MULTIPLE VERSIONS OF SUN'S OWN TECHNOLOGY HAVE

        10  ANY IMPACT ON THE FRAGMENTATION OF THE JAVA MARKET?

        11  A.   YES, THEY DO.  WHEN DEVELOPERS CHOOSE TO WRITE A

        12  CROSS-PLATFORM JAVA PROGRAM, THEY HAVE TO DECIDE WHAT

        13  VERSION OF JAVA TO TARGET.  AND SO, IN ESSENCE, SUN HAS,

        14  ITSELF, FRAGMENTED THE MARKET WITH MULTIPLE VERSIONS OF

        15  JAVA, ALL OF WHICH HAVE INCLUDED INCOMPATIBLES.

        16  Q.   NOW, MR. BOIES ALSO DIRECTED YOU TO SOME DEPOSITION

        17  TESTIMONY FROM MR. SLIVKA.

        18           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        19  A.   YES, I DO.

        20  Q.   AND THEN AT THE END OF HIS EXAMINATION HE SHOWED YOU

        21  A DOCUMENT WITH LANGUAGE HE CALLED "REMARKABLY SIMILAR TO

        22  MR. SLIVKA'S DEPOSITION TESTIMONY."

        23           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        24  A.   YES, I DO.

        25  Q.   I WOULD LIKE YOU TO LOOK FIRST AT THE DEPOSITION
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         1  TESTIMONY SO WE CAN EXPLAIN TO THE COURT WHY THERE WAS

         2  SUCH A SIMILARITY.  AND IF YOU WOULD LOOK AT MR. SLIVKA'S

         3  DEPOSITION, PAGE 203 IS THE PORTION THAT MR. BOIES

         4  DIRECTED YOUR ATTENTION TO.  AND SORT OF LIKE NOW UP ON

         5  THE SCREEN THERE WAS A SNIPPET OF THAT DEPOSITION THAT

         6  SAID, "IF SUN AND WE DISAGREE ON THIS AND DIVERGE IN THESE

         7  AREAS, AS LONG AS NETSCAPE DOESN'T BUDDY-UP WITH SUN,

         8  THAT'S A SUPER OUTCOME FOR US (MORE FRAGMENTATION)."

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   YES, I DO.

        11  Q.   MR. BOIES SEEMED SURPRISED THAT THAT WAS SO SIMILAR

        12  TO MR. SLIVKA'S E-MAIL THAT HE SHOWED YOU AT THE END OF

        13  HIS DEPOSITION, WHICH, AS IT TURNS OUT, HAS THOSE PRECISE

        14  WORDS IN THE E-MAIL.

        15           NOW, YOU WILL NOTICE, MR. MUGLIA, THAT, IN FACT,

        16  THOSE PRECISE WORDS ARE IN QUOTATIONS HERE IN THE

        17  QUESTION.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        19  A.   YES, I DO.

        20  Q.   WOULD YOU LOOK AT THE IMMEDIATELY PROCEEDING QUESTION

        21  IN THE DEPOSITION AT THE BOTTOM OF PAGE 202.  THE

        22  QUESTIONER AT THIS POINT IN MR. SLIVKA'S DEPOSITION WAS

        23  READING, THE LAST PARAGRAPH YOU SAY, QUOTE--AND HE GOES ON

        24  TO QUOTE THE PARAGRAPH.  AND THEN THE ANSWER AT THE TOP OF

        25  203, MR. SLIVKA SAYS YES, AND THEN HE GOES ON--THE
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         1  QUESTIONER--TO QUOTE THE PARAGRAPH.

         2           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         3  A.   YES, I DO.

         4  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  NOW, LET'S FOCUS, THEN, NOT ON THE

         5  READING OF THE EXHIBIT FROM THE DEPOSITION, BUT ON THE

         6  ACTUAL EXHIBIT ITSELF, WHICH IS EXHIBIT 1910, GOVERNMENT

         7  EXHIBIT 1910.

         8           AND MR. SLIVKA STATES--AND AGAIN, YOU EXPLAINED

         9  ALREADY THAT THIS WAS NOT YOUR VIEW, BUT I WOULD LIKE TO

        10  ADDRESS YOUR ATTENTION TO MR. SLIVKA'S STATEMENT AT THE

        11  TOP OF THE PAGE AND A COUPLE OF THINGS MR. BOIES DID NOT

        12  ADDRESS YOUR ATTENTION TO.

        13           MR. SLIVKA STARTS BY SAYING, "BOB, SUN HAS BEEN

        14  PRESENTING THINGS TO US AS FAIT ACCOMPLI.  DO YOU REALLY

        15  THINK THAT I COULD GET KANNEGAARD TO AGREE TO COOPERATE

        16  WITH US ON LANGUAGE EXTENSIONS?"

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        18  A.   YES, I DO.

        19  Q.   WAS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF THIS ENTIRE DISCUSSION

        20  THAT IT DEALT WITH LANGUAGE EXTENSIONS IN PARTICULAR?

        21  A.   YES, IT DID.

        22  Q.   OKAY.  AND CAN YOU EXPLAIN TO THE COURT WHAT THE

        23  DIFFERENCE IS BETWEEN TALKING ABOUT DOING LANGUAGE

        24  EXTENSIONS, ON THE ONE HAND, AND ANY OTHER SORT OF JAVA

        25  API'S, ON THE OTHER HAND.
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         1  A.   YES, THERE WAS ALWAYS AN EXPECTATION THAT MICROSOFT

         2  WOULD DEVELOP INDEPENDENT JAVA API'S, AND THAT WAS REALLY

         3  JUST PART OF--THAT WAS A CORE PART OF EXPOSING OUR WINDOWS

         4  PLATFORM:  TAKING THE WINDOWS API'S AND MAKING THEM

         5  AVAILABLE TO JAVA DEVELOPERS.

         6           NOW, IN THE COURSE OF OUR BUSINESS, WE DISCOVERED

         7  THAT TO DO THAT IN THE BEST POSSIBLE WAY, THERE WAS A SET

         8  OF LANGUAGE EXTENSIONS THAT COULD HELP THE JAVA DEVELOPER.

         9  AND BECAUSE THOSE CHANGES INVOLVED CHANGES TO THE

        10  LANGUAGE, I CERTAINLY BELIEVE THAT THAT'S SOMETHING WE

        11  WANTED TO DO IN CONJUNCTION WITH SUN, IF IT WAS AT ALL

        12  POSSIBLE.  IT TURNED OUT TO NOT BE POSSIBLE, BUT I SURE

        13  WANTED TO GIVE IT A TRY.

        14           THE COURT:  WERE THE LANGUAGE EXTENSIONS

        15  PROPRIETARY TO MICROSOFT?

        16           THE WITNESS:  NO, THEY WERE NOT.

        17           IN FACT, WE SUGGESTED THEM TO SUN AS WELL AS

        18  OTHER VENDORS.

        19           AND, IN FACT, THEY ARE ALL FULLY PUBLISHED, AND

        20  ANYONE CAN TAKE ADVANTAGE OF THEM NOW, IF THEY WANTED TO.

        21           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        22  BY MR. BURT:

        23  Q.   NOW, MR. MUGLIA, IN THE THIRD PARAGRAPH, THE ONE THAT

        24  WAS QUOTED IN THE DEPOSITION THAT MR. BOIES ADDRESSED YOUR

        25  ATTENTION TO, IT SAYS, "IF SUN AND WE DISAGREE ON THIS AND
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         1  DIVERGE IN THOSE AREAS, AS LONG AS NETSCAPE DOESN'T

         2  BUDDY-UP WITH SUN"--DO YOU SEE THAT CLAUSE?

         3  A.   YES.

         4  Q.   NOW, WHY WAS MR. SLIVKA--WHAT WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING

         5  OF WHY MR. SLIVKA REFERRED TO NETSCAPE BUDDYING-UP WITH

         6  SUN IN THIS PORTION OF THE EXHIBIT?

         7  A.   WELL, AT THIS TIME--THIS IS, AGAIN, 1996--THIS IS THE

         8  SAME TIME FRAME THAT NETSCAPE WAS PROMOTING THEIR

         9  ALTERNATIVE API SET--NETSCAPE AND SUN WERE, IN A LARGE

        10  SENSE, COMPETING WITH EACH OTHER FOR JAVA DEVELOPERS.  IN

        11  ESSENCE, THEY BOTH TOGETHER WERE FRAGMENTING THE JAVA

        12  MARKET THROUGH THAT COMPETITION.  BEN EXPRESSED A CONCERN,

        13  WHICH I DO AGREE WITH, THAT SUN AND NETSCAPE WOULD BE A

        14  STRONGER COMPETITOR TO MICROSOFT IF, IN FACT, THEY

        15  COOPERATED TOGETHER, FOCUSSING THEIR COMPETITION ON

        16  MICROSOFT DIRECTLY.

        17  Q.   AT A LATER POINT IN TIME, MR. MUGLIA, DID SUN AND

        18  NETSCAPE JOIN FORCES AND, AS IT SAID HERE, BUDDY-UP ON

        19  THEIR JAVA API'S?

        20  A.   YES, THEY DID.

        21  Q.   AND WHAT WAS THE RESULT OF THAT COLLABORATION?

        22  A.   THE RESULT OF THAT IS THE API'S KNOWN AS THE JAVA

        23  FOUNDATION CLASSES, JFC.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  AND WITH REGARD TO JFC, MR. MUGLIA, MR. BOIES

        25  ALSO SHOWED YOU GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 514.
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         1           COULD WE PUT THAT ON THE SCREEN, PLEASE.

         2           AND THIS WAS THE E-MAIL FROM MR. MARITZ, AND IT'S

         3  DATED JULY 1997.  AND IN THAT LAST SENTENCE OF THE FIRST

         4  PARAGRAPH, MR. MARITZ REFERS TO "JAVA JFC BEING OUR MAJOR

         5  THREAT."

         6           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   AND WHAT WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT MR. MARITZ

         9  MEANT WHEN HE WAS REFERRING TO JAVA/JFC?

        10  A.   HE WAS REFERRING TO THE API'S THAT NETSCAPE AND SUN

        11  WERE WORKING TOGETHER ON, THE JFC API'S, WHICH IS PART OF

        12  THE OVERALL SUN JAVA PLATFORM, WHICH COMPETES WITH

        13  WINDOWS.

        14  Q.   AND THAT WAS SOMETHING THEY WERE WORKING ON JOINTLY?

        15  A.   IN THIS TIME FRAME, YES.

        16  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  NOW, HE GOES ON TO SAY, "THEN NETSCAPE

        17  IS"--IN THE PRESENT TENSE--"THE MAJOR DISTRIBUTION

        18  VEHICLE."

        19           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        20  A.   YES, I DO.

        21  Q.   NOW, IN 1997, WAS NETSCAPE A MAJOR DISTRIBUTION

        22  VEHICLE FOR JFC?

        23  A.   NO, IT WAS NOT.

        24  Q.   TO YOUR KNOWLEDGE, TO THIS DATE, HAS NETSCAPE SHIPPED

        25  A BROWSER THAT INCLUDED JFC?
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         1  A.   TO MY KNOWLEDGE, NO, THEY HAVE NOT.  JFC WAS SHIPPED

         2  AS A PART OF SUN'S JAVA 2, BUT NETSCAPE--OR ALSO KNOWN AS

         3  1.2, BUT NETSCAPE HAS NOT YET SHIPPED THAT.

         4  Q.   IN FACT, JAVA 2 WAS RELEASED AT WHAT TIME BY SUN?

         5  A.   DECEMBER OF 1998.

         6           THE COURT:  SO, IT'S NOT MATERIALIZED AS A

         7  THREAT?

         8           THE WITNESS:  THAT'S CORRECT, YES.

         9  BY MR. BURT:

        10  Q.   DO YOU ANTICIPATE, MR. MUGLIA, THAT JFC--THAT SUN AND

        11  NETSCAPE HAVING WORKED JOINTLY ON JFC AND NOW HAVING

        12  RELEASED IT TO THE MARKET, DO YOU ANTICIPATE AND BELIEVE

        13  THAT THE JFC IS A THREAT TO THE WINDOWS PLATFORM?

        14  A.   YES, I DO.

        15           IN PARTICULAR NOW, NETSCAPE AND AOL, TOGETHER

        16  WITH SUN, HAVE JOINED TOGETHER, AND ONE OF THEIR SPECIFIC

        17  THINGS THEY'VE SAID IS THEY WILL BUILD A VERSION OF

        18  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR THAT INCLUDES ALL OF THE SUN JAVA

        19  PLATFORM INCLUDING JFC, AND THEY'LL USE ALL OF THE

        20  DISTRIBUTION VEHICLES THEY HAVE AVAILABLE TO GET THAT IN

        21  THE MARKET.

        22  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, MR. BOIES ALSO ASKED YOU A NUMBER OF

        23  QUESTIONS ABOUT SOME TECHNOLOGY THAT MICROSOFT HAD UNDER

        24  DEVELOPMENT CALLED "AFC."

        25           DO YOU RECALL THOSE QUESTIONS?
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         1  A.   YES, I DO.

         2  Q.   AND JUST SO THE RECORD IS CLEAR, MR. MUGLIA, WHAT

         3  HAPPENED TO THE AFC PROJECT?

         4  A.   IN THE MID 1997 TIME FRAME, MAY-JUNE 1997 TIME FRAME,

         5  WE RAN SOME PERFORMANCE TESTS ON AFC, AND WE DETERMINED

         6  THAT ALTHOUGH THE PERFORMANCE WAS, IN MANY CASES,

         7  COMPARABLE TO SUN'S CROSS-PLATFORM API'S, THAT IT WAS IN

         8  ALMOST ALL CASES SIGNIFICANTLY SLOWER THAN WHAT WE COULD

         9  GET BY WRITING DIRECTLY TO WINDOWS.  AS A GENERAL RULE, WE

        10  FOUND IT TO BE A FACTOR OF THREE--THREE TIMES SLOWER--THAN

        11  WRITING TO WINDOWS.

        12           AND GIVEN THAT INCREDIBLY POOR PERFORMANCE THAT

        13  AFC WAS GETTING, WE DECIDED TO FOCUS OUR EFFORTS, INSTEAD,

        14  ON EXPOSING WINDOWS API'S TO JAVA DEVELOPERS.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  MR. MUGLIA, MR. BOIES ALSO SHOWED YOU

        16  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 253.

        17           IF WE COULD PUT THAT ON THE SCREEN.

        18           AND, IN PARTICULAR, HE SHOWED YOU THE MESSAGE

        19  FROM MR. GATES AT THE BOTTOM OF THAT FIRST PAGE, IN WHICH

        20  MR. GATES SAID THAT SUPPORTING JDK 1.1 IS FINE.

        21           NOW, AT THIS POINT IN TIME, MAY 1997, WAS

        22  MICROSOFT WORKING ON JDK 1.1 SUPPORT?

        23  A.   YES, WE WERE.

        24  Q.   AND OTHER THAN THE JNI ISSUE THAT MICROSOFT HAS BEEN

        25  LITIGATING WITH SUN IN CALIFORNIA, DOES MICROSOFT--DID
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         1  MICROSOFT EVENTUALLY SUPPORT JDK 1.1?

         2  A.   YES, OTHER THAN THE OPEN QUESTION IN LITIGATION ABOUT

         3  JNI, WE FULLY SUPPORT JDK 1.1 IN INTERNET EXPLORER 4.

         4  Q.   AND AT THIS POINT, IN PART IN RESPONSE TO THE

         5  INJUNCTION IN THAT CASE, DOES MICROSOFT SUPPORT JDK 1.1?

         6  A.   YES, WE DO.

         7  Q.   NOW, MR. GATES ALSO SAID THAT HE'S HARDCORE ABOUT NOT

         8  SUPPORTING JDK 1.2, BUT ON THE SECOND PAGE SAYS, "IF YOU

         9  THINK WE SHOULD SUPPORT JDK 1.2, IT'S OKAY, BUT YOU WILL

        10  REALLY HAVE TO EXPLAIN WHY AND WHERE IT STOPS."

        11           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        12  A.   YES, I DO.

        13  Q.   DID YOU EVER HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO GIVE MR. GATES

        14  THAT EXPLANATION?

        15  A.   YES, I DID.

        16           IN A SUBSEQUENT DISCUSSION WITH BILL, I TALKED TO

        17  HIM ABOUT OUR PLANS TO SUPPORT FUTURE VERSIONS OF JAVA,

        18  AND I REMINDED BILL THAT WE HAVE A SET OF OBLIGATIONS

        19  UNDER THE CONTRACT TO STAY UP-LEVEL--WHEN I SAY

        20  "CONTRACT," I MEAN OUR JAVA CONTRACT WITH SUN, AND WE HAVE

        21  SOME OBLIGATION TO STAY UP-LEVEL WITH THAT.  IN OTHER

        22  WORDS, TO SUPPORT THE LATEST VERSIONS.

        23           I DID ALSO REMIND BILL THAT AS A PART OF THAT

        24  CONTRACT, WE DON'T HAVE TO SHIP THE SUN API'S INSIDE

        25  WINDOWS, INSIDE OUR PRODUCTS.  WE HAVE THE ABILITY TO PUT
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         1  THEM ON OUR WEB SITE.

         2           SO, WHEN BILL SAID SUPPORT, IT WAS MY

         3  UNDERSTANDING HERE THAT HE ACTUALLY MEANT INCLUDE THEM

         4  INSIDE THE WINDOWS PRODUCT, AND I REMINDED HIM THAT WE

         5  DON'T HAVE TO DO THAT.  WE HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO JUST

         6  PUT THEM ON OUR WEB SITE.

         7           THE COURT:  TO BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH YOUR

         8  CONTRACT?

         9           THE WITNESS:  YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        10  BY MR. BURT:

        11  Q.   AND, AS A MATTER OF FACT, MR. MUGLIA, DID MICROSOFT

        12  EVER HAVE TO DECIDE WHETHER, AS OF THIS POINT IN TIME

        13  TODAY, HAS MICROSOFT EVER HAD TO DECIDE WHETHER OR NOT TO

        14  SUPPORT JDK 1.2?

        15  A.   NO, WE HAVE NOT.

        16  Q.   AND WHY IS THAT?

        17  A.   BECAUSE SUN, IN VIOLATION OF OUR CONTRACT, HAS NOT

        18  DELIVERED IT TO US.

        19  Q.   THANK YOU, MR. MUGLIA.

        20           MR. BURT:  NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

        21           MR. BOIES:  JUST VERY BRIEFLY, YOUR HONOR.

        22           THE COURT:  SURE.

        23                     RECROSS-EXAMINATION

        24  BY MR. BOIES:

        25  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, LET ME ASK THAT YOU BE GIVEN EXHIBIT
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         1  1931, WHICH I WOULD OFFER INTO EVIDENCE AT THIS TIME.

         2           MR. BOIES:  MAY I HAVE JUST A MOMENT, YOUR HONOR?

         3           THE COURT:  SURE.

         4           (PAUSE.)

         5           MR. BOIES:  I'M TRYING TO FIND THE EXHIBIT, YOUR

         6  HONOR.

         7           THE COURT:  OKAY.

         8           MR. BOIES:  LET ME PROCEED.

         9  BY MR. BOIES:

        10  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO RUSS ARUN, A-R-U-N, IS?

        11  A.   YES, I DO.

        12  Q.   WHO IS HE, SIR?

        13  A.   HE'S A DEVELOPMENT AND TEST MANAGER WHO HAS BEEN

        14  INVOLVED AT TIMES, AT LEAST, WITH OUR JAVA VIRTUAL

        15  MACHINE.

        16  Q.   AND DID HE HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR DECIDING WHAT

        17  WAS PUT ON THE WEB SITE TO FULFILL YOUR OBLIGATIONS UNDER

        18  THE CONTRACT THAT YOU REFERRED TO?

        19  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF HE HAD ANY RESPONSIBILITY INVOLVED IN

        20  THAT.  HE CERTAINLY DIDN'T MAKE ANY STRATEGIC DECISIONS

        21  ABOUT IT, BUT HE MAY OR MAY NOT HAVE DECIDED WHAT

        22  PARTICULAR FILES WERE PUT ON THE WEB SITE AT VARIOUS

        23  POINTS IN TIME.

        24           MR. BOIES:  I ONLY HAVE ONE COPY OF THIS EXHIBIT,

        25  YOUR HONOR, AND IT'S GOT SOME YELLOW HIGHLIGHTING ON IT.
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         1           THE COURT:  WOULD YOU LIKE TO HAVE SOME MORE

         2  COPIES OF IT QUICKLY MADE?

         3           MR. BOIES:  IF WE COULD, YOUR HONOR.

         4           THE COURT:  ANDREW, WOULD YOU HELP US OUT?  JUST

         5  TAKE THEM INTO CHAMBERS.

         6           (PAUSE.)

         7  BY MR. BOIES:

         8  Q.   NOW, WHILE THAT'S BEING DONE, COULD I ASK THAT YOU

         9  LOOK AGAIN AT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 259.  THIS IS THE

        10  DOCUMENT THAT YOU'VE TESTIFIED ON REDIRECT WAS DRAFTED BY

        11  A JUNIOR PERSON.

        12           DO YOU RECALL THAT?

        13  A.   YES, THAT'S RIGHT.

        14  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHY THIS DOCUMENT--I'M INFORMED THIS

        15  DOCUMENT WAS PRODUCED FROM MR. RUSS ARUN'S FILES.

        16           DO YOU KNOW HOW, CONSISTENT WITH YOUR

        17  UNDERSTANDING, THIS COULD HAVE BEEN PRODUCED FROM RUSS

        18  ARUN'S FILES?

        19           MR. BURT:  YOUR HONOR, I OBJECT TO MR. BOIES

        20  TESTIFYING ABOUT THE SOURCE OF THE DOCUMENT, AND I DON'T

        21  BELIEVE THE REPRESENTATION IS ACCURATE.

        22           THE COURT:  WELL, I WILL LISTEN TO YOUR

        23  COUNTERREPRESENTATION.  WHERE DID IT COME FROM?

        24           MR. BURT:  YOUR HONOR, I CAN'T TELL YOU, STANDING

        25  HERE RIGHT NOW, THE SOURCE OF THE DOCUMENT IN TERMS OF THE
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         1  FILE.  I CAN INVESTIGATE THAT AND ADVISE THE COURT LATER.

         2           THE COURT:  WELL, HE APPARENTLY HAS A BASIS FOR

         3  THE QUESTION.  HE HAS A GOOD-FAITH BASIS, AND HE COULD PUT

         4  THE QUESTION.

         5  BY MR. BOIES:

         6  Q.   AND I WILL PUT THE QUESTION THIS WAY, MR. MUGLIA:

         7  DID YOU HAVE ANY EXPLANATION FOR WHY THIS WOULD HAVE BEEN

         8  FOUND IN SOMEBODY'S FILES LIKE MR. RUSS ARUN OR ANYONE

         9  OTHER THAN THE PEOPLE YOU IDENTIFIED, IF YOUR EXPLANATION

        10  OF THIS DOCUMENT IS CORRECT?

        11  A.   YES, I THINK I CAN, IN THE SENSE THAT FARANA COULD

        12  VERY WELL HAVE BEEN WORKING WITH RUSS ON A VARIETY OF JOB

        13  ACTIVITIES, AND SHE MAY HAVE JUST SENT HIM THIS DOCUMENT.

        14           AS I SAID, MR. ARUN DOESN'T ESTABLISH JAVA

        15  POLICY.  THAT'S REALLY NOT HIS JOB.  SO, MY TESTIMONY IS,

        16  I BELIEVE, CONSISTENT.

        17  Q.   LET ME GO BACK TO ARUN BECAUSE WE NOW HAVE GOVERNMENT

        18  EXHIBIT 1931, AND I WOULD ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE HANDED

        19  THAT EXHIBIT AND THAT WE WOULD OFFER IT AT THIS TIME.

        20           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        21           THE COURT:  MR. BURT?

        22           MR. BURT:  NO OBJECTION.

        23           THE COURT:  OKAY.  GOVERNMENT'S 1931 IS ADMITTED.

        24                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1931 WAS

        25                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)
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         1  BY MR. BOIES:

         2  Q.   THIS IS A DOCUMENT RELATING TO--INCLUDES A SERIES OF

         3  E-MAILS, AND IT RELATES TO THE POSTING OF RMI BITS;

         4  CORRECT, SIR?

         5  A.   THAT'S WHAT IT APPEARS TO BE, YES.

         6  Q.   AND WAS THERE A REQUIREMENT FOR MICROSOFT TO DO THIS

         7  UNDER ITS CONTRACT WITH SUN?

         8  A.   THAT'S A COMPLEX QUESTION THAT'S BEING LITIGATED IN

         9  SAN JOSE.  IN THE SENSE THAT RMI WAS NEVER PROPERLY

        10  DELIVERED TO MICROSOFT, NO, BUT WE DID DO IT, SO...

        11  Q.   AND, CERTAINLY, SUN TAKES THE POSITION THAT YOU WERE

        12  OBLIGATED TO DO THAT; CORRECT?

        13  A.   YES, THEY DID.

        14  Q.   OKAY.  AND LET ME START AT THE BOTTOM OF THE

        15  PAGE--LET ME GO BACK TO THE SECOND PAGE WHERE MR. RUSS

        16  ARUN, ON AUGUST 25, 1997, AT 6:13 P.M., SENDS AN E-MAIL

        17  ABOUT GETTING THE RMI BITS.

        18           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        19  A.   THE VERY LAST ONE?

        20  Q.   YES.

        21  A.   YES.

        22  Q.   AND THEN BRAD ABRAMS RESPONDS ON PAGE ONE AT THE

        23  BOTTOM.

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   YES.
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         1  Q.   AND HE GIVES A FILES DESCRIPTION OF WHERE HE PUT THE

         2  BITS.

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT?  IN THE FIRST LINE?

         4  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         5  Q.   AND THEN HE SAYS, "THERE WILL BE NO ENTRY IN THE

         6  INDEX FOR THIS FILE.  THEY'LL HAVE TO STUMBLE ACROSS IT TO

         7  KNOW IT'S THERE."

         8           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         9  A.   YES, I DO.

        10  Q.   AND THEN HE'S GOT ANOTHER LOCATION, FTP COLON TWO

        11  REVERSE SLASHES AND SOME MORE SYMBOLS, AND MICROSOFT.COM

        12  SLASH DEVELOPMENT DASH MSDN AND SOME MORE LETTERS.

        13           THEN HE SAYS, "IS WHERE I PUT IT ON THE INTERNET

        14  WITH 37 OTHER OLD FILES IN THIS DIRECTORY, I'D SAY IT'S

        15  PRETTY BURIED."

        16           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        17  A.   I'M SORRY, I DON'T.

        18           THE COURT:  IT'S RIGHT ABOVE THE BOTTOM MESSAGE.

        19           THE WITNESS:  NOW I SEE IT, YES.

        20  BY MR. BOIES:

        21  Q.   IT'S THE LINE IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE LINE THAT SAYS,

        22  "THERE WILL BE NO ENTRY IN THE INDEX FOR THIS FILE.  THEY

        23  WILL HAVE TO STUMBLE ACROSS IT TO KNOW IT'S THERE."

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   YES, I DO.
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         1  Q.   AND MR. RUSS ARUN E-MAILS BACK THREE MINUTES LATER,

         2  "AWESOME.  THANKS."

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

         4  A.   YES.

         5  Q.   NOW, DOES THAT SUGGEST TO YOU THAT MR. ARUN WAS, AT

         6  LEAST, INVOLVED TO SOME EXTENT IN DETERMINING WHAT TO POST

         7  ON THE INTERNET IN CONNECTION WITH THE JAVA CONTRACT?

         8  A.   NO, NOT REALLY.

         9           LET ME BE CLEAR.  THIS WAS BEFORE WE ACTUALLY

        10  SHIPPED OUR JAVA VIRTUAL MACHINE, AND OUR

        11  OBLIGATIONS--EXCUSE ME.  BEFORE WE ACTUALLY SHIP JDK 1.1,

        12  AND OUR JAVA CONTRACT OBLIGATIONS, AS I UNDERSTAND THEM,

        13  FOR POSTING ON THE INTERNET ARE WITH FINAL PRODUCTS.  SO,

        14  IN THIS TIME FRAME, I BELIEVE IT WAS STILL A BETA VERSION

        15  OF IT.

        16           NOW, WHEN THE FINAL VERSION WAS RELEASED AND I

        17  WAS MADE AWARE OF WHERE THE--WHEN I WAS MADE AWARE OF THE

        18  FACT THAT WE WERE GOING INTO FINAL RELEASE AND MADE A

        19  DECISION TO PUT RMI ON THE INTERNET, I DIRECTED THAT IT BE

        20  PUT AT A PLACE WHICH WOULD BE VERY STRAIGHTFORWARD FOR A

        21  DEVELOPER TO FIND.

        22  Q.   NOW, WHEN WAS JDK 1.1 RELEASED BY YOU, SIR, BY

        23  MICROSOFT?

        24  A.   I BELIEVE IT WAS OCTOBER OF 1997.

        25  Q.   YES.  AND THAT IS EXACTLY THE DATE THAT IS UP HERE AT
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         1  THE TOP; RIGHT?  "I WILL PUT IT BACK OCTOBER 1."

         2           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         3  A.   YES, I SEE THAT, BUT THIS WAS SENT IN AUGUST OF 1997.

         4  Q.   YES.  AND IT SAYS, "WE SHOULD NOT POST THIS BEFORE

         5  SEPTEMBER 30.  CAN YOU SIT ON IT UNTIL THEN?"

         6           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         7  A.   YES, I DO.

         8  Q.   SO, THIS WAS INTENDED TO BE THE POSTING FOR THE

         9  ACTUAL SHIPMENT, NOT OF THE BETA; CORRECT, SIR?

        10  A.   YES, ALTHOUGH THIS DOCUMENT DOESN'T PURPORT TO WHERE

        11  THE FINAL SHIPMENT WAS PLACED.

        12  Q.   WELL, WHAT THIS DOCUMENT DOES DO IS IT FIRST RELATES

        13  NOT TO THE BETA BUT TO THE FINAL SHIPMENT; CORRECT?

        14  A.   NO, IT RELATES TO THE BETA.

        15           THERE IS A COMMENT HERE THAT SAYS, "I WILL PUT IT

        16  BACK UP ON OCTOBER 1, WHICH I TAKE TO MEAN AFTER THE FINAL

        17  SHIPMENT IS DONE.  IT DOESN'T SAY WHERE IT WAS PUT.

        18           AND I KNOW--AND I SET POLICY ON THIS--I KNOW THAT

        19  WHEN IT WAS POSTED FINALLY, I WAS INFORMED THAT WE WERE

        20  GOING TO THE FINAL VERSION, AND I DIRECTED THAT IT BE PUT

        21  AT A PLACE WHICH WAS STRAIGHTFORWARD FOR A DEVELOPER TO

        22  FIND.

        23  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, FIRST, WHERE DO YOU SEE IT SAYS, "I WILL

        24  PUT IT BACK UP"?

        25  A.   I SEE IT AT THE TOP LINE HERE, "WILL DO.  IT'S BEEN
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         1  REMOVED FROM THE FTP SERVER.  I WILL PUT IT BACK OCTOBER

         2  1."

         3  Q.   NOT BACK UP, BUT BACK.  HE'S GOING TO PUT IT UP ON

         4  OCTOBER 1.  THAT'S GOING TO BE THE FIRST TIME IT GOES UP;

         5  RIGHT?

         6  A.   COULD BE.

         7  Q.   AND IT'S GOING UP ON OCTOBER 1 BECAUSE THAT'S WHEN

         8  YOU'RE SHIPPING THE FINAL VERSION; RIGHT?

         9  A.   RIGHT, AND THAT'S WHEN OUR OBLIGATION EXISTS TO POST

        10  THIS ON THE WEB SERVER.

        11  Q.   AND WHAT THIS IS BEING DONE, WHAT THIS IS BEING, IN

        12  YOUR LANGUAGE, PROPOSED TO BE DONE, WAS TO PUT IT IN A

        13  PLACE WHERE PEOPLE COULDN'T FIND IT; RIGHT?

        14  A.   FOR IN A BETA RELEASE TIME FRAME, YES.

        15           AND I DON'T KNOW THE STATUS OF THIS CODE.  I

        16  DON'T KNOW IF THERE WERE PROBLEMS WITH IT OR WHETHER

        17  MR. ARUN THOUGHT HE SHOULD PROBABLY PUT IT UP IN SOME BETA

        18  FORM.  I DON'T KNOW.

        19           I KNOW THAT I DIRECTED THAT THIS BE PUT UP ON OUR

        20  WEB SERVER IN A PLACE WHICH MADE SENSE TO THE DEVELOPER.

        21  Q.   MR. MUGLIA, WHERE DID YOU DIRECT IT BE PUT UP?

        22  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THE EXACT PATH, BUT IT WAS UNDER THE

        23  MSDN PART OF OUR WEB SERVER.

        24  Q.   WELL, THIS IS ALSO PART OF THE MSDN PART OF YOUR WEB

        25  SERVER; CORRECT?
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         1  A.   THAT'S CORRECT, YES.

         2  Q.   AND THIS PART IS PRETTY HIDDEN; RIGHT?

         3  A.   RIGHT.

         4           AND WHAT I SAID SPECIFICALLY IS I DIDN'T WANT IT

         5  TO BE HIDDEN.

         6  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I CAN FINISH IT UP.

         7           YOU DON'T REMEMBER WHERE IT WAS ULTIMATELY PUT;

         8  RIGHT?

         9  A.   NO.

        10  Q.   OKAY.  AND WERE YOU AWARE, PRIOR TO MY SHOWING YOU

        11  THIS, THAT THERE HAD BEEN THIS PROPOSAL, IN YOUR LANGUAGE,

        12  TO HIDE IT?

        13  A.   YES, I WAS.

        14  Q.   IF YOU WERE AWARE OF IT WHEN I ASKED YOU WHETHER

        15  MR. ARUN WAS AT ALL INVOLVED IN DECIDING WHERE TO POST

        16  THINGS ON THE WEB IN CONNECTION WITH YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO

        17  THE CONTRACT, WHY DID YOU TELL ME NO?

        18  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THAT THAT WAS THE QUESTION THAT YOU

        19  ASKED.

        20  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.

        21           MR. BOIES:  NO MORE QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

        22           MR. BURT:  NO FURTHER QUESTIONS, YOUR HONOR.

        23           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        24           I WOULD LIKE TO SEE COUNSEL IN CHAMBERS

        25  INFORMALLY FOR A FEW MINUTES.
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         1           (WHEREUPON, AT 5:10 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

         2  ADJOURNED UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE.)
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN

        16

        17

        18

        19

        20

        21

        22

        23

        24

        25

